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Vision FE =

Our vision is to be the leader in construction
and property related services.
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Innovation &l & & R

Social Responsibility B Eitt &

Mission 1§ &

We are committed to B P12 1:

e Creating value for our customers and delivering

quality services at world class standards
REFPRIEEBERREHEARNEE RS

Delivering value to our shareholders through

maximizing market share and returns
BATISEAE R REFEER SRR E
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Chairman’s Statement

EREE

When | took over as Chairman in February 2011, | stated that the favorable
outlook was that Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“the Company”) had
continued on its path of fast growth matched by ever-improving quality, both in
service and in the delivery of project. | am happy to see that this growth pattern
has been maintained for the year of 2011.

Our order book continues to grow, and our revenue has also increased
proportionally. More importantly, this growth has been achieved with
corresponding improvements in profitability and sustainability. The five Divisions
have produced satisfactory and pleasing results and we are now a far larger and
more forward-looking Company than we have ever been.

Our recent initiative to grow our property development business is a strategic
move. Firstly, it capitalizes on the opportunities arising from the Central
Government'’s policies in urbanization in the Chinese Mainland and promoting
domestic spending. Secondly, it will create significant synergies between the
Company'’s existing business and the enlarged property development business.
Thirdly, it will help to broaden the Company’s income base and further facilitate
the sustainable development of the Company in the long run. We are confident
that it will bring our business collectively and integrally to new heights in the next
few years.

Results

With our clear and consistent focus on our growth and diversification strategy and
our investment in staff and training, we were able to achieve HK$6.9 billion of
new orders received for the year. Our total outstanding value of contracts on hand
exceeded HK$11 billion, which again set another record for the Company.

* for identification purposes only £ {5 5/

Chairman, Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
F/E, emEEL
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Results (continued)

Our Building Division has consistently delivered a satisfactory result, with a steady
track record of sustained growth. With our bedrock traditional Hong Kong
building business, we continued to attain HK$2.38 billion in new orders, which
comprised of a residential development in Sai Wan Terrace by Swire Properties
Limited, and the NTT data centre project in Tseung Kwan O, won in a joint
venture. In December, we were awarded a contract for the HSBC Data Centre
contract. This, together with our previous references, put us firmly in the lead for
data centre projects. Our existing building projects on university campuses and
Housing Authority carry on and we expect to see a large proportion of them
completing by 2012, adding to our large portfolio, and maintaining our tradition
as a quality builder in Hong Kong. Our interiors and special projects business
continue to prosper, with five main types of businesses: A & A (alterations and
additions); renovation and conservation; fitting-out for commercial; retail and
institutions special building projects; and maintenance work. The recent boom
in the retails market has helped to provide many more opportunities for A & A
works for prestigious retail outlets. Our ability to complete projects to high quality
within a short time span, typical for this type of work, has put us in the first league
of fitting out contractors for the retail business. For construction management
services, we continue to support the Macau Venetian Parcels 5 and 6 project with
our special team of over 400 staff. For overseas and Chinese Mainland business,
apart from our continuing support to the railway from Jeddah to Mecca, which
had commenced operation last year, we have been awarded a construction
contract for a building for Huawei Technologies in Hangzhou. This is the second
project we have constructed for this client, following the satisfactory completion
of their Headquarters in Shenzhen some ten years ago.

For our civil engineering business, we have further expanded into the waterworks
business with our new contract for renewal of water mains. This, together with
our established business on railways, has widened our business base for stable
long term growth. We expect to see further fast growth in this division, taking
advantage of the recent investment in infrastructure market by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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ERBE

Results (continued)

Our electrical and mechanical installation subsidiary continues to be successful
in building services projects, and we have successfully widened the base to
include sewage/water treatment works. We have further expanded it to include
mechanical ventilation for railway tunnels, with our recent win in the MTR XRL
high speed railway environmental control system contract. We have successfully
grown from a building services business to a full range electrical and mechanical
engineering contractor.

This year, we have also focused our efforts to significantly expand our property
development business. We have successfully acquired a prime property site in
Tieling, Liaoning, and poised to further acquire another site in Gongging Cheng in
Jiangxi. We believe that property development business will in the long run bring
profit to our Company’s financial performance.

All of these, together with the property management services of the listed
subsidiary Synergis Holding Limited, build up a strong and growing construction
related business for our long term growth.

Final Dividend

After giving due consideration to the results reported, the reserves of the
Company and the working capital requirement of the Group, the board of
directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2011. Conditional upon
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting
of the Company, the proposed final dividend will be paid on 25 June 2012
to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the registers of the
Company on 8 June 2012 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim cash dividend of HK3.5 cents per share (2010: HK3.0
cents per share) already paid, total dividends for the year will amount to HK6.0
cents per share (2010: HK6.0 cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 27%
(2010: 30%) on the earnings for the financial year.

4 ¢
NEBHERETRMBATNBEEETREER N
AELEHNERE  MAEBNMCORNTEREEEREE
FREEK KSR IE T A2 o BE & T HAE/S MTR XRL= 2R 8 1%
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RAFE AEENTEEHNEERREAMEERE
B AEBERDEE - BURNEEEHEFNEEMER
o 3B BB WA TEE BN S —E L
BPMEE REMES ARAMEEREGHARNRAZE
BERIE LA -

LA _H7E%E - 38 [F) T BB 2 7] Synergis Holdings Limited (
EEREEARAR) 2 MEBERE  AAEEIRE
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KHkR

BADEBME2MNEE ARANBERAEEFRFZ
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Huawei Technologies in Hangzhou
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Express Rail Link — West Kowloon Terminus Station South
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Outlook

The Company has successfully weathered the economic doldrums in 2008 and
growing steadily with a far broader business base. The order book is healthy and
the increased presence of our Company’s logo on many construction sites in
Hong Kong has help to reinforce the first-class image of Hsin Chong Construction
Group to the public.

There are a lot of opportunities in the construction markets ahead, though rising
material costs, escalating staff compensations and the shortage of professionals
and workers in the small Hong Kong market continue to create challenges to
us and others in the industry. These challenges will exert pressure to our profit
margin, but we will take every care to vigilantly control costs and maintain a
balanced mixture of business in order to maximize our return.

Our wider business base, and our competent and dedicated team, will enable us
to be better equipped to face these challenges. We are confident that our lustrous
history, our experienced team and our total commitment to delivering projects to
high quality will propel us strongly and steadily forward.

Our recent entry into the property development market will open up a lot more
opportunities for growth and profitability in the future.

Appreciation

Once again, | must express my heartfelt thanks to the management and staff
of our Company for their total dedication and tireless efforts over the last year.
They have contributed a lot to enable us to achieve the results this year and to
positioning Hsin Chong for the future.

I must also thank our shareholders, business partners, clients and our suppliers for
their total support and complete confidence in us.

I look forward to seeing further success in the coming year.

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

THEWLER S W

Managing Director, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
BT RRAKE

#33

Overview

The Group's strategies aim to deliver shareholder value through growth and
performance. Over the past three years, we have transformed our business by
leveraging our traditional core construction business to deliver growth, whilst
expanding into higher margin opportunities afforded in property development.
During 2011, the Group reached new highs in its 72 years history with the
following achievements:

The Group has successfully entered the mainstream property development
business in Mainland China, with the acquisition of approximately 1.8
million square metres of land valued at HK$2.5 billion in Tieling (on the
outskirts of Shenyang), Liaoning Province, which site is to be developed into
residential and commercial properties with total planned gross floor area of
approximately 3 million square metres.

The traditional Hsin Chong construction business achieved new records with
its outstanding order book at fiscal year end reaching over HK$11 billion
whilst achieving new record levels of revenue of HK$5.6 billion and profit
of HK$172 million in the year, with record achievement across all business
segments comprising the building and civil engineering business.

The property management business of Synergis Holdings Limited
(“Synergis”) achieved a new record revenue of HK$673 million during 2011,
as it continues to expand into related businesses in Hong Kong and entered
the higher margin asset management business in Chinese Mainland.

Although the new property development business has yet to commence
construction and record any revenue, as the land was only acquired in Q4 2011,
the Group's traditional businesses establish new records for both consolidated
revenues and profits.

ARENREEEEEERERLRXERT RSB RGE
BE-EBE=F AEEXH—EHL —HHLES
FRUBERBNES UEBER ABERENEEE
HWMEEREBOEE - BASL+ AT AEER -
Z——FHERE ERATHR:

NEEBRDBABPEAM TR ERRES B
FRBNNEZTAEES (MAEBTMR) ML
3+ 46 3 T & 491,800,000 J7 K - B E L) BB K
2,500,000,0007C c 5% L R ER B EEREEY
¥ ERBIEEMFE4 453,000,000 75 K

ERFERAE  EEERKEEAF S RUIE
ERRIARTTAK A #FEHE#8E#11,000,000,0007T © F
MU S A8 #5,600,000,0007T ° B FEEF K+ K THE
PSR EB D BB ESKE  FRENABE
172,000,0007T * A& B B FI G0 8k

Synergis Holdings Limited (12 &2 BAR A E)*)
(THEBEDR T ——FHRETTEIF S &8
#673,000,0007T - EEEEEEEGREBHRE -
HHAEERFEN BRI EEERER-

ER LR HR —F——FFOFSTEA FEANY
KBEREBHARRRMTLZ - INESKSEAI S - @t
AEEOEREGEREGFA RSN T EEENES -

Financial highlights (in HK$million) For the year Change
UBHE(BEEET) FE 1[4
2011 2010 2009 2011vs 2010 2011 vs 2009
—T——F ZT——F
E3) 3|
—¥——F —T-TF —TTNF —T-TH —TTNHF
Revenue* e 6,381 4,258 3,482 [ 50% [ 83%
Gross profit* ER* 540 445 369 121% 1 46%
Net profit after taxation Friii& ) 7l 190 157 119 121% 1 60%
Profit attributable to equity holders EREE ARG 172 136 109 1 26% 1 58%
Basic earning per share (in HK cents) FREARRF (B 248 203 163 1 22% 152%
Gross margin EMEEFE 8.5% 10.5% 10.6%
Net margin F IR 3.0% 3.7% 3.4%

*

including share of jointly controlled entities

BREEGAREELE



Overview (continued)

Net profit after taxation
FRigkas
(HK$ million ¥ & & T)

[ st half
s

+21% [l 2nd half
THEF

2009 2010 2011

2011 was also a year in which the Group successfully transformed its balance
sheet and its portfolio of assets with the very substantial acquisition of a first
land acquisition site in Liaoning, China for which funding was arranged via a
combination of cash, new loans, issuance of zero coupon convertible bonds, and
an equity issuance of new shares, as consideration.

Furthermore, new shares were placed with new minority investors during
December 2011 raising approximately HK$134 million, under a specific mandate
approved by shareholders at the Special General Meeting held on 19 October
2011, which allows the Group to issue up to a maximum of 1.9 billion new shares
on or before 30 April 2012.

el

2011 3 ELEEEERAR 7
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EEEBWMRR DN

#E=E (@)
Basic earning per share
BRELXRT
(HK cents 7&#511l])

% "

[ 2nd half
+ ()

20 /

15

10

5

2009 2010 2011

TR FRARTAREEEERGERNEEMAS
FEBINELBE MR EEETREEENERE
WX ZRIFFEARBERER T TANESRER
B BRERE  EER BTERAMRES  ARET
A AE BB AE -

IV AZE——FF+ A ARARFLEREERE
A% - 2 & FE A 134,000,0007T - RIXERETIRIE-T
—— T A+ NABRTHRERE RS EREENET
BIREmM#ETT EAKB AR -_E——_FNA=+HxZ
B3 175 % 3% 1,900,000,0000% 1 i%

Key selected items (in HK$million) For the year Change
EEZEER (BBEERL) F£E =il
2011 2010 Amount As %
—Eg——%§ T -TF B B
Assets HE
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHET 897 647 1 250 139%
Properties under development EREPYE 2,522 - 12,522 N/A i
Liabilities &R\
Bank loans RITEN 831 430 I 401 1 93%
Financing from a shareholder* KA —MIRRAFE * 991 - 1991 N/A T35 3
Total Equity HER 1,952 814 11,138 1 140%
* including senior loan note and convertible bonds arising from acquisition of land parcels in ~ * BIER IS A S T R AT R B R B RER R ATIRREH

Tieling
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Overview (continued)

Construction Business

“Hsin Chong Construction’s order book has grown healthily and steadily over the
last 3 years, with its outstanding order book now exceeding HK$11 billion.”

During 2011, new work orders of HK$6.9 billion were awarded, resulting in the
outstanding contract value exceeding HK$11 billion on hand as at the year end
date, which establishes a new milestone.

Outstanding Workload
FHRERTEREHE
(HK$ billion ¥ 4-187T)

12 [ Electrical & Mechanical
HETTR
[0 Civil Engineering
10 - TARTR
Building Construction
BFRE 201
8
6
4
2010
2
0
2009 2010 2011 0

“The Group continues to maintain a well diversified portfolio of construction
contracts from prestigious clients.”

Construction orders were received from a wide spectrum of clients including,
inter alia, (i) Water Supplies Department, Drainage Services Department and Civil
Engineering & Development Department of the Government of HKSAR,; (i) public
and educational institutions including the Chinese University, the Baptist University,
the City University and the Hong Kong Sports Institute; (iii) Hong Kong Housing
Authority public housing projects in Shatin and Kai Tak; (iv) MTR Express Rail
Link; and (v) private sector clients such as HSBC, Huawei Group, Swire Properties,
Hongkong Land, Manhattan Group, Sino Group, etc.

s ®

BiEEF

[#T 5 &EMAEETBE = FRFMBTMIER
B R ST & 4948 5878078 #511,000,000,0007T ° |

R-Z——F EEFIE TIEA 4575 86,900,000,000
T SAEENFEB Z FEATRA ORREBRREE
11,000,000,0007T - B87F £ 15T 1) B F2 08 -

Outstanding Workload (As at 31 December)
FHREATERESHE R+=-A=+—n8)
(HK$ billion 7 +{&7T)

[ The Hong Kong Gov't

[ Public & Educational
Institutions
NERHE S

[l Hong Kong
Housing Authority
EEFEZE®

B MTR

[ Private Sector Clients
LERAES

[FEEZEEEHKAZ I ZRELEZES e —H
ZITILREFHE ]

AEBRETRFLNESREREAN KRB ()5
AT HE RN KGE EHERTATRARE
(VA% EHRERE P BERXAS BRAS W
REREARERR: ()EEREEARE T2 PMH LA
RABEEER (VBB ERESREN (FER)
ROLEATES WEYEE RA%E ALitE B
AT BREE - EREES-
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Overview (continued)

Construction Business (continued)

“Allied to its record year end order book, during the year under review, Hsin
Chong Construction delivered its contract works to establish a new record year of
performance.”

Revenue and Gross Profit (in HK$ million) For the year Growth Rate
WaREMN(BEEBEST) FE HBEF
2011 2010 2009 2011Vs2010 2011 Vs 2009
—F——F —T—F
u %

—E&——fF | T-TF —ZTTNF —T-ZTF —TThF

Revenue* g
Construction: Building, Civil, Electrical BiE-BTFREE LARIRERR

and Mechanical ("E&M") HeE TR 5,634 3,578 2,907 157% 1 94%
Property and Facility Management, MEREZBER MEER

Property Development 747 680 575 110% 130%
Gross profit* E A
Construction: Building, Civil, E&M BE-ETEE TARIRER

HETIE 354 296 243 120% 1 46%

Property and Facility Management, M REBER MEER

Property Development 186 149 125 [ 25% 149%

EMEERAE
g BTRE LATRR

Gross profit margin
Construction: Building, Civil, E&M

Eg =3 6.3% 8.3% 8.4%
Property and Facility Management, MERZBER WMEER
Property Development 24.9% 21.9% 21.7%
* including share of jointly controlled entities * IR R E

Revenue by Segment
EERRREERR
(HK$ million /& ¥ & & )

Gross Profit by Segment

BEEFISEERR
(HK$ million /& ¥ & & 7T)

%1 Building Construction [ Building Construction
BFEE BFEE

[ Civil Engineering [ Civil Engineering
TARTR TARIR

I Electrical & W Electrical &
Mechanical Mechanical
WE TR HETR

[ Property and Facility [ Property and Facility
Management Management
YRR E R FIE ST AL

[l Property Development Il Property Development

and Investment

MEBRREE

and Investment

MEBRRRERE
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Overview (continued)

Construction Business (continued)

The Building Division's revenue during 2011 grew 56% to HK$4 billion, and its
year end outstanding order book exceeded HK$8 billion. Its Hong Kong Building
Division was the major contributor to this growth, through the hard work and
dedication of the staff and a commitment to meet targets. Managing this growth
has been a challenge, particularly with regard to human resources and project
management. The Building Division has lived up to its high reputation for quality,
reliability and integrity, and for meeting the many stringent targets set for safety
levels and quality standards, whilst achieving tremendous business growth.

At the same time, the Building Division has achieved a new break-through in
its business footprint in the Chinese Mainland with the award of a contract
over HK$2 billion from the Huawei Group to construct a production plant in
Hangzhou, following the successful completion of a previous project of building
Huawei's Shenzhen headquarters in 2005. Following our successful completion
of building the first HSBC data centre in Tseung Kwan O in 2008, during the year
we were awarded another contract from HSBC to build a second data centre in
Shatin. Furthermore, through a joint-venture with Maeda Corporation, a Japanese
company, we won another data centre building project at Tseung Kwan O, from
the Japanese telecommunications giant, NTT Communications. In the medium
term, we would expect to focus more attention in managing our own projects in
the Chinese Mainland and support vertical integration.

Our Construction Project Management Services Division in Macau continued
to perform extremely successfully with the efficient delivery of projects for the
Venetian Group in the Cotai Strip. However, our continuing business in this
area will depend upon the successful commencement of Parcel 3 works, after
completion of Parcels 5 and 6.

The Interior Fit-out Division delivered another year of excellent performance, as
evidenced by its tremendous growth in obtaining new higher-end contracts from
an expanding portfolio of clients. Among many new projects secured, there were
contracts to renovate Sincere Insurance Building and a food factory refurbishment
contract for Café de Coral.

Since the second half of 2009, the Group has implemented a new growth
strategy to re-enter the civil engineering business in Hong Kong. With the new
contracts received during 2010, our Civil Engineering Division demonstrated an
excellent execution capability during the year, recording revenues of HK$857
million, a 33% increase over 2010. Works at all three MTR Express Rail projects
under construction were progressing satisfactorily, after overcoming engineering
and project management challenges. This Division’s outstanding order book
is now over HK$3 billion (as at the date of this report, including new orders
awarded to-date), being now the second largest business unit after Hong Kong
Building Division. The Company is gaining recognition by showing its capability to
undertake many types of civil works construction projects, such as a water mains
contract for the Water Supplies Department and foundation works for private
residential projects.

#E (5

BiER® (B

RZE——F EFHFPINKREEMS6%E B

4,000,000,0007C ' i & RA)FEEARTK S L5 E B

8,000,000,0007C ° 2 E B EFHFIME TIBHBE LT
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Overview (continued)

Construction Business (continued)

Our E&M Division has long been renowned for delivering quality M&E
installations. 2011 has been a milestone year for it to be awarded for the first
time and MTRC projects for tunnel environmental control systems working in a
strategic partnership and a plumbing and drainage contract for Tsuen Wan West
Station. This Division has an outstanding workload of approximately HK$500
million at the year end.

Property Development Business

“Hsin Chong is expanding its businesses portfolio to undertake substantial
property developments to become a fully integrated property company, which
aims to improve the overall revenue, profits, margins and returns of the Group.”

On 18 November 2011, the Group completed a very substantial acquisition
of land parcels of HK$2.5 billion valuation at Tieling (on the outskirts of
Shenyang), Liaoning Province. There are 17 parcels of land with a total site area
of approximately 1.8 million square metres. These are to be developed into a
mixed-use development with a planned total gross floor area of approximately
3 million square metres, comprised of residential properties of approximately 2
million square metres and a variety of commercial facilities of about 1 million
square metres, including an outlet village, big box retailing, shopping arcades,
food and beverage outlets, entertainment centres, a hotel, an international school
and office blocks. The entire project is expected to be completed over the next six
to eight years in multiple phases. The first phase of development will commence
during 2012.

Such land parcels were acquired at a consideration of HK$1,828 million, which
was financed by a combination of HK$350 million in cash (of which HK$275
million was financed with a new bank loan); HK$500 million by issuance of a
senior loan note; HK$218.8 million by allotment and issuance of new shares; and
HK$759.2 million by issuance of zero coupon convertible bonds. The new shares
were allotted and issued to the vendor, Neo Summit Limited, which is equivalent
to 15.1% of the issued share capital as of the year end date. The convertible
bonds were also issued to Neo Summit Limited, and are redeemable at anytime by
the Company, with the final maturity in 7 years.

The other very substantial acquisition of land development project at Gongging
Cheng in Jiangxi Province, subject to various completion conditions, was also
approved by the shareholders of the Company in October 2011. This second
project remains for completion until the end of 2012.

Property and Facility Management Business

“Synergis successfully added related services such as facilities management and
repair and maintenance in Hong Kong and entered the asset management sector
services in China.”

2011 5 TELEEEBRAT
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Overview (continued)

Property and Facility Management Business (continued)

Synergis recorded a growth in revenue to HK$673 million, an increase of 17%.
Whilst continuing to maintain its core business as the major independent
property manager in Hong Kong, its successful offering of other related services
in facilities management and repair and maintenance started to contribute to
the overall margin of the Hong Kong business. Throughout many years, Synergis
has consistently delivered steady revenue, built upon high contract retention rate,
which reflects the quality of its services.

In China, with the emergence of demand for higher quality property services,
Synergis has been implementing its new business initiatives in providing leasing
and consulting services and mall operations. With 2012 as the first full year of
this business expansion programme, the additional operating costs incurred in
China, which have been expensed, have affected the overall net margin of this
business division short-term, but management is confident of its future due to
the substantial market opportunities in Mainland China’s commercial property
market.

Looking forward

The Group's business portfolio is geared to capture significant appropriate market
opportunities. Our Building, Civil Engineering and E&M Divisions will continue
to explore the many opportunities offered by the Hong Kong Government'’s 10
mega-sized infrastructure projects; the recent Hong Kong Chief Executive’s Policy
Address announcements to upgrade public hospitals; and the many commercial
activities within Hong Kong which continues as a vibrant financial and commercial
centre of China.

With the initial substantial entry in the property development business in China,
the Group is positioned to capture the opportunities arising from the Central
Government'’s policies in urbanization in the mainland and promoting domestic
spending. The development at Tieling will span over several years, beginning from
2012, which will significantly contribute to the revenue and profits of the Group
once the development begins realization of sales of the residential units and
some commercial properties, and also through rental income from any retained
commercial investment properties. Completion of the first phase of development
is scheduled for 2013 and accordingly related revenue and profits. Going forward,
the Group will continue to pursue similar opportunities, and the other land site
acquisition in Gongging Cheng which remains available for completion up to the
end of 2012.

Since the financial crisis of 2008/09, Hsin Chong has repositioned itself for
economic recovery and expanded into related businesses, which has resulted
in growth in both revenues and earnings for our shareholders. Over the last 3
years, we have transformed the Group into a fully integrated property group with
services covering property development, construction, and property management.
We have added suitable people talents to deliver this growth and diversification.
We have, and will continue, to manage our finance prudently whilst pursuing
every appropriate opportunity as it arises. In order to remain strong and
competitive in the midst of this rapid business growth, Hsin Chong will continue
to emphasise the importance of our human capital and consistent delivery of
quality, on time and cost effective products and services to our clients. And we will
remain prudent, vigilant and yet managerially nimble at all times.

s ®

VERRBEEER (E)

BB 2 N5 R 2 8%673,000,0007T * I8 A17% °

T EEBHFUBYMEEERNR AT ERLERS
EEERINEEREEENEE RRESHEMEERY

MEHBEBER 2 BEERFBERER - 2FK 18
EETHESEBT NG EEaNAREBILE RIET
HEEEmRBEKE-

BREHEAESEZMEERRENF KRR
MEBERIEHTHEENR REES MERREME
BEESRE  — T —FRAREFERAENEED
FEE EPEKLLERANFEIEMN BMAGFEIE
BB EFERAE AW dRFEABNERY
EMSEARANTIZHE EREH LD MBrRKERE
FEMAE Do

)34
AEENEBHACERRERNEEEMRBENTS
B AEBEMNETRE TARIRREEIRS BIKE
BRREZERE BREEBN TAERER  BBTK
RERONBERBEMEMN A BRI S ARE
BERTE—EEZENEREBEPOMEENSER
X5

BEETEFERREFRHEENE —FK A5H
BEERLE  CBERRBEAEE N T REERNTD
B HEER RS —FREE - HEHF BEE
EEMEEEEMLBNEANERREOEASBNE
REEWEMSROES W R ZREBREETRATE
MR Fos R - E-ERERBAEAN T —=F%
P - B R M i K% 02 ) T S AR B3 0 o R B 2R - AN SR L S
BEYEHEBEE IR S —FATRKEES 18
REBFRA L -

BTN EAFNERICE FEEEMEML F
FREARE WERERES SERRG RS RBF
ER-BE=F HACKAEEE R —E2EFA M
FHESHE RECEEEMELER ZERMETRE-
REETIBREBOAT AL A EBFHIERME TIOR3
- AEEMBEEREEN  NEEEFHNKRE -
ERREBERNRE  SRBENES N HEBER
AREANERNERNE  THARMANETPREH/ER
HER o B AN RK o ) E R MRS © b S - AR SR B I T B
FEFEES TENHER-



Overview (continued)

Operational Review on Contracts
New contracts of construction business received during the year and the
outstanding value of contracts on hand as at 31 December 2011 are summarized

el
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REAREREXBZHEHNELIN_"FT——F+=A
=T HZFEREREOBEHALT :

as follows:
Outstanding value of
New contracts received contracts on hand
In HK$ million for the year ended as at 31 December
EEHENE FHERTEREHEHE
BEARET REE »+=-—BA=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
~2——F | _—_TEF —e——% | —_T-EZF
Subsidiaries MELTE
Building construction EFEE 5,062 5314 7,297 5,977
Civil engineering TARTHE 1,127 882 1,304 833
E&M ME TR 220 688 472 929
Total CEa 6,409 6,384 9,073 7,739
Jointly controlled entities HEEFIERE
Group’s attributable interest REEFE
Building construction BFEE 420 - 1,398 1,071
Civil engineering TARTIR - 1,254 936 1,177
E&M HETIE 78 - 25 -
Total & 498 1,254 2,359 2,248
The Group *xEME
Group's attributable interest REEE(LER 6,907 8,138 11,432 9,987

RIE——F+_A=+—BZFBERERANEIT

The split of outstanding value of contracts on hand as at 31 December 2011 is as

follows: NS
HK$ million %
B¥EET Botk
Government, public and educational institutions LSRN T §=h 1 2,214 19.4
MTR Corporation Limited BEBKBRAT 1,511 13.2
Hong Kong Housing Authority EREEZESY 1,569 137
Private sector clients R-UNEIES S 6,138 53.7

11,432 100.0
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Overview (continued)

Major contracts awarded subsequent to year end

Subsequent to the year end and up to the date of this report, the Group has
secured several new contracts worth HK$1.2 billion. A building construction
contract from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology to build a
Research and Academic Building and a MTRC contract to construct Wong Chuk
Hang Depot for South Island Line were awarded. As at the date of this report, our

outstanding value of contracts on hand has exceeded HK$12 billion.

Financial Position B ikR
Liquidity (in HK$ million) As at 31 December Change
nEBEe (BEEET) ®+=-—A=+—H ik
2011 2010 As %
—E——F —E-TF ERlse
Construction Business* EEER
Bank and cash balances HRITRB SR 845.2 647.3 131%
Bank loans RITER 546.6 430.0 [27%
Net cash position R FE;MR 298.6 2173 137%
Net current assets TENVEE SR
— excluding borrowings due after 1 year —TEE-—FRIHNEE 775.4 4274 181%
PRC Property Business hEMERRS
Bank and cash balances RITMRB SR 51.7 - N/A T~ E F
Bank loans RITER 284.0 - N/A “F 38
Net cash position R FEAMR (232.3) - N/A 38 A
Net current assets TMENVEE R
— excluding borrowings due after 1 year —TEE-—FEIBNEE 1,890.6 - N/A T3 F
The Group *EEH
Bank and cash balances RITMIRB MR 896.9 647.3 139%
Bank loans RITER 830.6 430.0 [93%
Net cash position REFEMRR 66.3 2173 | 69%
Net current assets MEVEE T
— excluding borrowings due after 1 year —IEE—FRIENEE 2,666.0 427.4 [ 524%

* including Property and Facility Management Business

* BENDERREERER



Overview (continued)
Financial Position (continued)
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Gearing As at 31 December
EXARLE B+=-A=+—AH
2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
Debt to equity ratio BE#EEIL X
— including convertible bonds and senior — BEARRES REEEREE 93% 53%
loan note
— excluding convertible bonds — TRETBRRES 68% 53%
— excluding convertible bonds and senior — TRETRRESFRELERRE 43% 53%
loan note
Current ratio BN LE 2 1.8 1.1
Current ratio - excluding borrowings due after MEEER — TEE-—FEIHNEER 2.0 1.3
1 year

With a new record order book of the construction business in the past two
years, the Group has strengthened the working capital to support this higher
outstanding order book balance. The net cash position remained strong for the
divisions. As at 31 December 2011, total loan facilities available to the Group
amounted to HK$ 1,299 million with an undrawn balance of HK$468 million.

As stated, the Group completed a very substantial acquisition of land parcels
at Tieling, Liaoning Province of China during the year under review. The
consideration of the acquisition was HK$1,828 million of which HK$275 million
was financed by a new bank loan.

Bank borrowings are charged at a spread to HIBOR. With regard to the current
portfolio of businesses, the management expects that the Group’s financing
requirements for the remainder of the current financial year will be met by
available cash on hand, cash generated from operations, as well as banking
facilities.

BEMT REEMNBREERISESHLENANE
Fitr REB SR MEEELES UAENFBERTHROSBT
EBH-BHHNRSFAMRNERIFRB - R_F—F
+ZA=+—8 \JHAEEFEANEREE B A
1,299,000,0007T * A R EX & 58 45 #468,000,0007T ©

a0 ATl - B S A AN S B S K AR BE (L A P B R
BEE BB ZRUEERR(E A 11,828,000,000
JC & B #275,000,0007T TSR T E IR R E o

RITBEERFERTARKE LFRBEEEAEN LS -5
REEBHEAM S  EEEEMAEEEAMBRFERT
HENESF R KEAHBAFERE XBELRSE
AR SRITRA B fefit -
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Human Capital Investment

Advocating “Social Responsibility”

The Group puts strong emphasis on one of its corporate core values — “Social
Responsibility”.

The Group has been awarded the 5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Services for our commitment to “Social
Responsibility”. The Group encourages employees to participate in a wide
range of charitable activities and voluntary services, on a regular basis, including
participating in a blood donation day;, home repair and maintenance services
arranged for the elderly; arranging regular home visits to live-alone elderly; and
providing picnics for children living in children’s homes.

Staff Training and Development

The Group regards its employees as one of its key assets and invests significant
effort and attention to the selection, training and personal improvement of our
staff.

The Group is committed to developing its staff through the provision of training
and development opportunities. Over 3,500 training courses were conducted
providing over 29,000 attendance hours of training sponsored for staff during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organised, for all levels of
staff, to increase their technical and corporate knowledge.

For the building and construction business, developing young engineers and
supervisory staff is an essential requirement. A graduate trainee club was formed
to encourage fellowship among all our trainees. Social and training programmes
were organised regularly to improve staff commitment and sense of belonging
within the Group. Senior management staff were also trained to take up the role
of mentorship to further help the development of the young engineers. A number
of in-house staff development programmes for various staff disciplines have also
been established. Promotion and salary reviews to ensure alignment with industry
norms, take place twice a year in order to retain good performers. These are
important tools to retain talent in HK's expanding construction business with
limitations in the talent pool of suitable, experienced, qualified people.

For the property and facility management services businesses operated by
Synergis, different staff development programmes have also been launched
by Synergis management to ensure staff work in an healthy environment. To
enhance the sense of belonging of our staff, a full staff satisfaction survey is
conducted annually to identify the staff’s primary concerns with recommended
proposals for improvement. A comprehensive talent management model has
been developed to ensure quality staff are recruited, trained, and that subsequent
performance was properly reviewed with only star performers promoted. The
model has won numerous awards in various human resources and organisation
development competitions.

ANBEERE
BB AR T/
(AR E] 2ASERERNEERLEEZ -

AEEEESHERBHEEE [HRRBELFPUs 1R
W REAREY [BRLE ] AR AEEEEEBKL
F2EABKNEZEPRETIRYE BE2EBMNA
REXEHRELERTEY RHTHRIBERELARRE
ERREZFNRERRTEES -

ERILHIRZE
AEEERER QEERREEL — SUHERN
HEREI R EAABRREBRAREEREE -

AEBEBUEBREBIINERRE UIEFREE -NE
ECE——H+A=+-RIFEAN SEHERE
3,500fE15 5IER12 - & HIR iR E29,000E:RE - HIEEZ
Eﬁ%o

REBETEMRE N & RpBRE  HEGEES
B IR (R B ORI R R AN -

BTFREEXBIE BEFEIRMARTIERERST
AT St e AEBEKIZ R E TIZAB S MEEMmE
REIRABHNRSFEEF BETFHERTER RIEIFRE
I P TIENRB R EAEE 2 FBRE -2 EEEA
BENMRIEEZMAE BHFEIRME—FER-K
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BREER MEE SLREREEROAMBEROIER
TH®REBAM-

MEBEEENYEERGERREEBIE HEFTE
MERETELSERERRAE BRRETIRMEREE
MTHERR RIEFTRENEER SFESETZER
BZRmEERES UTREERMINEETRHEIER
# TERE-—EsSEEEEER BRER Hils
BXER HEMKRBREZ /RS REBEXRANESR
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Human Capital Investment (continued)

Staff Training and Development (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed a total of 8,431 full time staff,
which included 6,106 full time staff employed by Synergis.

Educational backgrounds of all supervisory and higher staff grades are analyzed
below:

Qualification

2011 £ MELERBEAERART 17
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ANEFERSE ()

EEIZIRZBE (E)

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H AEEXERLESE
BEE HPpiE6 1068 AFSEREAZ2HBES -

FBEEMRALREZSESMEINLT

Number of employees

BB EIA®
Master Degree or above [=nt==t v 220
Bachelor Degree or equivalent professional qualification BLBNRAEZErEEER 656
Diploma or Higher Certificate holder XREEASUREAE A 559
Certificate holder BERFBA 784

The Group establishes its remuneration policy in order to attract and retain high
calibre staff.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.

Health, Safety and Environmental Management
Construction remains our core business and, as a major construction group in
Hong Kong and Macau as well as an integrated construction services provider
in the Chinese Mainland and selected overseas regions, the Group has devoted
significant effort to maintain a safe, healthy and environmentally friendly working
environment - in line with our emphasis on social responsibility - as being one of
our corporate core values.

As an OHSAS 18001 certified company, we will continuously improve the safety
performance of our construction sites which is our commitment to society’s safety
development. Great efforts and attention are paid to establish safety awareness
programmes and implement safety regulatory procedures throughout our Group
activities.

Our corporate environmental management system has been certified as compliant
with the I1SO 14001 international standard. We shall continue to respond
positively to measures that contribute to a better environment.

Occupational health and safety, together with protection of the environment,

are vital components of our management objectives. We focus our efforts in
furtherance of these goals.

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

(aged 37)

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (“Dr. Kenneth CHU") was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 19
December 2007 and the Chairman of the Company on 17 February 2011. He is also a member of the
audit committee of the Company.

Dr. Kenneth CHU is also a non-executive chairman of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. Kenneth CHU was educated at The
University of Western Ontario in Canada. He was honored with a Doctorate of Laws by his alma
mater for his contributions in sports leisure development and community services in China and Hong
Kong. Dr. Kenneth CHU is the chairman and chief executive officer of Mission Hills Group and is
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin responsible for planning and managing the construction and design of sports and property assets of
hEEiEt Mission Hills Group, including championship golf courses and residential properties. Dr. Kenneth CHU,
together with the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho were named by the “Golf Inc.” as one of the top 35
most influential persons (ranked 9th) in the golf world in 2010. He has over 15 years of experience
in property and golf asset development, and has been managing Mission Hills Group in developing
assets by blending sports, business, culture, leisure and living components. Dr. Kenneth CHU has
been actively involved in community services in China and Hong Kong to promote interaction and
collaboration between China and Hong Kong's young business leaders, including being a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hainan Committee, a standing committee
member of All-China Youth Federation, a vice chairman of Hong Kong United Youth Association, a
standing committee member of Tianjin Youth Federation and a director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Limited.

Dr. Kenneth CHU is a director of Upper Luck Holdings Limited, Mission Hills Golf Club Limited and
Carrick Worldwide Limited, all of which are the substantial shareholders of the Company. He is the
son of the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho who was the founder of Mission Hills Group and the Non-
executive Chairman of the Company upto 16 February 2011. He is the brother of Dr. Catherine CHU,
an Executive Director of the Company.

SRREt

(375%)

KEEEL ([R@EET )R _EE+F+ A+ NBESEAERTES R -2 —F
ZATLHREZEAARRRER BNARARBEZEEGKE -

KR AEE T+ J5 A Synergis Holdings Limited (FTEEBREBERAF*) (FEER]  BARTEZ
FEEHREMBLAR] EROAEBHERZMARAF ([BRAT]) R ET) ZIENTERE -
KRRETBRENNERARKBEAZ AR EHREREE 2 EBIRE R R EREE
PEE HEEBRETALEFEBL -AREBLARZEE  ERBTHRES TEER
BIRERBRREE B RMELE (RIEREESRANEG REEYE) 2 EERE - RS
fRIETERE LR RIE T (Golf Inc) #FI AT —SFEHRSRRIKAEIN &
BBz — (MIFVENL) - ERERESB RIS EELRE T ERAS15F 2858 1 —
HEBRSEEZEESLR AGEY B L KAEAREERSSHFETE - KBRET—
HREG2ATFEREEZHERSE UREFEREESFHEEMZEZESRAIE 81
PEFEARBAHGEEHEENEEZECEZE P ELHAEFTHASTFZEE EATFHE
BlEE REMESFHAGEZXNBERESHNEEegE-

K218+ A Upper Luck Holdings Limited + Mission Hills Golf Club Limited ( & 2 i B K BRIEL4 5B
fRA®]) K Carrick Worldwide Limited (= E AR AT 2 F2RE ) 2EF - RBRIET AEHK
st (REEARARTHE-"T——F - A+ BNARFIERITER) 27T HIN
BRARRITEERZRETHBAL -



Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
FHEERE

2011 5 TELEEEBRAT

el

19

Biographies of the Directors

EEEN

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

SBS, JP MPA, BSoc.5c. (aged 59)

Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai (“Mr. Wong”) was appointed as an Executive Director and the Executive
Deputy Chairman of the Board in September 2008. He is a member of the remuneration committee,
the nomination committee and the executive committee of the Company and the executive
management committee of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wong is also an executive director and the deputy chairman of Synergis. He is also one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company through his controlled corporation, Neo Summit Limited.

Mr. Wong was educated at Harvard University, University of Oxford, The University of Hong Kong and
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in 2007.

Mr. Wong joined the administrative officer grade of the Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served
in many senior directorate positions until 1992. Since then, he has held senior management positions
in a number of well known Hong Kong listed companies in property development and construction
business sectors including K. Wah International Holdings Limited, Henderson China Holdings Limited
and the Shui On Group.

He was appointed as an official adviser to the drafting of the Basic Law for HKSAR (1985 to 1990) and
subsequently appointed by The National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China ("NPC")
as a member of the Preparatory Committee relating to the establishment of HKSAR (1993 to 1997).
Currently, he is a deputy of NPC.

Mr. Wong is also the chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University; the
chairman of the Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited; the chairman of the Hong
Kong Arts Development Council; the chairman of Pacific Basin Economic Council; a member of the
Hong Kong Film Development Council and a member of the Commission on Strategic Development of
the HKSAR Government. Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and the non-executive chairman
of Yangtze China Investment Limited, which is listed on AIM (Alternative Investment Market) London
Stock Exchange.
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SBS, JB MPA, BSoc.sc. (595%)

ITEELAAE(EAE VB EENFNAREZT AT ESHESEERRTE AL
REFNEZE S REZEGNNITERESURAEBANTERLZESG Y KE HIMALARAE
FHBEBRBIZEE-

TRETBNEETEZHITEE REIERF - HINEBEZER 2 A]Neo Summit Limited (¥71&5BR
DA )RAERRRZEBREZ —-

FTREBRBHAR FRRB - FEABRBEPIXABRERIYE - R ST LFRESDE
FRfTRE ([ERFE]D BRREREANES -

FERAR-NEREMABTBBRAEB T TEHREZEERABUEE - AN _F-H
B ERERRENEERIBEEBZALEELTARNRESRERRLA BERERR
SEERLQR EBETEEEAR AT ML ER-

MEZEIREREEFRENENETER (—NMN\RFE-NNTEF) HREDEARLNE
2EARRERRE ([2BEARKRKRAR ) ZEAKNIBEFEER/TIEZEGNE (—h=
FE-NNELF) BEBELSEEARKKRAGRITE-

FRENMABERGRELZGRREGER BERRELHHEAERATCERE AR
MERBZER ATFFHELCERFZEER UREABLERERZEREARERMNR
BERZEGZE -THRERNBRMEREMERIBIERAR AR ZBIIFNTES MU
N AN BESRZ S A B EBRE W5 £ Yangtze China Investment Limited 2 3F#177 3 /&



20 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2011

Biographies of the Directors

E=HN

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho

SBS, OBE, JB BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., FHKIE, FIMechE, FCIBSE, FIEAust, FHKENg, FHKIoD (aged 65)

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (“Mr. LEUNG”) was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director in January 2008, re-designated as an Executive Director in October 2008 and appointed the
Managing Director of the Company in early January 2009. He is a member of the executive committee
of the Company, a trustee of the committee of trustees for employee share subscription scheme, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. LEUNG graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in

Engineering. He is a professional mechanical engineer, and is currently the deputy chairman of The

Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. LEUNG was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government

of HKSAR in 2009. Mr. LEUNG had served as the chairman of the Greater China Region of Hyder

Consulting Limited from 1995 to 2002. Mr. LEUNG is the chairman of the Energy Advisory Committee
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho and the chairman of the Process Review Panel of the Financial Reporting Council.

RE/AEE
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SBS, OBE, JP BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., FHKIE, FIMechE, FCIBSE, FIEAust, FHKENg, FHKIoD (6577 )
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Dr. Catherine CHU

BSc, MSc, PhD (aged 34)

Dr. Catherine CHU joined the Group in February 2009 and was appointed as an Executive Director on
11 September 2009. She is also a member of the executive committee of the Company and a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Catherine CHU is also an executive director and a member of executive committee of the board of

directors of Synergis. Dr. Catherine CHU has the overall responsibility for formulating and overseeing

the strategic development of the Group’s business operations and internal corporate functions.

Dr. Catherine CHU holds a PhD and Master degree from the London School of Economics in the

United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group, she had spent over 7 years working as a consultant and

researcher for a global management consulting firm and established corporations with main focus

in providing corporate strategy analysis and solution advisory services in the United Kingdom. Dr.

Dr. Catherine CHU Catherine CHU is the daughter of the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho who was the founder of Mission Hills

SEREL Group and the Non-executive Chairman of the Company up to 16 February 2011, and the sister of Dr.
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, a Non-executive Director of the Company.

hEEEL
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Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

FCCA, FCMIUK), FCPA, FHKMA, FHKIoD (aged 67)

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (“Mr. BUTTIFANT") was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 February
2008 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 19 March 2009 and then further re-
designated as an Executive Director on 26 April 2011. He is also a member of the executive committee
of the Company.

Mr. BUTTIFANT is a non-executive director of Synergis. Mr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, The Hong Kong Management Association and
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is an independent non-executive director of Giordano
International Limited and Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a non-executive director of China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc.,
which is currently listed on NASDAQ. He has been resident in Hong Kong for over 33 years.
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FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, FHKMA, FHKIoD (675
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Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

GBS, JP MBE (aged 60)

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (“Mr. LAM") was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in
August 2002. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM holds a Bachelor Degree from Tufts University in the United States of America. He has over
31 years of experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing director of Forward Winsome
Industries Limited which is engaged in toy manufacturing. Mr. LAM was awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the HKSAR in 2011. Mr. LAM is a member of National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. LAM also holds a number of other public and
community service positions including being a member of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong, the
chairman of Mega Events Funds Assessment Committee, a member of the board of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority, a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of Independent
Commission Against Corruption, a member of the Steering Committee on the Community Care Fund,
a council member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council and a general committee member of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. LAM is a board member of the Airport Authority
Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. LAM is an independent non-executive director of C C Land Holdings
Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited
and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

$BS, JP (aged 66)

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him (“Mr. SHEK") was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 23 January 2008. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. SHEK graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a degree of Bachelor of Arts. He is a
member of the Legislative Council for HKSAR representing the real estate and construction functional
constituency. Mr. SHEK was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of HKSAR in 2007.
He is a member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a member
of the Court of The University of Hong Kong, a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited and the vice chairman of Independent Police Complaints Council. He is also a chairman
Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him and an independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China Investments Limited. Mr. SHEK is
VT T LS a vice chairman and an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited, Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, Midas International Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, SJIM Holdings Limited, Titan Petrochemicals Group
Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited and Kosmopolito Hotels International Limited, all
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, which is the manager of Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust (“Champion REIT”), and Regal Portfolio Management Limited, which is the manager
of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (“Regal REIT”). Both Champion REIT and Regal REIT are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, ASA (aged 62)

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing (“Mr. MAK") was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 5 June 2009. He is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. MAK graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social Science.
Mr. MAK is an associate member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. MAK has over 31 years of experience in the taxation field.
He has extensive experience in Hong Kong corporate and individual tax planning and has assisted a
vast number of clients in South East Asia in developing effective tax strategies to minimize their tax
exposure in the region. As an expert in Hong Kong, United States and international taxation, Mr.
MAK is frequently invited to speak at tax seminars organized by various professional associations
and educational institutions. He is a frequent contributing author to various local and international
newspapers and professional journals. Mr. MAK was formerly an assessor with the Inland Revenue
Department. In July 2006, he joined Mazars Tax Services Limited (“Mazars”) as an executive director
and then became its managing director in January 2008. Before joining Mazars, Mr. MAK was the
partner of Ernst & Young in tax services and took an early retirement in January 2004 to pursue his
governorship of Rotary International District 3450 and also his own consulting business.

Currently, Mr. MAK is the treasurers of HSN1 Concern Group and The Hong Kong International Film
Festival Society Limited; a consultant of Hong Kong Professional Consultants Association; a member of
Tax SQ and SD Development Committee of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
School Management Committee of Hotung Secondary School. Previously, Mr. MAK had served as the
president of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; the vice chairman of Steering Committee of Hong
Kong Network of Virtual Enterprises; the governor of Rotary International District 3450; the chairman
of Practice Firm Steering Committee of Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi) and
District Rotary Foundation Committee of Rotary International District 3450; a treasurer of The Hong
Kong Road Safety Association and Senior Citizen Home Safety Association; a member of taxation
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts; a member of the Road Safety Council,
Joint Liaison Committee on Taxation, Hospital Authority Public Complaints Committee, Hospital
Governing Committee of Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon Hospital; and a part-time member of
Hong Kong Government'’s Central Policy Unit. Mr. MAK is also an independent non-executive director
of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

FEERE

BSoc.Sc, ATIHK, ASA (625%)

BELELE ([BAE DR - ZTNFEFANARBEZAABLIIENTES BAAARFERE
BgXF-

BERERBENBBAR FALENBEEL B - BAERRMNSHMAERBEREES
SR -ERAENUBRERONF LR WEBELEREARBERE LR LB
BAEREHLEFERAUBHERRE  FREVME L HIERLRERE - EREE EBR
B M ER  EAERBWEFETANEX RS RAERBMEN 2 MBI E LHRR
g EEERSEAEERRE R FERERTIRR - BEERNARBRZARE  FR_FF
NELAMABSERBERAR ([FE)BEATES RER_FT/\F-ARREERE
RIE-RIIABER BEEEBIOKEMEBARBEBIABA IR _STWHE—FHAF
RFPBRRALE RN BB R @m345000 @ 2 ETEAR KBS & 2 BM %R -

ERERF AHINBDIARBBBRREL MM EARABZAE  BEERBE IR 2 R
B BEGHMAEREERERREREnEREEG NIRRT EEREREZEG 2 E8-
RiBE BEERECEERBEGIR SAEBLEXERESRBGRAITR  BIFRIKEH3450
WRAE: EEEXHEFER (FR)EELEBEZE e RABRKHM0EKEES SR
REGZERE BERARBREGNRELERBHEZAE BESGHMASHBEEEERE:
BREZEFE HBBAHA/ M BiEERARKFEZES BERMERENEE R 28
BERLREGZKE  ARBBBRNTRABRKEF2BER BELETRRBRMEREHX
RERBERBER AR ZBLIENTES-



24 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2011

Senior Management Profile

BEEEAREY

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. BUCKLEY"), BSc (Civil, CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged
63, is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin Chong
Construction (Asia) Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. BUCKLEY
is the Executive Project Director of the construction management business of
the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 43 years of
experience in the field of building construction and civil engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi-keung (“Mr. CHIN"), BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, RPE., aged 53,
is a director and the Assistant General Manager (Building Construction) of Hsin
Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. CHIN is responsible
for the performance and day-to-day operational management of the Group's
building construction projects and managing the Contract Administration
Department and the Commercial Department in Hong Kong. He joined the Group
in 1994 and has over 29 years of experience in the field of structural design and
project management.

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung (“Mr. CHOI"), BS¢c, CEng, MICE, FHKIE, R.PE, aged 64,
is a director and the Assistant Managing Director of Hsin Chong Construction
Company Limited, Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for the building construction
and civil engineering business of the Group. Mr. CHOI joined the Group in 20009.
He is a registered professional engineer and has 42 years' experience in multi-
dimensional projects covering building, railway and infrastructure. Mr. CHOI has
been in senior executive positions with renowned contractors, developer and
railway organisations with operations in Hong Kong, the Chinese Mainland,
Taiwan and Macau.

Mr. Steve CHOW Wing-ping (“Mr. CHOW"), M4, BBA, aged 59, is the human
resources director of the Group. He is responsible for the human resources
planning and organisation development activities. Mr. CHOW joined the Group
in 2007. He has 22 years of executive experience in managing corporate
management functions, including human resources, training, administration
and customer services etc. Mr. Chow is the adjunct professor in MBA Center of
Shanghai and Wuhan Zhongnam University. He had been the associate consultant
to a number of management and service consultant firms.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. CLARKE"), MRICS, aged 52, is the Executive
Commercial Manager of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited and Hsin
Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries in Macau.
Mr. CLARKE joined the Group in 2004 and has over 31 years of experience in
providing commercial and technical support in the construction field.

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho-ning (“Mr. FUNG"), BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 59, is the Managing Director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. FUNG
has the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined
the Group in 2003 and has over 36 years of experience in the engineering
field as consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United
Kingdom and Australia. Before joining the Group, for over 16 years, Mr. FUNG
was engaged in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong
Kong before acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of
companies.
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Ms. Karin LAU Shu-ya (“Ms. LAU"), aged 38, joined the Group in November
2011 and is a director of commercial development of Hsin Chong Property
Development Limited. Ms. LAU has over 13 years of work experience in both
real estate and finance. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. LAU has worked for
leading developers such as Swire Properties Limited and Shui On Land Limited
in both Hong Kong and China. She has extensive property development and
management experience and has worked in strategy, business development,
branding, sales and marketing with a focus in mixed-used development. Of her
finance experience, Ms. LAU has worked for the corporate finance division of the
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited on various merger and
acquisition, corporate advisory and initial public offering assignments with a focus
in finance and real estate industries. Ms. LAU’s most recent role is Assistant Vice
President (Leasing and Marketing) at Asia Pacific Land. Ms. LAU has a bachelor
degree from University of British Columbia and an MBA from Cornell University.

Mr. James LEE Kok-foo (“Mr. James LEE"), BEng, MiEAust, MHKIE, aged 60, is a
director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin Chong Construction
(Asia) Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. James LEE is
responsible for the business development for the Building Division including
Design and Build Projects. He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 38 years
of experience in the field of electrical and mechanical engineering and building
construction management. Mr. James LEE was awarded the 1975 G.t. Murray
Memorial Award by the New Zealand Institution of Engineers for the Best Young
Engineer of the Year.

Ms. Fanny LEE Wing-lan (“Ms. LEE"), AlA, HKIA, LEED AP®, aged 49, joined
the Group in November 2011 and is a director of Planning and Design of Hsin
Chong Property Development Limited. Ms. LEE has over 20 years of professional
architectural design and management experience in large-scale mixed use
developments in the United States of America and Asia, including 15 years of
China project experience. During her tenure as Senior Associate Principal at
the renowned international design firm of Kohn Pederson Fox, Ms. LEE was
involved in various landmark developments in China for prominent developers
including the 480-meter International Commerce Centre in Hong Kong, mixed-
use commercial developments in the Shanghai Xintiandi precinct and the large
scale residential and commercial mixed use master plan in Zhenru, Shanghai. From
2008 to 2009, as Managing Director — China of Aedas Ltd., one of the largest
architectural practices globally, Ms. LEE was responsible for managing its China
operation. Ms. LEE is a licensed architect in the State of California in the United
States of America and in Hong Kong, and is a LEED AP®. She is a past president of
the Hong Kong Chapter of the American Institute of Architects and a member of
the executive committee of the North Asia Council of the Urban Land Institute.

Mr. Paul LEE Kai-hung (“Mr. Paul LEE"), BEng, MASc, PEng, MAPEO, CEng, MICE, R.PE.,
MHKIE, aged 55, is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin
Chong Construction (Asia) Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group. Mr. Paul LEE joined
the Group in 2010. He is a registered professional engineer and has more than 31
years’ experience in civil engineering and building construction. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a senior executive with a leading Hong Kong contractor.

Mr. Terence LEUNG Siu-cheong (“Mr. LEUNG"), BSc, MHKIE, MCIOB, MHKICM,
ACIArb, RPE, aged 46, is a director and the General Manager of Hsin Chong
Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited, and Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering)
Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LEUNG is responsible for
the business development & project monitoring of all addition and alteration
works, renovation works, fitting-out works, conservation and revitalization works,
and special projects. He joined the Group in 1990 to 1992 as graduate building
engineer and rejoined in 2003. He has over 24 years of experience in project
planning & monitoring, building construction and coordination, cost control,
renovation and fitting-out works.
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Mr. Maximus LI Kai-man (“Mr. LI”), aged 53, joined the Group in November
2011 and is a Managing Director of Hsin Chong Property Development Limited.
Mr. LI brings with him 30 years of extensive management experience in both
the public and private sectors. He has served in the Hong Kong Government
Administrative Service holding various senior positions in the areas of district
administration, social welfare, civil service management, and industry and
technology development. His last public service appointment was Director of
Administration & Finance in the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation Secretariat.
Since 1994, Mr. LI has held several senior positions such as Senior Vice President
of China Investment Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Henderson Group in Hong
Kong, General Manager of Shui On Land Limited and subsequently promoted
to executive director, and as executive vice president of Pacific Star Group. Mr. LI
graduated from The University of Hong Kong and was also educated at Leeds
University, UC Berkeley, and Harvard University.

Mr. LUl Chun-pong (“Mr. LUI"), BA, MAcc, LLM, MBA(Executive), FCPA, FCCA,
ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS, aged 43, is the Group Financial Controller. Mr. LUI
is responsible for overseeing the finance and accounting operations, budget
preparation, group financial control and cashflow management. He joined the
Group in 2010 and has over 21 years of experience in corporate accounting,
financing and tax planning.

Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS (“Mr. MYRANS"), BEng, CEng, FICE, MiStructe, MHKIE,
aged 55, is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin
Chong Construction (Asia) Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
MYRANS is the General Manager (Civil Engineering) and is responsible for the civil
engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong. Mr. MYRANS joined the
Group in 2008 and has over 33 years experience in the field of civil engineering.

Mr. Baile SIAW Kee-hock (“Mr. SIAW"), BSc, CPEng, MiFAust, aged 61, is a director
of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, Hsin Chong Construction (Asia)
Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for providing
contract services supports, including plant, land surveying, quality assurance,
environmental, health and safety, to the operating sites of the Group. Mr. SIAW
joined the Group in 1978 and has over 37 years of experience in the field of
concrete industry, foundations construction and construction plant management.
He is a council member of the Governing Council of the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency.

Mr. YAM Kong (“Mr. YAM"), RPE, FHKIE, FIET, FIRSE, aged 59, is a director and
the General Manager of HCCG China Holdings Limited. He is responsible for the
operation and business developments of the Group's transportation infrastructure
and building business in the Chinese Mainland and overseas. Mr. YAM joined
the Group in 2008. He is a registered professional engineer and has over 34
years of experience in the transportation industry mainly in railway and metro
systems. Before joining the Group, Mr. YAM has been in executive positions of
consulting companies responsible for managing the consultancy operation as well
as exploring investment opportunities for transportation infrastructure projects in
China and overseas. Mr. YAM also worked in many different countries including
Canada, UK, Australia, Far East countries and the Chinese Mainland.

Mr. Edward YUEN Siu-bun (“Mr. YUEN"), MBA, MSc, CPA, aged 51, is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for the overall management of
the Group's finance and accounting function. Mr. YUEN joined the Group in
2009. He has 29 years of working experience in finance, accounting, treasury
and securitization for both multinational and local companies. Outside of work,
Mr. YUEN is a marathon runner and serves in committees of various non-profit
organizations.

FERXEE ([ZFRIXEAE]) RFESBR KT ——F
T—AMARER AFEMERERERATIZESAK
B EMXAEENEARMALLHBHIHE=TFNE
FERER - HEREESFERTBERR  EEET
BHEEf ABEEE UNTERBEERE T EE
T2 EEHEBAL - BET2E&E—DABATKREES
EMABWERZ TR ETBMER -8 — LN HFR =
R4 B EAESES R flnRESBEEERE 2
BRAITRITREEBAR AR ZSREIGE KB IE
BRATEEIE BB EH AWMITES - WHETPacific Star
GroupZ TR, - ZRIACEBERBBASE LB
HEREBZAZ - EFTMINBRRKAERIRFEAS

BIRFEE ([ 254 ) 'BA, MAc LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA,
FCCA, ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS * IR TFA3R% - AAEE 54
B -mtABaEEEY BRI EE REBEE £EH
BEERESERE FR - —TFENMAREE WHEE
BAVFEE WS AHERE &%

Richard Anthony MYRANSSE4E ([MYRANSZE A ) -~ 8eng,
CEng, FICE, MiStructf, MHKIE * 3R 5555 BT & & EMAR A
AEEER (DM BRARERAAG S THEBEAG
ZEH MYRANSSE A RALIR (HARTIR) - WEBBEARE
EREBZ T RTIZER - MYRANSE AR — T N\ 41
AREE W HABBFTRTRER-

WK ([BILE]) s CPeng MiEAust * RF615R &
MELEMBERAR HELEM (M ERDARE
RRABETHBRARIZES HASREGCHURBIETA
EE I  BIEEMERE  TihilE  RERE R
B RENLE - BAER—NENFNAKREER I
BER7FNERLITE EARBEREREEREIBLR
HEEEREREREERES-

EiI%E ([EREL)  REE, FHKIE FET ARSE » TRF595%, » A
FEEETRIERERAFIZEERMALE FAELAE
BRPBA RSN RBEGEEEBFER 2 EE
NMEBRBER - TEER_ZEZN\FEMARES 1A
EE TR WHBERTITHEEA 34T UK M EE
B R AT 2% - RINAREBR - T £ LR R
NEEETRER BETRZARARZEARRATREK
BINABRBERERBESHRERB TLEENENS
ETRBER I SiEneR  HE BN ZRERUK
AR A3

PregmtsetE ([Grdcd]) -mBa Msc cra BBES1BR  BANE
EEEYSREE HAREEASEEE KRS HE
BREE B AR ST NFNMARED - B BEE KA
REEEBIFY S @it BEBREEEH 2 THER
BoBRIETSEARIN tEENA—RBENNEF I
BEZHEIEETIMIBEZZEEKE -



201 £ HELEERBERAT 27

el

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Organisations are driven by their core values which for the Company, integrity
is the most important core value. Since 1995, the Company has published and
distributed its Corporate Code of Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce
the Company’s commitment to the highest standards of business ethics and the
seriousness with which the Board treats such matters. The Corporate Code of
Conduct is a living document and periodically updated to incorporate comments
and suggestions from the Independent Commission Against Corruption and the
other regulating authorities in Hong Kong.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has applied the
principles in and complied with the code provisions and certain recommended
best practices set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors,
Executive Committee Members and Senior Management
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its
own code of conduct for regulating securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines for
regulating securities transactions by the senior management (whose names
appear in the annual report of the Company). The Board believes that the
senior management may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company and/or its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”). Having made specific enquiry of all the senior
management, the Company was advised that all of them have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Board of Directors

Composition

The Board is currently comprised of 8 directors, including 4 executive directors, 1
non-executive director and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Non-executive Chairman
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho (resigned on 16 February 2011)
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (appointed as chairman on 17 February 2011)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai (Executive Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (Managing Director)

Dr. Catherine CHU

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Independent Non-executive Directors
Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including sports,
leisure, hospitality, property development, construction, manufacturing, trading
and finance related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills,
expertise and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Group which helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as
disclosed in the Biographies of the Directors set out on pages 18 to 23 of this
annual report and the facts that Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, the non-executive
chairman, is the brother of Dr. Catherine CHU, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.

The Company currently has 3 independent non-executive directors representing
more than one-third of the total number of Board members and is in compliance
with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the
independent non-executive directors carry weight in the Board's decisions, and
their participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and act
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has given to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing, chairman of
the audit committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management
expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the independent non-executive
directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.

EXE

Rk

E=XgRAAN\REFEN BREOERTES — &
FERTEER=RBUIFNTES-

BREFURHEIWT

FFERITLE
K EEL (KRB ——F B +REFE)
KBEEL (R B——F A +LREZERER)

HITEE
IREBEE (FEFHTE)
REBRSLE (EFALE)
REBEL
ERLEE

BUHBTTEE
aNEs =S
AL LE
BEEKE

EXeXBREBEED KB BEEX DEER 2&
X HEX EFREMBHBTESTIRTEREXS
= ABIERE BENBELR EANEELAEHE
ZEG FREBUKINBERL S EEEERS - RNAF
BEBHEBEMBEZTREEMREE  AKIFHITER
ARRELIARERBLZNIN EFTEKRE ZHLE
BA1%

ARARBAMHAB=RFEIFNTES HEST2HKE
W=z —AEREHAE EMRAIE3 0K ZFR - BL
FHTEZCERNEFERRPRARE S REEY
EESTERHE  (FHTERE RIRET A AR A EERR
REBMGE 2178

BB T ESCIRE LRSI 3EREB
AAARWERFEREEMER - NARIR BT A B IENIT
EEEBE -EUAXYABIALT BRZEESIRFES
REEAE EMRAIEIN0GIREMS 2 EE 2T R
BEBER-

BEEg KB (BEMBBIIIFNTER ZHR) T HE
BN EREARARRESER 2 BEBAP -



Board of Directors (continued)

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its primary
functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group; business plans; annual
budgets; significant capital expenditure; interim and annual results and reports;
dividend policy and payments; material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals; directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal; and other
material transactions.

Board Chairman, Deputy Chairman and the Managing Director

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin was appointed as non-executive chairman on 17
February 2011, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai is the executive deputy chairman,
and Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho is the managing director of the Company.
They are not related to each other and there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The
Board chairman, with the assistance of executive deputy chairman, provides
leadership to the Board in terms of formulating policies and strategies,
and discharges those duties set out in all the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices under code provision A.2 of the CG Code. The
managing director of the Company has the overall responsibility of implementing
the decisions, policies and strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing the
Group's business and operations. The duties of the executive deputy chairman
and the managing director are set out in their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

With the support from the executive directors and the company secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-
election and removal of the directors of the Company. The Board resolved on
13 December 2011 to set up a nomination committee to recommend the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the Company.

All the non-executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company
have entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two
years subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the
Company, including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or
standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group's business affairs.

Board members will also be provided with updates on any changes to the rules
and regulations, including but not limited to the Listing Rules, from time to time.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting will be sent at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice will be given for other Board meetings. The
company secretary assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice
and agenda. Each director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda,
accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent
to each director not less than 3 days before the date of a Board meeting to enable
the directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent
ad hoc matter.

The company secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to directors for comment
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the company secretary and open for inspection to any director on request.

All directors of the Company have access to the company secretary who is
responsible to ensure that Board procedures are complied with and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information, including reports from the Board committees and reports
from the management. They are also provided with updates on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes
and matters of relevance to the directors in discharging their duties as and when
appropriate.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures and circulated them to all directors to follow in the case any director
wishes to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
Company'’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight
timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In
the case resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory
materials will also be provided to the directors at the same time. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, directors passed five sets of resolutions in writing were
circulated to the directors for approval. These written resolutions were tabled
for the directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that directors
were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the relevant
matters.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before
any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged
to protect the directors and officers of the Group.

Attendances of Meetings

6 Board meetings, 2 audit committee meetings and 2 remuneration and
nomination committee (subsequently renamed as remuneration committee on 13
December 2011) meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2011.
Attendances of these meetings by directors are set out below:
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Meetings attended / Eligible to attend

HE BERHE
Remuneration and

Audit Nomination
Directors Board Committee Committee
E= EEg EZXZAY FHMEREZEAY
Non-executive Chairman FENTTEE
David CHU Shu-ho FRiES 0/0 n/a n/a
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin PN L 6/6 172 na
Executive Deputy Chairman EHEEE
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai FHE 6/6 n/a 212
Executive Directors HITEFE
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho RER 6/6 n/a n/a
Catherine CHU KER 6/6 n/a n/a
Barry John BUTTIFANT =5 6/6 n/a n/a
Independent Non-executive Directors — B FF#l 772 F
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung BN iEs 6/6 22 212
Abraham SHEK Lai-him VLT 6/6 n/a 212
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing BEEE 6/6 212 n/a

1 Dr. David CHU Shu-ho resigned as the Non-executive Chairman with effect from 16 February
2011.

2 Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin was appointed as the Non-executive Chairman with effect from
17 February 2011.

n/a  not applicable “~iE 3
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Board Committees

Five Board committees, namely, the executive committee, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee (established on 13
December 2011) and the committee of trustees for employee share subscription
scheme, are established pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, each of which is to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and oversees particular aspect
of the Group's affairs. Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the
Company'’s bye-laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable,
the proceedings of Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Board is currently comprised of 5 members,
namely, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho, Dr.
Catherine CHU, Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung
(director of certain major subsidiaries of the Group).

The primary duties of the executive committee are to approve any matters within
the normal scope of business of the Company, banking matters, issue of shares
under any share schemes of the Company, and administrative issues of routine
nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a view to assisting the Board
to discharge partially its executive functions. The authority and duties of the
executive committee are set out in its specific written terms of reference.

The executive committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members’ attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
executive committee held 36 meetings to discharge their duties.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee (formerly known as remuneration and nomination
committee) of the Board is currently comprised of Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-
him (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-
fung (independent non-executive director) and Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai as
members.

The Board resolved on 13 December 2011 to rename the remuneration and
nomination committee to the remuneration committee to separate the function
of remuneration and nomination to comply with the new code provision of
the CG Code which takes effect in 2012. The authority and duties of the
remuneration committee are set out in its specific written terms of reference. Full
text of the said specific written terms of reference has been posted on to the
Company'’s website.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) to conduct review of the remuneration policy and procedures regarding the
Company'’s directors’ and senior management’s compensation;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
all remuneration of the directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on such remuneration;

(i) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all the executive
directors and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of the non-executive directors;

(iv)  to review and determine performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(v)  to review and approve the compensation payable to the executive directors
and senior management in connection with any loss or termination of office
or appointment;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct; and

(vii) to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service contract
of director that requires shareholders approval under the Listing Rules.

The remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the committee held 2 committee meetings and
passed two sets of resolutions in writing to discharge their duties. Attendances of
the meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group comprises Synergis Holdings Limited (stock code 02340) (“Synergis”)
which is a non wholly-subsidiary listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Owing to its separately listing status and different nature of the business,
Synergis’ remuneration review process is managed separately and is responsible
to set its own human resources policies to reward staff of Synergis and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Synergis Group”). However, the key functions and
accountabilities of the two remuneration committees for both companies are
similar. The human resources policies adopted by Syenrgis for the year ended 31
December 2011 are disclosed in its annual report for year 2011.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Policy of the Group (continued)

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of remuneration package are consisted of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in share option and share subscription schemes and long-term
rewards.

The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the respective
remuneration committees and determined by the respective boards of directors
(and in the case of directors’ fees, subject to respective shareholders’ approval
in general meetings) except that no director or any of his associates is allowed
to make recommendation on or determine his own remuneration package.
Director’s remuneration is determined by reference to each director’s duties and
responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall performance of the respective
company and the Group and the prevailing market situation and competitive in
the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are recommended
by the managing directors of the respective company and determined by the
remuneration committees and approved by the Boards by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the managing directors.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to the directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to their own), reviewed
by respective remuneration committees and approved by respective boards of
directors.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
director of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements on page 110 of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board is comprised of Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-
wing (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-
fung (independent non-executive director) and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (non-
executive director) as members. None of the audit committee members are or
have ever been a partner of the existing audit firm engaged by the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The audit committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

() appraising the quality of the audit work of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serving as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(iiiy  ascertaining the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal control
which management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serving as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.

The duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific written terms of
reference. Full text of such updated specific written terms of reference has been
posted on to the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company'’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports as
prescribed in the specific written terms of reference; and reviewing the Company'’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk management systems. The
audit committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity within its duties
and responsibilities and the authority to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The audit committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended 31
December 2011, 2 audit committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.

During the audit committee meetings held in 2011, the audit committee had
reviewed, with the participation of the internal and external auditors and the
management, the interim and annual results and the related financial statements
of the Company with a view to ensuring that these financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles and standards generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The audit committee had also considered the reports
from the external auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review of
the interim and annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee’s view on
re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuing year at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Board is currently comprised of Hon. Jeffrey
LAM Kin-fung (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Hon. Abraham
SHEK Lai-him (independent non-executive director) and Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-
wai as members.

The authority and duties of the nomination committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of such updated specific written terms of
reference has been posted on to the Company’'s website.

The nomination committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nomination suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

(i) toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group's
corporate strategy;,

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive.

Committee of Trustees for Employee Share Subscription Scheme

The committee of trustees for employee share subscription scheme (the “2002
Share Scheme”) was established pursuant to the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme
adopted by the Company on 23 August 2002. The said committee is currently
comprised of Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho and
Mr. James LEE Kok-foo as trustees to discharge the duties.

The duties of this committee as approved by the Board include (i) administering
and carrying out of the provisions of the 2002 Share Scheme and authorising the
issuance of share certificates under the seal of the Company; and (i) acting as
custodian of the funds contributed by the participating employees for the purpose
of subscribing on behalf of those participating employees shares of the Company.
As this committee is mainly dealt with the 2002 Share Scheme, this committee
will be dissolved after the lapse of the 2002 Share Scheme in 2012.
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Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans
and strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led
primarily by the managing director of the Company. The management committee
for the Group's operations comprising key senior executives was established
and is chaired by the executive deputy chairman of the Company, to oversee
the achievement of the Group’s operations. The management committee
holds regular meetings to review and discuss the Group's performance against
budget, business strategy, operational issues, and matters relating to corporate
services including human resources, corporate communications, and information
technology. Other management meetings, which are chaired by the managing
director of the Company, are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-
day operations and performance of individual business divisions.

Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the Company, working together with the
estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise continuously
review, discuss and approve the various business proposals submitted.

Policy for Financial Risk Management

The Group adopted a revised policy statement on authorisation and approval
of financial transactions, involving the assessment, booking and monitoring
of financial instruments to hedge exposures to financial risks and in particular,
liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk, with a view to further
strengthening the financial risk management.

Internal Audiit

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal construction and
construction related operation and its property management operation, forming
part of its ongoing effort to focus on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to
the management'’s concern for the likely problem areas due to their distinctive
business nature. Internal audit adopts a risk and control based audit approach.
The work plans of internal audit are reviewed and endorsed by the respective
audit committees. Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of
internal controls for business operations and corporate functions of the Group
are performed on a regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings
and recommendations for improvements are submitted to the respective audit
committees for review.
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Delegation to Management

Technical Audit

The technical audit function is overseen by the contracts services department,
which is independent of site operations, aiming at enhancing the production of
quality and error free products in the production process. The technical audit work
plan is also formulated by the contracts services department, and the results of the
technical audit together with any recommendation for improvement are reported
to the relevant project director and executive management for necessary action.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group's internal control system and
the assessment and management of risk. In meeting its responsibility, the Board
has defined a management structure with limits of authority that helps achieve
the business objectives; safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information; and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. Such management structure is regularly reviewed to accommodate
the refined business objectives and changing market conditions. The Board also
aims at increasing the risk awareness across the Group’s business operations and
hence has put in place policies and procedures that provide a framework for the
identification and management of risk.

Divisional and functional directors are responsible for overseeing their own
business operations and administrative functions respectively. Proper authorisation
procedures are put in place for the approval of significant projects and major
capital investments. Budgets must be approved before adoption and will be
reviewed and monitored regularly. Proper controls are in place for recording
complete, accurate and timely accounting and management information.

The internal audit and technical audit functions described above also represent
two key components of the internal control system of the Group. The internal
audit function provides an independent assurance to the Board and the executive
management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group on an on-going basis.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through discussion
with the audit committee on audit findings and control issues. These procedures
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the
support of the accounting and finance functions led by the chief financial officer
and the financial controller of the Group, the directors have ensured that the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied consistently
save for those new and amended accounting standards as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. To the best of knowledge of the
directors, there is no uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the directors aim
at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the directors to
make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company'’s financial statements,
is set out on pages 67 to 68 of this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’'s external
auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out as
follows:
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
and press releases, updates on the Group's developments are also provided on the
Company'’s website stated below which is updated on a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are welcome through
the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(v)  on the Company's website at http:/Amwww.hsinchong.com under “Inquiries”

Annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days together with
detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general meeting of the
Company. Separate resolution is proposed at annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of each individual director.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served
to the Board or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.
The chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant
general meeting.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the "Directors”) of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) have pleasure in submitting to
the shareholders their report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’'s subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment, provision of construction/project management
consultancy services, and provision of property and facility management services.
The provision of property and facility management services is undertaken by
Synergis Holdings Limited (”Synergis”) (stock code : 02340), a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company listed separately on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). Particulars of the
Company'’s principal subsidiaries and associated companies are set out in notes
45 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and particulars of
its jointly controlled entities are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 69; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 70 and the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2011 are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet and Company balance sheet on page 71 and page 72 respectively.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 (HK3.0 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2010). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on Monday, 25 June 2012 to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the registers of members of the Company on Friday, 8
June 2012.

Together with the interim cash dividend of HK3.5 cents per share already paid,
total dividends for the year will amount to HK6.0 cents per share (2010: HK6.0
cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 27% (2010: 30%) on the earnings
for the financial year.

* for identification purposes only £ {74 5/
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Results and Appropriations (continued)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the registers of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
4 June 2012 to Friday, 8 June 2012, both days inclusive (Hong Kong time), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend (subject to members’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting), all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 June 2012
(Hong Kong time). The principal share registrars of the Company is Butterfield
Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited at Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road,
Pembroke, HM08, Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
74 and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years/period and for the year ended 31 December 2011
is set out on page 151. This summary does not form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Properties
A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2011 is set out on page 156.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$462,631,000 (2010: HK$205,191,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws") although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2011 and up
to the date of this report were:

Non-executive Chairmen
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho (resigned on 16 February 2011)
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (appointed as chairman on 17 February 2011)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai (Executive Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (Managing Director)

Dr. Catherine CHU

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (re-designated on 26 April 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

The brief biographical details of the directors of the Company who are in office as
at the date of this report are set out on pages 18 to 23 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him,
Dr. Catherine CHU and Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing shall retire by rotation
but, being eligible, have offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
2012 annual general meeting of the Company. Save for the aforesaid, the other
remaining directors of the Company would continue in office.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all the independent non-executive
directors are independent in accordance with the terms of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors of the Company offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting of the Company have entered
into a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

a)

b)

A general business service agreement dated 10 December 2009 was
entered into between the Company and Synergis for the provision of
property and facility management services, the cleaning services and the
miscellaneous services by relevant members of Synergis group to relevant
members of the Group (excluding any member of Synergis).

A tenancy agreement dated 17 December 2010 had been entered into
between Deventer Limited (“Deventer”), a subsidiary of the Company,
as landlord and Synergis Management Services Limited (“SMS”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Synergis, as tenant for leasing of office premises
and parking spaces.

Synergis is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the late Dr.
David CHU Shu-ho, the non-executive chairman of the Company up to 16
February 2011, was the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
and Synergis. Therefore, the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho had a material
interest in such agreements up to 16 February 2011.

An agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 15 December 2010 made between
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synergis and PS Hong Kong Limited (now
known as Hsin Chong Property Development Limited) (“HCPD") in relation
to the provision of consultancy services by HCPD.

HCPD was a company indirectly and beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, the executive deputy chairman of the Company
and Synergis, up to 25 November 2011. The Company announced that
on 27 July 2011 to acquire, among others, the entire issued share capital
of HCPD. The transaction was completed on 25 November 2011 and
HCPD became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As such, Mr.
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai had a material interest in the Agreement up to 25
November 2011.

Save as disclosed above, there were no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:
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R-FE——F+_A=1—R REIFHFIAEE ([F
FREBE G ) EI2GARBATFE 2B CTMARE
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REFLEIRGRIEFARGZIFE
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Number of underlying issued share
Name of director Capacity shares held shares held Total capital
HE=T
BRZ BHzH BEz
EEER 13 Bin&HE Bir&HE #it R#HERESH
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FF&ED) (Bf&E2)
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
KRB BEHEERAA
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Beneficial owner 20,000,000 5,000,000 25,000,000 2.64%
FRE Emfia A
Interest of controlled corporations 143,000,000 901,444,444  1,044,444,444 110.37%
A EER (Note 3)
(PfF7E3)
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho Beneficial owner 2,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 0.53%
REH EmfAA
Catherine CHU Beneficial owner 790,000 2,000,000 2,790,000 0.29%
K& EmEAA
Barry John BUTTIFANT Beneficial owner - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.34%
KA EmfiE A
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
NGz BEmEBA
Abraham SHEK Lai-him Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
AigH EmfAA
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%

Lt
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

(1) Except for 901,444,444 underlying shares held by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai as disclosed
under note (3), the interests in the underlying shares represented share options granted
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 May 2008. Details of
share option granted are set out below:

ESRITHRAEKRELFREEABREZEZ
R HRBRMREFIRACESRRR

(%)

RERFRGRIEBHRGEZIHFE

(%8)
ffat

M

B P RE (3)FT 45 BB £ 248 SE AR PR A H0901,444, 4445 AR BA RS () 1
@ R P EE 2B DERBARAR 2T N\FH
A+ = R REER Bl 2 SRR - 0 2 R
BT

Number of
options held as at

Name of directors 31 December 2011 Exercise per share Exercisable period

R-E——F T

+ZA=+—H BRITER (dd/mm/yyyy)

EEE8 HHBRENE (HKS & #T) (8/B/%)

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 — 22/05/2018
R

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 2,500,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018

THE 2,500,000 213 01/01/2010 - 22/05/2018

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 — 22/05/2018

RER 1,000,000 1.29 30/09/2011 — 31/08/2021

1,000,000 1.29 30/09/2012 — 31/08/2021

Catherine CHU 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2011 - 03/12/2019

KEA 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2012 — 03/12/2019

Barry John BUTTIFANT 1,200,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018

£ 1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2012 — 25/04/2021

1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2013 — 25/04/2021

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
Mg

Abraham SHEK Lai-him 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 — 22/05/2018
A8k

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
HEER

(2)  There were 946,349,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2011. 2 ARARZZE——F+_A=Z=+—HZEBTKRHA

(3)  Pursuant to two agreements both dated 27 July 2011 entered into by Perfect Mark
Investments Limited (now known as Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited) (“HCPHL"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with, among others, Neo Summit Limited (“Neo
Summit”), a company controlled by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai to acquire two land sites
at a total consideration of HK$3,248 million. The Company issued 143,000,000 shares and
convertible bonds in the principle amount of HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration
for a land site in Tieling, Liaoning Province, China on 18 November 2011. The convertible
bonds are convertible into a maximum of 496,215,686 shares at an initial conversion price
of HK$1.53 per share. The Company will further issue a maximum 405,228,758 shares of
the Company as part of the consideration upon completion of another land site. Mr. Wilfred
WONG Ying-wai is deemed to be interested in these underlying shares under Part XV of the
SFO.

* for identification purposes only 1€ 44 5/

946,349,662/ °

RIEAR AT 2B WA H B A APerfect Mark Investments Limited
(38 EHsin Chong Property Holdings Limited 7 2 EE 32 B A R &
7)) ([#aEsER]) & (EFREE) Neo Summit Limited#7 1
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations (continued)
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(%)

Long positions in the debentures of the Company RELFIBEHFHE
Approximate
percentage of
interest
Amount of Number of in the issued
Name of director Capacity debenture underlying shares share capital
HERTRFZ
EEns S "HEeE HHERRR I B @HHhEsast
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Interest of controlled corporation HK$759,210,000 496,215,686 52.43%
THE SPEEE R 75#759,210,0007T
Note: B 5 :

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by HCPHL with Neo Summit on 27 July 2011 to acquire the
land site in Tieling, Liaoning Province, China, the Company issued convertible bonds in the principle
amount of HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration to Neo Summit. The convertible bonds
are convertible into a maximum of 496,215,686 shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per
share. Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in these debentures under Part XV of the SFO.

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated
corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, Dr. Catherine CHU and
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT has the following interests in Synergis:

BIEFTEERRENEN T ——FL A+t ARKEPEES
BEEAMATET LM AR A1 TS 5 AE%759,210,0007T 2
AR ES  ERMETE S MR EBMH R E - RREF ARV P H %R
(BEERR B 5370 5 A5 %496,215,68618 18 15 - IRIEEH R EFE 1§
BIEXVED FAREWBRARZEBESF P HER ER-

RERFHEREBZRERIEARRZIE

RIB——F+-RA=+—H FREEE KRREL
RBEHRAEENFEBTETRHEE AT EE

Number of

Number of share options Percentage of

Name of directors Capacity shares held outstanding Total shareholding

BEZ RITHEE 11123

E=xE 513 40 g =] EEREnE B B

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Beneficial owner 14,420,000 2,000,000 16,420,000 4.95%
THE BEHEBAA

Catherine CHU Beneficial owner - 900,000 900,000 0.27%
KRR BHEAA

Barry John BUTTIFANT Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%

2N BHEEA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short EFERITHR#BRFLFIREMABEEZ
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and B3 -{IRBRRREBESFPFHEZRERNE
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated (%)

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated W& 2 EI#BEZEZRHEBIHFR G IFE (&)
corporations of the Company (continued)
Details of share options held: R 2 IBIRRERES -

Number of Exercise price

Name of directors share options held per share Exercisable period
BRITHER iTER

(HKS$) (dd/mm/yyyy)

EEER BERRENE (BRT) (B/B/%)
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 400,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
THE 400,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015

400,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015

400,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015

Catherine CHU 180,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
PN 180,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015

180,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015

180,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015

Barry John BUTTIFANT 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
E5 IR 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the directors and chief B FXEEEIN R-_ZE——F+-_HA=+—H &1
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions TR EZ RITHAEAHIKE 7 HEAMERARNATSHE
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its  {F{a]fBE#AE (F & BHEHF RS IEN EXVER) 2 %M
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded  fBEARX D REH  # A (M EZRSOX A ML B IR &
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO A5 R HR & (& A F35216 AN A RAT1FE 2 S0 MR sk
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange 15 {Z*#<rBIZE B F1AR A T LB RS o

pursuant to the Model Code.



Share Option Schemes

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 22
May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme,
the directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant options to eligible persons (as
defined in the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia,
any employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company or its subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of
the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme

The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
("Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

()

(©

(d)

(e)

Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(iii)  the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the

beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary

objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares available for further grant of options
under the 2008 Option Scheme (together with Shares to be alloted
under the 2002 Share Scheme described below) shall not exceed
62,999,966 Shares, representing approximately 6.66% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

()

(@)

(h)

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i)  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) soREHERTE ()
2008 Option Scheme (continued) —EE/NFEZRENE (BF)
(2) Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme 2 —ZEN\ERREFETZEF
Details of movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during NZEENFRREFE TRBRERERNZEEH R
the year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year REVRERZ RITERREFIBLAT -
are as follows:
Number of Number of
share Changes during the year share
options ERZEH options
held as at held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January Exercised 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2011 Granted (Note) Lapsed Cancelled 2011 per share Exercisable period
RZB——F
RI8—% +ZR
-A-H =+-A
BRZIR } BREZ ] _
BHEALER RHHAM L i fifE %% il A BRITER TR
(ddfmmdyyyy) (HKS) (ddimm/yyyy)
(B/R/%) i) (BH%7T) (B/R/%)
Directors
Ex
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 23/05/2008 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
THER 23/05/2008 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 213 01/01/2010 - 22/05/2018
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
RER 101272008 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 0.60 31/12/2010- 09/12/2018
01/09/22011 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 129 30/09/2011 - 31/08/2021
01/0922011 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021
Catherine CHU 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 1.02 04/12/2010- 03122019
KER 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2011 - 0312/2019
04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2012 - 031122019
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
xaR
Barry John BUTTIFANT 23/05/2008 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
2N 26/04/2011 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2012 - 25/04/2021
26/04/2011 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2013 - 25/04/2021
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
s
Abraham SHEK Lai-him 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
RigR
Alexander MAK Kwal-wing 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2010- 03122019
EER
Ex-director
HEES
CHAN Ka-kui 23/05/2008 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - - 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
BRE5
Employees 23/05/2008 5,333,330 - - (333333) - 4,999,997 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
&R 23/05/2008 5,333,331 - - (333,333) - 4,999,998 213 01/01/2010 - 22/05/2018
(in aggregate) 23/05/2008 5,000,005 - - - - 5,000,005 213 01/01/2011 - 22/052018
(#51) 04/12/2009 2,749,997 - (2,326,000) - - 423,997 1.02 04/12/2010-03/12/2019
04/12/2009 2,750,000 - - - - 2,750,000 1.02 04/12/2011 - 031122019
04/12/2009 2,750,003 - - - - 2,750,003 1.02 04/12/2012 - 031122019
01/09/2011 - 166,666 - - - 166,606 129 30/09/2011 - 31/08/2021
01/09/2011 - 916,667 - - - 916,667 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021
01/09/2011 - 916,667 - - - 916,667 129 30/09/2013 - 31/08/2021
01/09/2011 - 750,000 - - - 750,000 129 30/09/2014 - 31/08/2021
41,116,666 6,750,000 (4,326,000) (2,666,666) - 40,874,000
Note: fEsT -
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the respective exercise SRR T B B Z BTHY IR LU T (B A 1R 68T ©

dates of the options was HK$1.68.



Share Option Schemes (continued)

Synergis Share Option Scheme

A Synergis Share Option Scheme (the “Synergis Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders of Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme, the board of
directors of Synergis (the “Synergis Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, make
an offer to grant share option to any person belonging to any of the following
classes of participants to subscribe for Synergis Shares.

(1) Summary of the Synergis Option Scheme

(@) Purpose of the Synergis Option Scheme
The Synergis Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognising
and motivating the contribution of the Synergis Eligible Persons (as
defined below) to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any
Synergis Invested Entity (as defined below).

(b)

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme
Synergis Eligible Persons entitled to participate in the Synergis Option
Scheme (" Synergis Eligible Persons”) include:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or any
of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (“Synergis Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity and any employee
employed or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC");

any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity;

any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested
Entity who has, in the opinion of the Synergis Board, made
contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Synergis Invested Entity;
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)
(v) any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture
or business partner, or technical, financial, legal and other
professional advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity;

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors

or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries

or any Synergis Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the

Synergis Board, made contribution to the business growth of

Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Synergis Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary

objects) of which includes any of the abovementioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Synergis Option Scheme, the share
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or
more of the above Synergis Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of Synergis Shares available for issue under
the Synergis Option Scheme

The maximum number of Synergis Shares available for further grant
of share options under the Synergis Option Scheme shall not exceed
28,400,000 Synergis Shares, representing 8.55% of the issued share
capital of Synergis at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Synergis Eligible Person under
the Synergis Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Synergis Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of Synergis Shares already issued to such Synergis Eligible
Person under all the share options previously granted to him/her
which have been exercised and, issuable to him/her under all the
share options previously granted to him/her which are for the time
being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the share capital
of Synergis in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
being approved by the shareholders of Synergis in general meeting.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)
(d) Maximum entitlement of each Synergis Eligible Person under

(e

)

the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)

Where any proposed grant of share option to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in
the Synergis Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted (including share options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
Synergis Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
Synergis Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets on the date of the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0
million, such proposed grant of share option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of Synergis in general meeting
in which all connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if
any) (except where any connected person intends to vote against
the proposed grant of share option and his/her intention to do
so has been stated in the circular) shall abstain from voting at
such general meeting and at which any vote taken shall be taken
on a poll.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for grant of a share option must be accepted by a Synergis
Eligible Person (and by no other person except the Synergis Eligible
Person) in respect of all the Synergis Shares for which the offer is
made. Acceptance shall be made by such Synergis Eligible Person by
signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter together with
the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to Synergis
within the time period specified in the offer letter.

Subscription price for Synergis Shares

The subscription price in respect of any share option granted under
the Synergis Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Synergis Board and notified to each grantee and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Synergis Share; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Synergis Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which an offer for grant of a
share option (the “Synergis Offer Date"”) is made to a Synergis Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the Synergis Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the Synergis Offer Date
which must be a business day, provided that the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) FoBEiERT R ()
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued) HEETEBREND (B)
(g) Minimum period for holding an option before exercise (9) BRET Eﬂjf#ﬁ Z BRI
There is no minimum holding period for which a share option must RIEH S EIRBERE S BARERITEE AT
be held before exercise pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme. The BRAZEHR -1TERHANFBBHAMEE
commencement date of a share option period shall be specified by the BESRNBEBELRHMANIETE -
Synergis Board in the relevant offer letter.
(h) Remaining life (h) EBFTHIR
The Synergis Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10 BRiBEE E BB S 2B T AR
years commencing from 19 September 2003, its date of adoption, SN FEEREREAEBR -ET=FNA —HL
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the B (BVEERA B A7) e st + F A N A R S A 1
Synergis Option Scheme. AR
(2) Movements under the Synergis Option Scheme (2 HEEEBRESET 225
Details of movements in the share options under the Synergis Option RITEERBREAE TERENFRNZ ZEFE
Scheme during the year and options outstanding at the beginning and end RRENRERZ RATEREREFIFOT -
of the year are as follows:
Number of Number of
share ; share
options Changt: %”;‘gé:‘ € year options
held as at held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2011 per share Exercisable period
R®
R 3%
2§ +Zh
N Z+-8
w2 ) #Hz ) )
SHEALER RHEH BRENE it i %% ] HRENA BRITER s
dd/mm/yyyy (HKS) dd/mm/yyyy
(B/R/%) (%) (B/R/%)
Directors of Synergis
EEEER
Wiked WONG Ying-wai 250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0820 25092010 - 24092015
k3 250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0820 25092011 - 240972015
250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0820 25092012 - 240972015
250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0820 25092013 - 2410902015
250972009 400000 - - - - 400,000 0820 25/092014- 24092015
FAN Cheuk-hung 250972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0820 25092010 - 241090015
i 2500972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0820 25092011 - 2410902015
250092009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0820 25/092012 - 24092015
2500972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0820 25092013 - 241092015
250092009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0820 2509/2014- 241097015
01092011 - 500,000 - - - 500,000 0760 01/09/2012- 3110802015
01092011 - 500,000 - - - 500,000 0760 01/092013-31/082015
010972011 - 500,000 - - - 500,000 0760 01/09/2014- 3110802015
Catherine CHU 250092009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25092010 - 2410902015
KER 250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25092011 - 240972015
250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25092012 - 240972015
250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25092013 - 240092015
250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25092014 - 2410972015
Tenniel CHU 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092010 - 241090013
K8 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092011 - 241090013
2500972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092012 - 2410912013
Bary John BUTTIFANT 2500972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 2509/2010- 241090013
i 250092009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092011 - 241090013
250092009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092012 - 2410902013
Stephen IP Shurkvian 2500972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 2509/2010- 2410972013
g5 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25092011 - 241090013

25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25/092012 - 24/09/22013
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Share Option Schemes (continued) OB RERTE ()
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued) HEETEBREND (B)
(2) Movements under the Synergis Option Scheme (continued) (2) MEEEBREZSE (&)
Number of Number of
share : share
options Chang;s %u;rg‘tzl e year options
held as at held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2011 per share Exercisable period
B®
R 2——F
2% +Z8
-A-H =t+-H
52 ) 82 )
SEALER RHEH RRENE i fifE &% i) BRENE BRITER fTEs
dd/mm/yyyy (HK9) (dd/mmdyyyy)
(B/R/%) (B%T) (B/B/%)
KAN Fook-yee 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
L 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 250922011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092012 - 24/09/2013
WONG Tsan-kwong 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092010 - 24/09/2013
Bt 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24092013
David YU Hon-to 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092013
BEE 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24092013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/092013
Ex-Director
HEEE
David CHU Shu-ho (Deceased) 25/09/2009 100,000 - - (100,000) - - 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092013
FER(ER) 25/09/2009 100,000 - - (100,000) - - 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
250972009 100,000 - - (100,000) - - 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/092013
Employees 25/09/2009 1,170,000 - - (300,000) - 870,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092015
&R 25/09/2009 1,170,000 - - (300,000) - 870,000 0.820 250972011 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 1,170,000 - - (300,000) - 870,000 0.820 250972012 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 1,170,000 - - (300,000) - 870,000 0.820 250972013 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 1,170,000 - - (300, OOO) - 870,000 0.820 25092014 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - 60,000 0.99 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25092011 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25092012 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
07/06/2011 - 810,000 - (60,000) - 750,000 0.860 07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 - 810,000 - (60,000) - 750,000 0.860 07/06/2013 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 - 810,000 - (60,000) - 750,000 0.860 07/06/2014 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 - 810,000 - (60,000) - 750,000 0.860 07/06/2015 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 - 810,000 - (60,000) - 750,000 0.860 07/06/2016 - 06/06/2017
12,650,000 5,550,000 - (2,100,000) - 16,100,000
Employee Share Subscription Scheme EEREEnETE

An employee share subscription scheme (the “2002 Share Scheme”) which is in
force was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 23 August 2002. A
summary of the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme
(@) Purpose of the 2002 Share Scheme
The purpose of the 2002 Share Scheme is to provide Qualifying
Employees (as described in sub-paragraph (b) below) with the
opportunity to acquire shares in the Company, thus enabling them
to participate in the Company’s prosperity and consequently, such
opportunity is an incentive for them to contribute further to the
success of the Company.
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Employee Share Subscription Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme (continued)

(b)

(0

(d

(e)

Qualifying Employees under the 2002 Share Scheme

The Directors may make offers to subscribe for Shares to full time
employees and executive directors (excluding non-executive directors)
of the Group (the “Group” in the context describing the 2002 Share
Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the
2002 Share Scheme) who have worked for the Group for a period
of not less than six months immediately before the commencement
of any operating period whereas operating period refers to every six-
month period either from 1 January to 30 June or from 1 July to 31
December.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the
2002 Share Scheme

The maximum number of Shares available for making offers for
subscription of Shares under the 2002 Share Scheme (together with
any Shares to be issued under the 2008 Option Scheme) shall not
exceed 62,999,966 Shares, representing approximately 6.66% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

Maximum entitlement of each Qualifying Employee under
the 2002 Share Scheme

A Qualifying Employee may elect to utilise not less than 1% nor
exceed 20% of his/her basic monthly salary to subscribe for Shares
during each relevant operating period (as explained above).

No offer may be made to any Qualifying Employee which if accepted
in full would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon offers already accepted or to be accepted by such
Qualifying Employee (including both accepted and outstanding offers)
in any 12-month period immediately preceding the date of such new
offer exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of such new
offer. Any grant of further offer above the aforesaid limit shall be
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Qualifying Employee and his/her associates
abstaining from voting.

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance

of an offer

A offer of subscription of Shares may be accepted by an Qualifying
Employee by giving notification of his/her decision in prescribed form
to the Company within the time period specified in the offer letter
prior to the commencement date of the relevant operating period. No
payment is required to be made on acceptance of an offer.
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Employee Share Subscription Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2002 Share Scheme (continued)
(f)  Allotment of Shares and subscription price

Shares subscribed under the 2002 Share Scheme shall be allotted to
the relevant Qualifying Employees within one month following the
expiration of each relevant operating period. The subscription price
for Shares to be allotted shall be such price notified by the Directors
to the relevant Qualifying Employees, which shall be the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheet on the day on which the Shares are allotted, which
must be a business day; and (i) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which the Shares are
allotted, rounded down to avoid fractions of one Hong Kong cent. If
the subscription price so determined is below the nominal value of a
Share, Shares shall be allotted at par.

The subscription money shall be deducted from each Qualifying
Employee’s payroll during the relevant operating period in such
installments and in such manner as the Directors may determine.
Such subscription monies shall be pooled together in a trust account
earning interest for the relevant Qualifying Employees.

(g) Remaining life
The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing from 23 August 2002, its date of the adoption,
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2002
Share Scheme.

(2) Movements under the 2002 Share Scheme
No Share was issued and allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme
during the year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme and an employee
share subscription scheme pursuant to which options and offers may be granted
and made to the directors of the Company for subscription of shares in the
Company. Certain directors of the Company, being also directors of Synergis, are
also eligible to participate in the Synergis Share Option Scheme pursuant to which
they may be granted options for subscription of shares in Synergis. Details of the
2008 Option Scheme, the Synergis Share Option Scheme, and the 2002 Share
Scheme and their respective movements are set out in the paragraphs entitled
“Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Share Subscription Scheme” above.
Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted or transferred to the
directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated Corporations” and note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin were the directors of Mission Hills Golf Club
Limited (“MHGCL"). The principal businesses of MHGCL and its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) comprise, among other things, property development
(the "Excluded Business”) and property and facility management services (the
“Relevant Business”). As such, the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho (up to 16 February
2011) and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin were regarded as having interest in these
competing businesses of the Group. The Excluded Business was operated and
managed by MHGCL with independent management and administration. On this
basis, the Directors believe that the Group is capable of carrying on its property
development business independently of the Excluded Business and at arm’s
length from the Excluded Business. On the other hand, the size of the Relevant
Business is insignificant when compared with the size of the property and facility
management of the Group it is unlikely that the Relevant Business may complete
with the property and facility business of the Group.

The principal business of HCPD is provision of investment and asset management
consultancy services (the “Related Business”). HCPD was a company indirectly
and beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying-wai, the executive
deputy chairman of the Company, up to 25 November 2011. HCPD became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the completion of the
acquisition its entire issued share capital by the Group on 25 November 2011.
As such, Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying-wai was regarded as having interest in this
competing business of the Group up to 25 November 2011. The Related Business
was operated and managed by HCPD with independent management and
administration. On this basis, the Directors believe that the Group is capable of
carrying on its asset management services independently of the Related Business
and at arm’s length from the Related Business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company were interested
in any business apart from the Group's business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Changes in Directors’ Biographical Details

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of Directors’
biographical details since the date of last interim report of the Company are set
out as follows:

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin was appointed as the chairman and chief executive
officer of Mission Hills Group.

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai is one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company through his controlled corporation, Neo Summit Limited.

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited.

Updated biographical details of the Company’s directors are set out on pages 18
to 23 of this annual report.

gor[\]vertlble Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
|

Otf%er than the 2008 Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Scheme described
in the paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Share
Subscription Scheme” above and in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 December 2011. Other than those disclosed in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no issue or exercise of
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2(t)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Percentage of
interest in the

Number of issued share Number of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital underlying shares
HERTRFZ
BREE 513 HHEERKEAE B9 R A
(Note ii)
(B =i )
The estate of the deceased Interests of controlled corporations 375,921,240 39.72% -
David CHU Shu-ho
EHAABIZEELT 2 EE R EE RS
Upper Luck Holdings Limited Interests of controlled corporations 375,921,240 39.72% -
("Upper Luck”) S AE RS (Note i)
(PR&ED)
Mission Hills Golf Club Limited  Interests of controlled corporation 375,921,240 39.72% -
("MHGCL") R EE RS (Note i)
B m B R IKALEE (B &Ei)
BRAF([B=x])
Carrick Worldwide Limited Beneficial owner 375,921,240 39.72% -
(“Carrick”) EmEEA (Note i)
(PR &ED)
Neo Summit Limited Beneficial owner 143,000,000 15.11% 901,444,444
("Neo Summit”)
MEBRAE ([FE]) EmfiB A (Note iii)
(B aFiii)
MA Kwing, Pony Interest in controlled corporation 143,000,000 15.11% 901,444,444
54 RiEE s (Note iii)

(P &Eiii)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

(i) Carrick is a wholly-owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of MHGCL. MHGCL
is a wholly-owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Upper Luck. Upper Luck
is under the estate of the deceased David CHU Shu-ho. By virtue of the SFO, each of the
estate of the deceased David CHU Shu-ho, Upper Luck and MHGCL were deemed to be
interested in the same lot of 375,921,240 shares held by Carrick in the Company as at 31
December 2011.

(i) There were 946,349,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2011.

(iii) Neo Summit is owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit
View Holdings Limited as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%;
and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai. Summit View Holdings Limited is owned as
to 50% by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai and 50% by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony. Jones Capital
Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony. As such, Neo Summit
is deemed to be controlled corporation of Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai and Ms. MA
Kwing, Pony under the SFO. Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai's interest is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’” and Chief Executive’s Interest and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company and/or its subsidiaries
had entered into (or continued to be a party to) the following continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the annual review and reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions are set out below:

(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements

Deventer Limited (“Deventer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as landlord entered into the Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements.
The ownership of Hsin Chong Center had been changed from Deventer
to Cogent Spring Limited (“Cogent Spring”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to the assignment made between Deventer
and Cogent Spring on 4 July 2011. Cogent Spring is the landlord of Hsin
Chong Center as from 4 July 2011 and the tenancy agreement entered into
between Deventer and SMS on 17 December 2010 had been assigned to
Cogent Spring on 4 July 2011. The annual cap for the Tenancy Agreement
and the Carpark Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$1,800,000 million. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement dated 17 December 2010 of the Company.
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(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements (continued)
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Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) ~ Terms Particulars consideration the connected person’s interest
HEAL i1 1= iR R FERE WEALZHEEREREE
Synergis Management Services  Tenancy Agreement 3 years from Lease of portion of 5th Floor 1,379,284 SMS s a wholly-owned subsidiary
Limited ("SMS") as tenant dated 17 December 1 January 2011 to and portion of 10th Floor of Synergis Holdings Limited
2010 31 December 2013 of Hsin Chong Center, ("Synergis”), a non wholly-
107-109 Wai Yip Street, owned subsidiary of the
Kwun Tong Company where Carrick,
HEERREERAR ABA-Z-ZF =5 g% ——fF THEBEREZE107-1095% 1,379,284 a substantial shareholder
([FEERRE]) +=ZA++tHZ —A—RAZ% HERLSEDHIER K of the Company, is directly
fERTP HERH —T-=F 10 HER holding 17.42% of Synergis.
+ZA=+—H Hence, Synergis and SMS are
connected persons under the
Listing Rules.
SMS as tenant Two Carpark On monthly term Lease of 11 car parking 261,404 HEBERBAKAFGFZEAM
Agreements dated 1 commencing from spaces located in Hsin BRARMEEREEERAR
April 2005 1 April 2005 Chong Center ([FEBR])22EMBA
MEERRS FRHEP MR AMHA-TTRE M-TTOFNA-AE AEMETOLNEASEL 261,404 A AR A EIRR Carrick
mA—HE AR ERBAMEERIT %L
FESHE oAt B EWARAL

MEERRNEERRBAY
AL

General Business Services Agreement

The Company entered into a General Business Services Agreement with
Synergis pursuant to which the Synergis Group is the service provider. The
annual cap for the General Business Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2011 was HK$8,000,000. Details of the General Business
Services Transaction were disclosed in the announcements dated 10
December 2009 and 10 February 2011 of the Company.

(B) —RREBRERBE
AATEFE BB —MEBRSHE B
EEREEEAEURBZHEF -BE-_Z——F
T A=+ HLEFE —REEREHEOFE
PR &/7818,000,0007T c — R EB IR R ZHFHIB
BRERAARBRA-ZTNFEF+_A+B R
T——F_fFt+HZAM-

Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s)  Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person’s interest
HEAL i1 1= R R FERE WEALZHEEREREER
Synergis General Business 3 years from 1 January provision of property and HK$6,342,183  Synergis is a connected person
Services Agreement 2010 to 31 December facility management under the Listing Rules.
dated 10 December 2012 services, cleaning services
2009 and miscellaneous
services by relevant
members of the Synergis
Group to relevant
members of the Group
MEER AEAR=ZTNE —F B-T-IF MEEREEREKELT BH#6342,183T BELTRA HEERAEE
TZAtHEZ —A—BE mAEERBKERA Ate
—REBRBEHE —TCF REDERRIBERR
+ZA=1+—H 1% ERIRE LR R
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(C) Consultancy Services Agreement
PS Hong Kong Limited (now known as Hsin Chong Property Development
Limited)(“"HCPD") entered into the Consultancy Services Agreement. On
25 November 2011, the Company announced the completion of the
acquisition of HCPD and HCPD then became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The annual cap for the Consultancy Services Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB8,000,000. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company and
Synergis dated 25 November 2011.

SEMERXS (8)

(O FERR% &
PS Hong Kong Limited (R 1 &% EthEZREBR AR
([FEERRE] I LEMREHHR - RZE——
F+—AZ+HA ARREMERBEFEE
BR - FARNFEMEEEXNARARZZ2EEEN
BAR -BE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE HE
R 7% 197 2 B9 F 2 £ IR 78 AR 18,000,0007T ° 52 5
HEEHBERAARRMEEERMA-—T ——F
+—RA=ZtHRBZHMEAMH-

Annual  Nature and extent of

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person's interest
HEAL 1 B 58 B Hf FERE WEALZHGHEREE
Synergis Property Services Consultancy Services 1 year and 3 months provision of consultancy RMB12,238  Synergis Beijing is a wholly-owned

(Beijing) Co. Ltd. Agreement dated from 1 October 2010 services by HCPD subsidiary of Synergis and

("Synergis Beijing”) 15 December 2010 to 31 December 2011 hence is a connected person

under the Listing Rules.

MEMERS (ER)BRAR RAHA-Z-ZF —5Z={EA & mT B EE RN ARE122387T HEMRARMEEEBZZER

([#&itm]) T-AtHAZ “T-TF iR
BFRAS ok TA-HE
—F—f
TZA=+-H

(D) Service Agreement
The Company entered into the Service Agreement with MHGCL to
regulate the services provided by the members of MHGCL. The annual
cap for the Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2011
was HK$1,500,000. Details of the transactions was disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2011.

BHBAR ARE TR
Bl HELRREEAL:

(D) MRFHwl
ARREBERAI M RBG HE ARBRRKE QR
iRz R -BE—T——F+-A=+—HLt
FE - RSN FE LR AE%1,500,0007T ° X 5
HBEERBERARRABRMA T ——F+-At=
Bz e

Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) ~ Terms Particulars consideration the connected person’s interest
WEAL i1 1=k B 3 FERE HWEALCHENEREE
MHGCL Service Agreement 3 years from To regulate the services HK$1,191,853  Carrick is a substantial shareholder
dated 13 December 1 January 2011 to provided by the members of the Company and is a
2011 31 December 2013 of MHGCL. wholly-owned subsidiary of
MHGCL. Hence, MHGCL is a
connected person under the
Listing Rules.
B A#AR-T——% =E - T——F DR EEE S Ak B A RIFTHR 4 1,191,853 Carick BAARIZEERFE I
TZATZEZ —RA—RZE Z IR BRE2ARENBRR
R ihE ZT-=F At Rz LR %5
TZA=t+—8 BEAL-



Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected transactions
mentioned in (A) to (D) above conducted in the year were entered into on the
following basis:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(©  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing these transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group as above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 39% (2010: 48%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 11%
(2010: 16%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2010: less
than 30%) of the Group’s total purchases for the year. None of the director, any
of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers.

Bank Borrowings
The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2011 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HEmRER S (1)
ARAEE (REBIFNITES) DENLRRFNE
1.2 EAEQ)RFEMER S Ty IRR T 5 LT -

@ MNARERBEXRBHENET:

b) BR-—BEEEKIRTERNAEEGLT (NRE
BUE=FIREBYE =R IGHETL: R

O BREEEXRSZIOAMGERATARIFAKR
AR B3 0 R 2 -

RIEES ST AL M S B EEEHAERI30005 [
FHBERBZRBMUIINETLTIE] W EBEEH
BR740 5% [ &8 £ AR AR & M5 E S 2 5 M % ZAD i1
] ARRZEBAEXEYAEBFEMRER HIEH R
SRR ETR RIS 14A 38K M Bt Ll B RE
BRE BHHERBEANRMY UHAEHBENER-
AR E A A% ELAD R B AR M B S PR L o

FEEFRRMER

RER AEBEGARMNEFIGAEEBRZE 239% (=
T—TF 148% ) MAKBZARF A AEBE BN E
ZN%(ZE—ZFF:16%) °

RER AEESRARMHEEGEASE 2 RREEIN
30% (ZZ—ZF: DR30%) - EF EMREIHEA
FIR (BERMAEE AR R BITRABBS%E )
BRAEESARUEPPEREMER-

SHoER
AEFR - ZE—FTF+_/F=+—HA-_ZT—F+=
B=1+—BZRITIEEFBENGA T HRERME28 -



66 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2011

Report of the Directors

ExEeRS

Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$3,086,000 (2010: HK$1,181,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company'’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed its willingness to
offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2012
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
Non-executive chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012

B
RER REBAREZNEMEMNIEZEBRALEE
3,086,0007T ( =& —Z 4 : B%1,181,0007T) °

ME -HEXROFLFZ LHES

AARREEANBRARENFERE  DEXEEA
DA ZAEA EHEH

LBSKRE
RARE B BARRMEGZ AREN KA EEHRA
& ARAMS ETRAFETAZ ARSRE -

53 0]

B REZ 2B BB S RTEN EHATE RARREE
BE-RARABIBRITZ —TE——FRIAFAE £
BTRE - HRBRAEFZEERBKEGTREH
PIRARRIREZZEM UREEESETEME

RRERE

FRITERE
o it 62

B —E——F=A=1+=H



2011 5 TELEEEBRAT

el

67

Independent Auditor’'s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 150, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

*  for identification purposes only 1£ 35 5l

13 R BB 3R

HHsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.
(FEEEREBRMAF )RR
(REFZEAMA LA E R E])

AAZEED (VAT (3] EEet I E AR 698 2150
H Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (& &L B AR
REF) (UTHBIERADRAMBAR (SEEE
H ) iR e mE  MEaMBRREERZ——F
TZA=T—HNGENMAREERBREHZZA L
FENGEERGR FatERGER KAaEREBRRK
FERORER ARE2GTHERME R EAMM A RE

EFNGSMBERRARENRE

BERREFRAAERBEESIMASHEMNEEYT
HELRREE KRRHED) B FERE REER S MR
R NCHEEUBRREHEEMA TR MEREE
RRREE A MRV ZRAN RS - A AR S BT
BRADFERNIKEFRE R ERA B AR R -

£ BEHRY |
RPMMEERRERMOBTERFEAMBBELED
BR WRBERE (CAN\—FRFE) FOKERE
BERRBERMOBE BRI ZIAREREL AN -
RETERARE ORD WAL A LR ESREE
& -

BMERBEBESIMAGRMEOBTEETEANETE
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FEDPRTRFAERE RS A M RRAMESE R
BERMETRE © FTE EMEFBURN R BT A 2 -
BREMEARRFAERMEBERMBERRFEEK
R ER - RS R  RBEE EEZA
AmEEAMBHRRIMELEEM QT RREMA A
26 ARFHEENBRT R B X FE AR Bz
HEHEREBERER - Bt NERTEEEARASFK
ROAEMEREL AR RN AR ESS M
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BYREMESE
Auditor’s Responsibility (continued) BEBEBHRE (2
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate #4815 - T FIFAES M ERELE T FEE AR
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. HET B R IR -
Opinion BER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of ~ KR A  ZEHGE M BERECIRIEF SMBRELEN A
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, EmMATFHRE BERAN B£ER_ZT——F+_A
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance =+—HIESEK Y BSEBEEZE IFFEENFE
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared ~ MIR& 2 WEIZBRES (R AVEN) R ERTEZ A
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies — #R&. e

Ordinance.
PricewaterhouseCoopers RERKESHAELFR
Certified Public Accountants HEEE AN

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012 B —E——_F=-R=-+=H
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Consolidated Income Statement

GelaR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—AHL1LEE

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BT BT
Group revenue and share of revenue of SE RFER R EESIE B =
jointly controlled entities 5 6,381,128 4,257,613
Group revenue EYElle 5 5,884,204 3,847,823
Cost of sales THERA (5,378,305) (3,423,420)
Gross profit E A 505,899 424,403
Share of net profits/(losses) of FEMRH T, (E518) 55
— jointly controlled entities —HEEHE 33,875 20,197
— associated companies VN = (51)
Other income Hap A 6 22,023 18,100
General and administrative expenses TR (318,952) (254,403)
Other operating expenses H & (26,724) (22,693)
Net finance costs BB KA FER
— interest income —FBHA 4,913 1,266
— interest expenses —FEREZ 7 (8,948) (6,271)
Profit before taxation R A5 B v ) 8 212,086 180,548
Taxation HIE 11 (22,458) (23,145)
Profit for the year ARG [ i A 189,628 157,403
Profit attributable to: FEMRRF
Equity holders of the Company RpalE=FAA 172,419 136,346
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 17,209 21,057
189,628 157,403
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EFREARRF BB 12 24.8 20.3
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) GRREE R CBE) 12 23.9 20.2
Dividends [ds) 13 47,371 40,427
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GERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—BLEE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
pofitfortheyear  A®ERM | 189628 | 157403
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mkzs (&i8)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building HELHREF 2 ARERT 95,711 141,277
Deferred tax on fair value gain of HET M REFANE RN Z
leasehold land and building IRIEF I (15,792) (23,310)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BINEIMHEEE 2 IEH 58
foreign operations 27,795 4,140
Interest rate swap il 2= 4 B 956 708
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax AN E &4 FHIE % 2
s Aftvembks | el 122815
Total comprehensive income for the year REELEK=ERE 298,298 280,218
Total comprehensive income attributable to: B2 HEREAE:
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FEA 279,070 257,904
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R 19,228 22,314
298,298 280,218
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

GERERRSR

As at 31 December 2011
RZZT——F+=A=+—8H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B5E BRETT BT T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ERY TS E e 15 388,086 305,513
Investment properties wEYE 16 46,080 58,500
Intangible assets mREE 17 114,999 127,391
Goodwill BES 18 42,002 18,753
Associated companies Hﬁﬁ WG] 20 - 21
Jointly controlled entities HEEHFRE 21 71,298 221,552
Available-for-sale financial asset AIHEE MK EE 22 2,991 2,991
Deferred tax assets ﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁ BE 27 192 389
SRR SRS Gosea8 735110
Current assets MENEE
Properties under development BERPYE 23 2,522,163 -
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEEkEEZP TR 24 712,281 527,363
Receivables and prepayments FEUER R R B & 25 1,208,270 612,554
Amount due from a non-controlling interest FEYSE1E I A 2 A 30 - 259
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRES 26
— restricted — SRl 4,006 291
— unrestricted — RS2 BR 892,939 647,018
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | sames s
Current liabilities mENAE
Bank loans RITER 28 (830,647) (430,000)
Payables and accruals JEMERF N EAH & A 29 (2,095,584) (1,173,776)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests PSS FE4% B A 2 RUIE 30 (9,546) (42,523)
Current tax liabilities EEHIBAE (15,793) (11,479)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o (29515700 | (1,657.778)
Net current assets mEBEESRE 2,388,089 129,707
Total assets less current liabilities =~ ®WER®BAK 3058737 | 864817
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Senior loan note BEERZER 31 (500,000) -
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 (491,063) -
Long service payment liabilities RHRBEEE (7,654) (4,472)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIERE 27 (102,825) (45,929)
Total non-current liabilities  &EBRAfEAS 000000000 (1101542 | (50,401) _
Net assets HERE 1,952,195 814,416
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to the EAFERESSHEAEMN
Company's equity holders BE R R
Share capital i &N 33 94,635 67,317
Other reserves HAbfE & 1,323,798 353,923
Retained profits R = 383,067 255,697
Proposed dividend HERAR B 23,659 20,292
1,825,159 697,229
Non-controlling interests RS 127,036 117,187
Total equity ot 1,952,195 814,416

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai £ {&
Director &%

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho R &

Director &%
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AFIEEARSE
As at 31 December 2011
RZT——F+=A=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BRETT BT T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERY TS E L 15 4,590 5,476
Investment in subsidiaries B A RIRE 19 2,123,674 92,420
Loans to subsidiaries BEXRTHEAR 19 463,000 206,000
2,591,264 303,896
Current assets MENEE
Loans to subsidiaries BRTFHEBA R 19 93,000 170,400
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT BB A B RUA 19 620,735 353,849
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IEN & 25 12,028 5,017
Bank balances and cash RITETF MRS 26 1,477 2,617
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 727,240 | | 531,883
Current liabilities mENAE
Bank loans RITEK 28 (496,647) (340,000)
Payables and accruals FERERS K EA T & A 29 (33,974) (11,031)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHIE A RIFIA 19 (69,979) -
Loan due to a subsidiary Em—FHMBAREEZER 19 (50,000) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (650.600) =~ (351,031)
Net current assets mENEERE 76,640 180,852
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREAMGR 2,667,904 484,748
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Senior loan note BRERERE 31 (500,000) -
Convertible bonds Al EH 32 (491,063) -
Long service payment liabilities RERGEBE (762) (607)
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIEEE 27 (44,244) -
Total non-current liabilities JEmEN & R E (1,036,069) (607)
Net assets HERE 1,631,835 484,141
Equity o
Capital and reserves attributable to the FAFESFEARGEETR
Company's equity holders =4
Share capital & A 33 94,635 67,317
Other reserves HAb & 34 1,074,569 211,633
Retained profits R 34 438,972 184,899
Proposed dividend R I B 34 23,659 20,292
Total equity wam 1,631,835 484,141

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai % {&
Director &%

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho R & #i

Director &%
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEHSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_Z——F+_A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P& BRTT BT T
Operating activities TEEXY
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operations KEZBHERA (RL)FE 4 15,624 (127,877)
Interest received EUFILE 4,317 1,529
Interest paid EfFE (6,775) (6,149)
Tax paid BERHIE (21,725) (32,017)
Net cash outflow from operating activities BEXBZHaRHPE (8,559) (164,514)
Investing activities BEES
Net cash paid for acquisition of assets — WIEEE—#EmRe s
land parcels in Tieling W& F58 35 (265,374) -
Time deposit over three months =@AN EFEBER (43,190) -
Repayment to non-controlling interests BT IR E SRR (27,836) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE 4“%% He2s N 58 (21,842) (17,290)
Advance to/repayment to jointly controlled entities %4 ?’ HT HE e S Bk e
RIER (10,068) (117,715)
Net cash paid for acquisition of a subsidiary Hﬁ(ﬁ% Fﬁ MEBARENZERS
FEE 36 (3,574) -
Addition of intangible asset # iJl] B|ILEE (1,600) -
Addition in an investment property IR EYE = (127)
Distribution on liquidation of an associated BEEERRDBEER
company - 16
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash disposed HE—MEB AT MR E
ZHE 37 - 353
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments BOEHEREIE - 5,890
Dividend income from an associated company REHE R E]Z R BN 21 448
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME R RREBMER
plant and equipment 810 178
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties SR EMERRSR 5,906 6,191
Dividend income from jointly controlled entities REHEEZEHEREZREWA 17,500 -
Advance from/repayment from an associated A —HE AT RARESE
company and jointly controlled entities BRI EREER 76,697 45,018
Net cash outflow from investing activities REXBZHRERHPHE (272,550) (77,038)
Financing activities mE )
Drawdown of bank loans REUGRITE R 557,000 300,000
Issue of shares ?éf & 1n 142,428 1,200
Transaction cost for issuance of shares BTN 2 X HRA (4,332) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Bk T IEE i Hx?ﬂﬁ B (9,656) (10,587)
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders EIRTAQBIRERE (44,037) (57,050)
Repayment of bank loans E%ﬁiﬁg%’\ (165,353) (60,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MBZHERARE 476,050 173,563
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRRe&FEZIBM
equivalents (D) 194,941 (67,989)
Cash and cash equivalents at RFENRERIREEE
the beginning of year 647,018 708,766
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Re RESFEIEL e 7,790 6,241
Cash and cash equivalents at RERRERRAEEE
the end of the year 849,749 647,018
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash REeRREFEHBEFEZAR:
equivalents: -
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITHEGFRES— TXKE%U 892,939 647,018
Less: Time deposit over three months Vo _1I AL EEHER (43,190) -
Cash and cash equivalents at RERREREEEE
the end of the year 849,749 647,018
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GREEREBDR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—BLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ERELTDREREA
Convertible
Capital Share bonds Non-
Share Share  Exchange  General redemption  Special Revaluation options equity  Hedging  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  feserve  reseve  Reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve reserve profits Total  interests equity
THE
RERE 2hi % FER

kx BHER ERGR LERR B BURE  EERE G RBRE HAGE REE #it #E RaEH
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i
(W) (Wski) (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT B%Tr  A%Tr BBTr B¥Tn EBTn BN RETn  BEThn BMTn M B%Tr AETr A%Tr

At 1 January 2010 R-E-2F-f-F 67,117 183,239 9,584 10,000 4420 - - 2439 - (1664) 193529 490,615 123811 614426
Profi for the year TEERT - - - - - - - - - - 1336 1636 2057 157403
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) EhaEhE/ (B8
Fairvalue gain on easehold lnd and bulding ~~ E T RIEF L ARERT - - - - - - - - - - -
Deferred tax on fair value gain of leasefold BETHREFARERH 2 BT
[and and building iR - - - - - - (23310) - - - - (23310) - 23310)
Exchange difference ERZE - - 2883 - - - - - - - - 2883 1257 4140
Interest rate swap pilkeets - - - - - - - - - 708 - 708 - 708
Total comprefensive income il 20218
Issue of share capital upon share options exercised 47 (AR M &S T 2 A 200 1,000 - - - - - - - - - 1,200 - 1,00
Equity setled share-based transactions R ARR REEERS - - - - - - - 5,080 - - - 5080 594 5,674
Share options forfeited RhaRE - - - - - - - (520) - - - (520) - (520)
Transfer upon share options lapsing RamEsymER - - - - - - - (3.164) - - 3,164 - - -
Transfer upon share options evercised RirfeRmgfnEs - 3% - - - - - (339) - - - - - -
Disposalof a subsiciary (note 37) HE-HBAF (W37 - - - - - - - - - - - - (136) (136)
Distribution AR - - - - - - - - - - - - (18809)  (18,809)
Dividends paid ERkE - - - - - - - - - - (7050 (570500 (10587)  (67637)
200 1339 - - - - - 1,057 - - (53,8%6) (51,290) (28.938) (80,228)
At31 December 2010and at 1 Januay 2011 R=F-2FFZA=+-AR
—F——5-f-8 61317 184,578 12,467 10,000 4420 - 117,967 25441 - (956) 275989 697,229 17,187 814,416
Profitfor the year RERER - - - - - - - - - - 17419 17419 17,209 189,628
Other comprehensive incomefoss) EhaEhs/ (B8
Fair value gain on leasehold lnd and building ~—~ BE T REFZ AR ERR - - - - - - BmM - - - - %M - %M
Deferred tax on fair value gain of REHHREFRABRTZEL
leasehold land and buiding HE - - - - - - (15,792) - - - - (15,792) - (15,792)
Exchange difference EXER - - 5,776 - - - - - - - - 25776 2019 21,195
Interest rate swap jiEeets - - - - - - - - - 956 - 956 - 956
Total comprehensive income 2ENAET - - 25,776 - - - 79919 - - 95 172419 219070 1928 298298
Issue of shares AR 1585 125850 - - - - - - - - - 138435 - 138435
Transaction cost ofissuance of share R ZHHE - #332) - - - - - - - - - #332) - (4332)
Issue of share capital upon share options evercised - FTERRER TRA 33 5027 - - - - - (1.467) - - - 3993 - 3993
Fquity setled share-based transactons ih EER REEERS - - - - - - - 3469 - - - 3469 m 3,746
Transfer upon share options apsing RmEsNmER - - - - - - - (2.355) - - 235 - - -
Acqistton of assets - and parcels n Tieng WEEEE-danR 14300 20449 - - - 33046 - - M3 - - 19178 - 19178
Deferred tax iabilty on recognition of equity BB E AR 2 BEHE
component of convertble bonds BfE - - - - - - - - (M8 - - (M8 - ()
Dividends paid BiERE - - - - - - - - - - (44,037 (44037 (9,65)  (53,693)
21318 331,035 - - - 332,046 - (353) 20049 - (41682) 848,860 (9379) 839481

At 31 December 2011 e g o 94635 515613 38243 10,000 4420 33046 197,88 25094 2004% - M6726 1825159 127,036 1,952,195




Notes:
(0}
(ii)

(i)

Reserve created during the repurchase of shares.

Special reserve comprises the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of
deferred taxation and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the
earlier of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes. See note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details.

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gain, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land and
building held for own use.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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FeMBHRRME

General information

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, provision
of construction and project management consultancy services, civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical installation, renovation and fitting-
out, property development and investment, and provision of property and
facility management services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 23 March 2012.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, leasehold land and building and
available-for-sale financial assets, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

*  for identification purposes only (£ (%5

— R EH

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (72 & &£
BARAR*) (IRRF]) REM B AR (5 [R5
H ) e EeTas  RERE RIE A IR R
ITARIR BELETR MHRAZTNEESIRE-Y
FERERE ARREMERZEEIRRS -

NARAEBFREFMKRKINERETAR] HE
it = EE H 4k A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda ° "2 8l A B BHE & 2 S AT
BRAE ([HRA]) EREFE— Lo

BB EYIPIN AP ERE NS T T AEMIIR
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RUETSHE RN EBGHBERHIIMT < R 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new/revised HKFRSs, amendments and
interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2011. There is however no significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Right Issues

HK (IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendment) Funding Requirement
HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Annual Improvement Project  Improvements to HKFRS 2010

New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2011 and have not been early adopted

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2011
(Amendment) ~ Transfers of Financial Assets
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of 1 January 2012
(Amendment) Underlying Assets
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial 1 July 2012
(Amendment) Statements
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and 1 January 2013
Joint Ventures
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 1 January 2013
Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2 FETHBREE (&)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) HEREE (E)

(i) New and amended standards have been issued but are (i) FETRLIETEACE MG ERAR-S
not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January ——F—A—BHRBRZUBFEER
2011 and have not been early adopted (continued) B RIZEEHM (45)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other 1 January 2013 EAUBRE RERENERN ZB-=f
Entities EBIE0% s -A-H
HKFRS 13 Fair Vialue Measurement 1 January 2013 BREBRE NrEHE —%-=F
RERIE13% —-A-H
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2013 BREBREEN  eRIAERE —T-=F
(Amendment) - Offsetting Financial Assets E75 (BiIK) - REHBEER -fA-H
and Financial Liabilties HKER
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments; 1 January 2014 et $BIA:2H —T-mF
(Amendment) Presentation - Offsetting F5 (BiTA)  -BRYBEER -A-H
Financial Assets and Finanial HBEE
Liabilities
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2015 BRAMBREEN SRIZERE Z%-1%
(Amendment) — Mandatory Effective date 75 (B31%) - EAUBNSE -A-H
of HKFRS 9 and Transitional b )iy
Disclosure BERRE
£HAH
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015 BRHBREEN IR —Z-nf
595 -F-H

The Group has not early adopted the above standards and NG E P MR RN EE R )R B ET - IR AR

amendments and is not yet in a position to state whether substantial BHELGHAEEN G EBR R BmERL

changes to the Group's accounting policies and presentation of SWENEKREE -

financial statements will be resulted.

(b) Basis of consolidation (b) HEEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

0]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

RAVBRRRBEARRREMBENERRE
E+-A=FT—HILZHBHREK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

0)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group applied the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.

Inter-company transactions, balances and income and expenses
between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

0]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associated company, a jointly
controlled entity or a financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for by the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group's investment in associated companies includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company is reduced
but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associated companies’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
and constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REBBRRMET
2 FETHBREE»)
(b) HEBE(E)
(i) HELT(E)

Associated companies (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associated companies
are recongnised in the Group’s financial statements only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interest in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associated
companies are recognised in the income statement.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to their joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities” profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in the other comprehensive income is recognised
in the other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group's financial statements only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the jointly
controlled entities. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in jointly controlled entities are
recognised in the income statement.

(iii)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-
for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Intangible assets

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They are subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in
the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the
fair value model for the asset recognised.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)  Property, plant and equipment

@

(ii)

Property comprises leasehold land (classified as a finance lease)
and a building held for own use and is stated at fair value less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluation is performed
with sufficient regularity by independent professional qualified
valuers. Changes arising on the revaluation are dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in the
revaluation reserve, except that, when a deficit arises on
revaluation, it will be charged to the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in
the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
revaluation.

When a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously been
charged to the consolidated income statement.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEFEEHBFREE ()

()  Property, plant and equipment (continued) () Hx BERRMm (E)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient M HEE R R B ETRRT A R A
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their HEEPHBHEEE 2 KAERRER
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal B-FEZHEFENT:

annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified over the unexpired period of DEAMBERL M L R EARE
as finance lease the lease &4 e
Building 5% LJES 5%
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of HEMEEE 2149 181 84 HA
the lease e
Plant and machinery 10% — 50% MRS R iR 10% — 50%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 50% Bh-BEFEEER  10%-50%
equipment Bl
Motor vehicles 25% - 30% =2 25% —30%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted REELEBHERERET (WEA) EE 2
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. BRERE A AFH -
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its WMEEZ REESNEGATKRE SR AIE
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its EREENRMRZ AT e 558 -

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the M MR REREHEREDEEMEHFE
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount HEEEEE CREAEZE TRGEEKREE
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income FRRERARR
statement.

(g) Properties under development 9) BESRYE
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net BRPWMEURARATZERFE 2 RIEET
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account BR o AT IR R EAE B R TERT A #IRERS
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable AR A # eI E RS RIEEE TR T A
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion. fhgte
The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use BRPMENKARBELMERRER A8
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying BEEBRERNZEERNN EEXNRRIER

assets and professional fees incurred during the development period. HfRIEENEEER-
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

0]

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in-
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial assets
The Group classifies its investments as available-for-sale financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

1)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. The translation differences on monetary securities are
recognised in consolidated income statement, translation differences
on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity. Changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1)

()

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(continued)

The fair value of a derivative instrument used for hedging purposes is
disclosed in note 29. Movement on the hedging reserve is shown in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Trading derivatives
are classified as a current asset or liability.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
the consolidated income statement. The gain or loss relating to
the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate
borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income statement within
“finance costs”. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately transferred to the consolidated
income statement.

Certain derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as derivatives at fair value through profit
or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(m)

(n)

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less from the date of investment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed and
considered for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

q)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entities operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluate positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Current and deferred tax (continued)

v

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation

(iv)

(v)

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2 FESHRFREE®)
() EAEF (5
(i) UABRGBAEER 2 FHE

(iv)

(v)

REERAMIBIARN REMR 2 BEEE
MEE REZSHE BERKEESR
ZRBERAEBEET A (RRE)Z
KB - B 8 AEBUR TR I M iE AR5
ZANREERARAX -FAXBSEHIZE
By RBEAREMEE ETRIEE
IZET 5 AR S R0 55 8 (A (A& A
B HERRESNEEEFERHA
BEBR)ZFE-FTHERBHRIEERE
AR TRITRZRBRERE 2R
R X ASTEESBNEARER 5
BHRESGMEATERBIRIENTEZH
Bl EBEGEE R NRBKIEIET ISR
BIEMHERT RS TR AT R R R B
BfhET - BRMAEFHER] (0B ) Z R EELR
BRERER  WHESIFORERE-

B RBERITER  NRB BT M
WOER 2 Fr S SRS IR B FERT X S K
A& G AR (EE) R DEE -

RIEFRIEE A

RIERGERAERNEENEBIERRAR
HIpR LA HEREEX B RIEAA
MBI ERAE XN - AEBEEAEBR
THEMTAGEREREILREER R
—IEFFA LB RE AT RE 2 AT R AR
IIREREZEME: KARREL —RELY
e BB FER MR 2 R LIRS & -

TEALEH &
EAKERRECREZRBMELRE
ERNEEERE METSEEAEMR
B TEALB RN T LARERR



el

2011 5 TEEEEEBRAT 95

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Borrowing costs

wv)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated income statement in the year in which
they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks and
rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, that is upon
completion of the sale and purchase agreements.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property and facility management fees are recognised when the
services are rendered and in accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of property and facility management agreements,
namely management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”)
and lump sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract,
the Group is remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility as management
remuneration and only such fee is recognised as revenue for the
Group. Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee which
normally covers the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility, thus the whole of the lump sum fee is recognised as revenue
for the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(w)

(x)

7

)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2 FETHBREE (&)

wv)

(w)

x)

7

)

Yo RERE (75)
A3 TR Y 5 B RR M T 4 1 B At SR R 2 UK
- IR AR Iy R

HMBHE MR E T2 RRRA - B8
EHRREEA - BEREERA - RIS OWE )
EEIRE MEHRG BN RIGRER TR

RITERMBBRAKIBEREERSEIERHN
TR I LL DI HERR

B B AU B B 2 BB TE 1R HERR

PEEE
BEDERENAERFEETIBELERRE
ZAMBRETA B -TBEERAREARY
B2 BRDBLEEAR MG WIEH R
RIE

MERESY

MBERBOTIERETA (RFREA) RE
—HEBTEZGT sl —HEBEHAREE
253 B R R 5 SRR E IR - AR E R
RELDWEFTEA (BIRFFAAN) RBURR Z

*IE/_\Z\ °

=0

R

AEBERRMBRER 2 BEEVIRER  BR
FEHRE AREMBEER 2 B EFHERAER
HIRTAT ST B 2 BEETRERES
AR -REREEFRERAERENERT
RN E B EZ B B2 2 BEE AN
EHEENEABRRTER-

2R &
FARRRIERFTEAD K ZBEERBERR
AR E 2 FERMBHRRTPERREE -

23

BBEOBAED BERBRBRBEITHRD X
R Z FTIER AR I RS FIRZH
WIAR (FRRIA) -



2011 Fif MELBEEEBRAT 97

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(aa) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the number of shares to be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that will be received, do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments which contain
both a liability component and an equity component.

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at
the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component of convertible
bonds is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

Financial risk management
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk
(1)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and
the Chinese Mainland and monitors foreign exchange
exposure by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
by using foreign exchange forward contracts when the
need arises. The Group is also mainly exposed to Renminbi
("RMB") fluctuation, the net investment of which has not
been hedged. The Group has no outstanding forward
exchange contract as at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, if RMB and Singapore dollar
had strengthened/weakened by 5% and 10% respectively
(2010: 5% and 10% for RMB and Singapore dollar
respectively) against Hong Kong dollars with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$4.6 million (2010:
HK$5.4 million) higher/(lower), mainly as a result of net
foreign exchange gains/(losses) on translation of foreign
currency denominated trade and other receivables, deposit,
cash and bank balances and trade and other payables.
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Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

0]

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(2) Interest rate risk
Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest-rate risk
arises mainly from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk due to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings. At
31 December 2011, the Group had no interest rate swap
contract outstanding (2010: a nominal sum of HK$90.0
million for hedging its bank borrowings).

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates on Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points (2010: 50 basis points) higher or lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the
year would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$2.4 million (2010: decreased by approximately HK$0.4
million or increased by approximately HK$0.2 million) as a
result of higher or lower interest expenses on floating rate
bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.

3)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits, cash and bank
balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.
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3 MEREER s
(a) HERBEE(E)
(i) REBESAR

3 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payment.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors
do not consider that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment, and believe that the bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in note 28.

AEBRAFREZRBESRBRERER &
BgHRERITEHR LA S WEBEIF
AR AREEREESTHRES-

RERBRTINAEE S LEDSBRE
T UHEXMBERRESE - CXUKE
FERASENEARDESFR  BR
AEBERER BN EERT-

TRERFERBREARRZHBEE 12
SR Z AR REAGEEREAN
FEE 2 RIS AR T DT - ERAIKE
ZEBRANERMRZASRERBE
MEFAX BEEGEEBAKEZHBR
o RBIRIT TN B LR E
BEFOR - WREAEESRBEETINH T
28 2B RS RERRITER

The Group The Company
E3 1] E 3
Less than Between Between Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and 5 years Total 1year 1and2years 2andS5 years Total
PSR- —-FERFE MWEELF ] PR—F —FEFFE WEELF ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R BT ERTT ERTT ERTT R BRI ERTT
At 31 December 2011 —2——F
+ZRA=+-H
Bank loans RITER 570,187 43,286 245,504 858,977 229,173 43,286 245,504 517,963
Payables and accruals ENERRESER 1,622,502 53,626 60,506 1,736,634 33,974 - - 33,974
Amounts due to SRR R IR
non-controlling interests 9,546 - - 9,546 - - - -
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 759,210 759,210 - - 759,210 759,210
Senior loan note BERBER - 525,000 - 525,000 - 525,000 - 525,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE{ M & A R 5E - - - - 69,979 - - 69,979
Loan due to a subsidiary ENMERFIER - - - - 51,375 - - 51,375
Total Eat 2,202,235 621,912 1,065,220 3,889,367 384,501 568,286 1,004,714 1,957,501
At 31 December 2010 222
+ZA=+-H
Bank loans BITER 140,020 24,506 288,154 452,680 47,460 24,506 288,154 360,120
Payables and accruals JER R R e B 976,773 24,009 13,852 1,014,634 10,905 - - 10,905
Amounts due to BN FFERER IR
non-controlling interests 42,523 - - 42,523 - - - -
Total E 1,159,316 48,515 302,006 1,509,837 58,365 24,506 288,154 371,025
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MBERBREEw
(b) Capital risk management b) BFXEEETE
In managing capital, the Group's objectives are to safeguard its ability HRESEER AEEBEERKRFEREZ
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal EEREREBMBEBEE N THFH
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain EZEREBLORIEE R » BRI AR
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of BAGEHE AEERSRABERETRREZRS
dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue RBIRAR T AR - BT R AN & & E LR
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. EfE -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio. AEERBEEEEHERL EKETER - BED
Debt is defined as bank loans, convertible bonds and senior loan note. EEPERTER TRREHFRELERE
Equity includes all capital, reserves and non-controlling interests of the o R BIEARERGER - i KIEERE
Group.The ratio is 93.3% at 31 December 2011 (2010: 52.8%). Also, moRZE——F+TA=1+—8 MEMNLE
the Group was able to maintain a net cash position of HK$66.3 million 5B93.3% (ZZE—FF: 52.8%) cILINAEHE
(2010: HK$217.0 million). Net cash position is the sum of unrestricted IR S FRAA N 28 866,300,0000T ( —Z—
deposits, cash and bank balances less bank loans. T4 1 E#5217,000,0000T ) © IR &SR REAR S
AEZRHFR RERIBITETRRITER
(c) Fair value estimation () XA EMGE
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires BEUEHRELERE7H (EF]) [T AE—
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair BEIRTERTIIAAEAERBEREANE
value measurement hierarchy: HE%
- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets — HEREESEBEEERMHZHRE (KL
or liabilities (level 1). RE) (F—E)-
—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that - BITFEEmRRBRZREN BEXEE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as e sHEmER (BIFIaER) sk (A
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). REER)ATBR 2 AtEA (F2E) -
- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable — EBEXRBBWIFKEFHEEMSEIE @
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). A (BUIERTERE@BA) (F=E) »
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are TRETAEEANR_Z——FR_T—FTF
measured at fair value at 31 December 2011 and 2010. T A=t—HARARBEFEZEERAE-
2011 2010
Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 2 Level 3 Total
ffd BB #E F = E B
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT BRTT BT BT BT
Assets BE
Available-forsale financial asset A& 2 HIBEE
- Equity securities -BAES - 2,991 2,991 - 2,991 2,991
Total assets BEE - 2,991 2,991 - 2,991 2,991
Liabilities =1
Derivative financial instruments TESRTE - - - 958 - 958
Total liabilties BER - - - 958 - 958
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Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
includes:

—  the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves.

—  the fair value of forward foreign exchange contract is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

—  other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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REMKBRME

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and judgments having a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(a) Acquisition of assets — land parcels at Tieling

During the year, the Group has acquired subsidiaries which hold land
use rights of land parcels at Tieling, the PRC. Please refer to Note 35
for details of the acquisition.

The Group has assessed the acquisition in accordance with HKFRS and
has concluded that the acquisition constitutes an asset acquisition. To
account for the assets and liabilities acquired, significant judgment is
required in determining the fair value of the land use rights acquired,
the tax liabilities assumed and the convertible bonds issued.

The assessment of the fair value of the liability component of the
convertible bonds involves key management assumptions, among
other things, the expected volatility, dividend yield, etc.

For details of the respected estimates and assumptions being made for
the land use rights and the tax liabilities assumed, please refer to note
4(e) and note 4(f).

(b) Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(v), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the
actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgment is required in estimating the total
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and contract claims
which may have an impact in terms of percentage of completion and
job profit taken.

(c) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
(d) Impairment of assets

(e)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(d). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgment and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for an intangible asset that is not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on the higher of
fair value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-
use calculations require the use of estimates.

No impairment was made during the year.

Estimate of fair value of properties
The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (First Edition 2005)" published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The valuation is reviewed by qualified surveyors by considering the
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

REMBRRME
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

(e)

/)

Estimate of fair value of properties (continued)

(i) rental income derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence such
as current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using capitalisation rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the rental income.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management'’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for PRC
income taxes. There are a number of transactions and calculations
for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5 Segment information

(a)

Operating segments

Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, property and facility management services income, sales
proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from stocks of
properties and investment properties and rental related income.
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Segment information (continued)

Operating segments (continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Board of
Directors and senior management, which are responsible for allocating
resources, assessing performance of the operating segments and
making strategic decisions, the reportable operating segments are
(1) building construction; (2) civil engineering; (3) electrical and
mechanical installation; (4) property and facility management services;
and (5) property development and investment.

(@
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REMBRRME

5 SBWEH
(a) EERHE(E)

$Eﬁ$%lhx%$£ﬁtﬁiﬁﬁ(@%§$
EMREEEAR AHARNEER FEE
”"iﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ’*ﬁk’lﬁﬁm)ZWE‘BEM‘%%&
ERATERZEEBDRRNEFTREE (2)
TARIRE (3)%%*?%1& @mERFREE
BR7% - ARG R M AR E o

Property
Property & development and
Building Civil Electrical & facility investment Corporate
construction engineering mechanical management (note 1) (note 2) Total
MRERR
MER #E i’
BFRE tXIE #AIE BEEE (BsE1) (HiE2) 0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BB BB BB BRTT BB BRTT
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-Z %120
=t-BLEEE
Revenue e
- The Group - A5E 3,860,860 592,813 683,260 673,031 74,240 - 5,884,204
~Share of jointly controlled entities ~ — FE{5 R I EEE 179,966 264,387 52,571 - - - 496,924
Segment revenue Pl 4,040,826 857,200 735,831 673,031 74,240 - 6,381,128
Gross profit EF 81,1 38,785 49,082 104,335 81,965 - 505,899
Share of resuts of EhEE
~ jointly controlled entities -ARAHEE 1731 14,308 2,19 - 62 - 33875
249,083 53,093 51,236 104,335 82,027 - 539,774
General and administrative expenses ~ 1THF % (87,820) (41,507) (21,769) (85,759) (14,274) (67,823) (318,952)
Others (note 3) At (fiz3) 4535 480 (1302) 2204 (1.976) 5350 9,201
Interest income MEHA - - - 104 - 4,809 4913
Interest expenses % - - - - - (8,948) (8,948)
Operating result musE 165,798 12,066 28,165 20,884 65,777 (66,612) 26,078
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEER - - - (13,992) - - (13,992)
Overhead allocation HERAXHR (@3,907) (6,384) (2300 - (@n) 53,064 -
Profit before taxation BBt ER 121,891 5,682 25,865 6,892 65,304 (13,548) 212,086
Taxation HA (22,458)
Profit for the year REERR 189,628
Capital expenditure BARRY (11,164) (65) (1570 (4852) (1367) (3637) (21842)
Depreciation i (6,857) (1,037) (1,022) (6,946) (15177) (3,919 (34,958)
Amortisation of intangjble assets BV EERE - - - (13,992) - - (13.992)
Fair value gainfloss) on investment  REMERAERTF]/
properties (&) - - - 680 (13,100) - (12,420)
Write back of imparmentonunsold R ENFFERERR
stocks of properties - - - - 5,599 - 5,599
Gain on disposal of investment HERENEEN
properties - - - - 5,906 - 5,906
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+-A=1+-H
Bank and cash balances BIRASEH - - - 57,812 - 839,133 896,945
Bank loans BTER - - - - - (830,647) (830,647)
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 SEEH @
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) EERH(E)
Property & Property

Building Civi Electrical & faclity  development and Corporate
construction engineering mechanical management investment (note 2) Total

NER NEZER e
BTEE TATE KEIRZ RIEER RE (FizE2) 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RETTL RETTL RETTL RETTL RETT RETT RETT

Year ended 31 December 2010 HEZT-TE+ZA

=+-ALFE
Revenue e
- The Group -A£H 2,273,288 550,388 344,404 574,086 105,657 - 3,847,823
- Share of jointly controlled entities ~ —E{5 R HI B 315,004 94,786 - - - - 409,790

Segment revenue box:Liey 2,588,292 645,174 344,404 574,086 105,657 - 4,257,613

Gross profit £ 207,288 34182 34,226 93212 55,495 - 424,403

Share of results of ElE2E

- Jointly controlled entities ~HREEHEE 12,753 7,508 - - (64) - 20,197
~ Associated companies —BHERA - - - - (51) - (51)
220,041 41,690 34,226 93212 55,380 - 444,549

General and administrative expenses 1T (62,272) (35,117) (20,538) (72,047) (10,579) (53,850) (254,403)

Others (note 3) it (333) 4291 866 977 1,805 1,051 709 9,699

Interest income HMEBBA - - - 4 - 1223 1266

Bank interest expenses ST 8RR - - - - - (6,271) (6,271)

Operating resul ey 162,060 7439 14,665 23013 4585 (56,189) 194,840

Amortisation of intangible assets EVEEEE - - (300) (13.992) - - (14292)

Overhead allocation eI (33,69) (8651) (2300 - (833) 45530 -

Profit before taxation BRaTER 128,364 (1212) 12,065 9,021 44,969 (12,659) 180,548

Tasation HE (23,145)

Profit for the year KEERF 157,403

Capital expenditure BRERZ (5818) (1,242) (1,763) (4,344) (157) (4,093) (17417)

Depreciation bk} 4722 (1,059) (785) (6,249) (8613) (4330) (25,758)

Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE - - (300) (13.992) - - (14,292)

Fair value loss on an investment EEB-BRENEMNE

property in Hong Kong BB - - - - (71.227) - (7.227)

Wite back of impairment on unsold &7 2 & HENEFERE

stocks of properties in Hong Kong I - - - - 1 - m
Gain on disposal of Investment HELHERM RENE
properties in Guangzhou, PRC gl - - - - 7,215 - 7,215

At 31 December 2010 R-Z-2F+-A=t+-R

Bank and cash balances KRR EH - - - 78,055 - 569,254 647,309

Bank loans FIER - - - - - (430,000) (430,000)

Notes: B £k -

1(a). Included in gross profit was a cost adjustment of HK$15,089,000, which was 1(@). EFFFH AR AT 15,089,000 Tt 2B FE D
determined based on a revised cost estimation of a completed project in the RIER A B —IE% TI8 B ISR ANME T EE
PRC.

1(b). In August 2011, the Group and the seller of a property in Beijing agreed to ). RZF——FN\A - AEEE-HItRYEZ
terminate the sale and purchase agreement. The excess of the settlement EITMERLIEBERFZ - ANRENEZREE
amount of HK$40,000,000 was recognised as revenue in the property 40,000,000 ER B ERE DB 2 W -
investment segment.

2. Corporate mainly represents corporate level administrative activities. 2. TTREERARITBUES

3. Others represents other income and other operating expenses but excludes 3. HitigEMBAREMELHL  ETREELE

amortization of intangible assets. B
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Segment information (continued) 5 S¥EEHE @
(b) Geographical analysis (b) HEZDHT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T
Revenue Wz
Hong Kong BB 4,457,622 3,251,301
Macau JERPY 668,926 416,358
PRC H 703,488 101,793
Others Hpth 54,168 78,371
5,884,204 3,847,823
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETIT BT T
Non-current assets IEMEBEE
Hong Kong s 662,053 628,871
Macau JEFY 114 201
PRC H 298 102,583
Others Hit - 75
662,465 731,730
Available—for—sale financial asset AIHEE s MBEE 2,991 2,991
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE = 192 389
Total non—current assets IERBEERRE 665,648 735,110
Customer base analysis o EFERDH

(0

(d)

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes one (2010:
two) customer with transactions exceeding 10% of the Group's
total revenue. Aggregate revenue from the customer amounted to
HK$631.1 million and was derived from building construction and
property and facility management services (2010: HK$1,057.5 million).

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue

REBzREFER B MEFR—FZ (=T —
TE RE)BEP 2R SHEEAREEAWZE10%
NE -ZERPZWRRBEFRIEAYELR
R EIERS A £ A5%631,100,0007T (=&
—Z4F  ##1,057,500,0007T) °

(d) AFEHRBURZ K

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Reportable segment revenue ERE T Gkl e 6,381,128 4,257,613
Less: share of revenue of jointly R A LR B RS
controlled entities (496,924) (409,790)
Group revenue LS e 5,884,204 3,847,823
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6 Other income 6 HflxA
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 7 e 5,906 7,215

Write back of impairment on unsold stocks of ~ RE¥) ¥ 17 &R E R D
properties 5,599 711
Waiver of amounts due to non-controlling TR SR N R E (MRED)

interests (note i) 5,141 -
Net exchange gain b 5 Uz 5 58 2,231 4,258
Secondment fee and service centre charges B EE G E B UWE B A E ARG

received from jointly controlled entities BRAKERBHLER 1,475 3,412
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME R RERE s WRFE

equipment - 114
Miscellaneous T 1,671 2,390

22,023 18,100

Note: i
0} Due to the dissolution of a partially-owned subsidiary of the Company, the amounts (i) HARBERAARBHES ZH B AR EAIEERER

due to the non-controlling interests were waived unconditionally and irrevocably
during the year.

FORRF R R BE R L

7 Interest expenses 7 FRRAX

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Interest on bank loans and overdraft WITERRBEZ 2 FIE 8,941 4,340
Interest expense on convertible bonds AMRES 2 M ERX 3,648 -
Interest expense on senior loan note BABEREBRZFEREZ 1,505 -

Interest paid on interest rate swap FE=ts e BE 2 BEAALE
arrangement 1,029 1,931
15,123 6,271
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets 38 : RA BIREEE N 2 78 (6,175) -
8,948 6,271

The capitalised interest rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the
development of properties under development is between 3.0% and 6.5%
per annum.

RIEBRRMEMBREANESR EBENFEF
3.0%%6.5% °
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8 Profit before taxation 8 FMAAF
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cost of construction EIEAAR
— Staff costs —BIA 637,898 407,258
— Other construction costs —H AR IER A 4,179,436 2,482,317
4,817,334 2,889,575
Cost of property and facility management LIEYSE G AR Y IO
services
— Staff costs —BTIA 433,628 383,165
— Others —HA 135,068 96,166
568,696 479,331
Cost of stock of properties sold EEMEFERR 4,916 49,253
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 473 - #28 & SR @7 & 34,958 25,758
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WRREREZBBTFE
equipment 183 -
Provision for impairment of trade and Z 5 REM B TR ERE
other receivables 129 -
Amortisation of intangible assets ML EESE 13,992 14,292
Fair value loss on investment properties WEWERAREFRE 12,420 7,227
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT & 3,943 3,779
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings ~ +i i@ FELHEM S 5,760 3,475
Outgoings in respect of NTEEBEZER:
— investment properties in Hong Kong —REBZIREME 4,527 3,922
- owned property in Hong Kong —REBEB 2WE 4,718 4,005
Staff costs, included in general administrative 5T AfTEFI S 2 B TR A (Fi7E14)
expenses (note 14) 217,243 178,942
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9 Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2011 is
set out below:

EFie
BEEREE_Z——F+-A=+—HILFEZ
[ NN

2011 2010
Salaries,

allowances Contributions Share-based

and benefits to retirement  compensation
Fees in kind Bonus scheme (note vi) Total Total

URkin%

Ml 2R BT EfcHR
EENS EDka E(A0 g 1234 (PiEvi) #8 fet:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of directors ¢ 3:$1 BETT BT BT BETT BETT BETT BT
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (note i) KSR (BEE) 374 - - - - 374 200
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai THE 350 8,892 3,918 24 91 13,275 12,128
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 2EE 230 3,690 2,236 9 705 6,870 6,022
Catherine CHU KER 355 2,116 406 106 362 3,345 3,286
Barry John BUTTIFANT (note i) EiA, (Fizxi) 400 1,935 1,027 - 608 3,970 430
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung Mg 200 - - - - 200 200
Abraham SHEK Lai-him BE# 200 - - - - 200 200
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing EER 200 - - - - 200 555
David CHU Shu-ho (note i) RS (BET) 52 - - - - 52 430
CHAN Ka-kui (note v) BRxE (Mizv) - - - - - - 143
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen (note v) 21B04 (Fiztv) - - - - - = 98
2,361 16,633 7,587 139 1,766 28,486 23,692

Notes: BiRE -

(i) Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, a non-executive director of the Company has been
appointed as the chairman of the Company with effect from 17 February 2011.

(ii) Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT has been re-designated from a non-executive director to an
executive director of the Company with effect from 26 April 2011.

(i) The late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho resigned as a non-executive director and the chairman
of the Company with effect from 16 February 2011.

(iv)  Mr. CHAN Ka-kui resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 18 September 2010.

V) Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen retired as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 June 2010.

(vi)  Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share options granted by the
Group recognised during the year.

During the year, a total of 2,000,000 shares were allotted to a director of
the Company pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 22 May 2008.

No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company
under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted on
23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made for the
year.

None of the directors have waived their rights to receive emoluments for
both years.

() ARFFRMTEERRBEBLIN-_Z——F-A++LA
EERERRRBHER

iy BHERALEER-_Z——FMOA -+ BEHFRTES
AERARDRRMITESE -

iy BHHAEFELIRN-_T-——F-A+XEHRELART
FMITESRIR-

vy BRREEER-_Z-FFENAA+N\BBHERRRIENT
g%

v BEEELIR-_ZT-ZFERA-TN\REREARFEL
JEMITES

Vi) AR REREZ BERR AR BRI RBRER F AR
ZRRME

RER - A 2,000,000 HBEARAIR-ZE
NFERAZ+ - HRMNZ R SIE L 2 B RE
BEITFEERE T ARRES-

EMEFEANLERBEARANR-_ZZT_FN\A
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10 Five highest paid employees 10 AfiEEHFMES
There were two directors (2010: three) whose emoluments were among the AEERUSEeFHEERREMUES (ZF—
five highest in the Group and included in the analysis set out in note 9. TE =) EMES D HERHEIIAN-
Details of the emoluments paid to the other three (2010: two) individuals, BE&r=f (ZF—ZF W) e FMA L - HBL
who are not directors but whose emoluments were among the five highest WANREEEBRASER UGS HHES
in the Group are as follows: HEsF5m T
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Salaries and other allowances SN N2 E )R BL 8,317 5,826
Bonus TE4L 6,046 1,525
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRRE R EH BN K 220 12
Share-based compensation VAR AR 7 BBt 2 i (8 214 749
14,797 8,112
Number of Individuals in each band
BEAH
Emolument bands BewmE 2011 2010
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 78 #3,500,0017C — #&#4,000,0007T - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 76#4,000,0017T — ##4,500,0007T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 76 #4,500,0017C — ##5,000,0007T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 755,000,001 — 7 #5,500,0007T = -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 7 #£5,500,0017T — 7 %6,000,0007T 1 -
3 2
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REMBBRME

11 Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year after application of available tax
losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been

11 MIE
REERNEBRERIVRANEE 2 (5 RERREF
MR AR 2 RIBREBREE D 2+ RS R
A2 B2 90 FI B R R A R 5 R AR A

calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement
represents:

AR 48

AR ZRITHEHE

HEERAWERAR, (GTA) ZBEMT :

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Provision for the year KNEEREE

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFEB 14,545 13,551

— overseas tax —/BHINEiIE 11,563 10,484
(Over)under provision in prior years BEFE (B3 TREE (105) 2,198
Deferred tax (note 27) RAERIE (PI5E27) (3,545) (3,088)
22,458 23,145

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home
country of the Company as follows:

AEBEBBAGEN 2 HREBERAARAALE
RZBERMH 2 Bwm B ZREMT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Profit before taxation (excluding share of BB AT A (e iR S EE fIE S

results of jointly controlled entities and RESENRIER)

associated companies) 178,211 160,402
Taxation at Hong Kong profits tax rate at REBFEBRE16.5%E 2 FHiE

16.5% 29,405 26,466
Effect of different taxation rates in other EMBERTEAME 22

countries (5,332) (4,534)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAEFE (BE),/TEBE (105) 2,198
Income not subject to taxation EERBUA (11,151) (5,734)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes  “~A] 0% 2 F Sz 7,842 3,604
Temporary differences not recognised REBRIERER (1.222) (121)
Tax losses not recognised REERZHIE 11,568 4,592
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ERAERIREERCTE

losses (8,547) (3,326)

22,458 23,145
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12 Earnings per share

13

14

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$172,419,000 (2010:
HK$136,346,000) and the weighted average of 695,032,000 shares (2010:
weighted average of 671,661,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$172,419,000 (2010:
HK$136,346,000) and the weighted average of 722,221,000 shares
(2010: weighted average of 674,410,000 shares) in issue after adjusting
for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding share options and
convertible bonds during the year.

REMBRRME

12 HSERERN

FREAREFTEAQGEREEABGRENEE
172,419,0007T ( —Z—Z4F : 5¥136,346,0007T) &
FNE BT 2 INHE T 1% 21695,032,0000% (= —
T NFE I PIRE671,661,00008) 5+ -

FRESERF TR R RS E AEE G FEE
172,419,0007T ( = Z—Z4F : E#136,346,0007T ) &
BEFRRITE RIS R AR E S 2 B BE S 21k
HR % 2 BT INE A% $8722,221,0000% (=
T IR $674,410,0000%) 5HE -

Dividends 13 BKR
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RERNERAD RIS
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
2011 Interim dividend - HK3.5 cents (2010 TE-—Fh R R - FREE3.5
Interim dividend: HK3.0 cents) per share (ZE—ZFFHERE  GREE
3.01lli) 23,712 20,135
2010 Final dividend - HK3.0 cents (2009 Final —Z—Z 4R AR 2 — B ARAE3.0L
dividend: HK5.5 cents) per share ZETNFRHRE GBI
5.511l1) 20,292 36,915
Additional prior year final dividend arising from B+ S 1878 & 5c B L@ A28 B 3L hnm
increase of ordinary shares on the related oz REARR B
record date 33 -
44,037 57,050

At the Board meeting held on 23 March 2012, the Board of Directors
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend, amounting to
HK$23,659,000, of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2011. The proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend
payable in the financial statements until it has been approved by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

R-ZE-——_H#-_A_+=HEAzEEggZ
EEgRAREMHE T ——F+ -_A=+—H
IFFEIRERAR S SR EBRB®251 B
78 1523,659,0007T ° Ik HEIR AR HIAR S RN TS R K
ARBRBENKRE BEEZRESNARR K ET
ZRREAFAREG LERRAERT S AR

Staff costs 14 BIRE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Wages, salaries and allowances (including IE N2 (ERIEEEME)
directors’ emoluments) 1,231,136 921,289
Provision for annual leave FREE 3,130 4,125
Termination benefits LIRS E R 1,748 1,308
Long service payment RERG S B 1,929 691
Contributions to retirement schemes RREFFT B 47,080 36,798
Share-based compensation ARty B2 2 (8 3,746 5,154
1,288,769 969,365
Charged to cost of sales (note 8) EHIEEEER AT (Hi5E8) (1,071,526) (790,423)
217,243 178,942
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REMBBRME

15 Property, plant and equipment 15 Y - BB R
Group M
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
building improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HELH HEME & EE
RigF K& B REREM RE #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost or valuation BFBEE
At 1 January 2010 RZT-ZTF—-F—H 230,491 39,004 46,010 48,404 3,804 367,713
Exchange difference ERER - 46 - 2 25 163
Additions hE - 5,031 4,500 7,185 574 17,290
Fair value gain on revaluation DAEEHRE 38,509 - - - - 38,509
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR - - - M - (1)
Disposal HE - - (1,803) (327) (178) (2,308)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+=-A=1+—H 269,000 44,081 48,707 55,353 4,225 421,366
Exchange difference ERER - 65 - 152 35 252
Additions hE - 5,683 5,210 7,620 3,329 21,842
Acquisition of a subsidiary and assets in I —FAMB AR REEEE
Tieling (note 35 & 36) (B335K36) - 91 - 268 518 877
Fair value gain on revaluation AREEBRG 81,000 - - - - 81,000
Disposal & - (486) (958) (551) (1,106) (3,101)
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F+ZA=+—H 350,000 49,434 52,959 62,842 7,001 522,236
Accumulated depreciation REmE
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-FF—f—H (94,530) (31,120) (38,254) (29,651) (1,469) (195,024)
Exchange difference EXER - (25 - 43) (15) 83)
Depreciation for the year KEEHE (8,238) (6,519) (3353) (6,791) (857) (25,758)
Redlassification BHNE - (86) - 86 - -
Elimination of fair value gain on HEANESERE
revaluation 102,768 - - - - 102,768
Disposal HE - - 1,783 295 166 2,244
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+=-A=1+—H - (37,750) (39,824) (36,104) (2,175) (115,853)
Exchange difference ERER - (55) - (77) (26) (158)
Depreciation for the year KEEME (14,711) (6,501) (4391) (8,034) (1.321) (34,958)
Elimination of fair value gain on HEANESERRE
revaluation 14,711 - - - - 14,711
Disposal HE - 393 939 27 499 2,108
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——%+-A=+—-H - (43,913) (43,276) (43,938) (3,023) (134,150)
Net book value or valuation BEPEREE
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——%+-A=+—-H 350,000 5,521 9,683 18,904 3,978 388,086
At 31 December 2010 RZT-ZF+-A=1—H 269,000 6,331 8,383 19,249 2,050 305,513
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RENBERRHE

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The leasehold land and building was revalued on the basis of its open
market value by an independent professional firm of valuers, Knight Frank
Petty Limited as at 31 December 2011.

If the leasehold land and building had not been revalued, it would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation of HK$119,484,000 (2010:
HK$127,723,000).

The leasehold land and building is situated in Hong Kong with a medium-

15 ME BBRERME &)

ME L REF B EX A BT A ETT
BRAFKR-ZZE——F T+ A=+ —RLRHERHD

BEMR-

WHET M MEFITBEETER BSRESKA
B TENTE A 119,484,000 (ZE— T4 B IK
127,723,00070 ) it AZ E 4R B SRk o

MELHRBEFURER LHEHHEE -

term lease.
Company 2 F)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
e 8- -BEE
MERE BRER®MW RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BT T
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZE—TF—HF—H 16,389 11,470 1,097 28,956
Additions NE 2,624 1,341 - 3,965
Disposal HE - (118) - (118)
At 31 December 2010 NZZE—ZF
+=-A=+—H 19,013 12,693 1,097 32,803
Additions NE 705 1,250 1,683 3,638
Disposal & - (66) (950) (1,016)
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
+—-—A=+—H 19,718 13,877 1,830 35,425
Accumulated depreciation 2WmE
At 1 January 2010 R-—ZE—ZF—H—H (13,353) (9,419) (218) (22,990)
Depreciation for the year REFIE (3,431) (759) (265) (4,455)
Disposal & - 118 - 118
At 31 December 2010 RZT—TF
+=-A=+—H (16,784) (10,060) (483) (27,327)
Depreciation for the year REEIFE (2,405) (1,071) (445) (3,921)
Disposal & - 17 396 413
At 31 December 2011 R_ZE—F+=A
=+—H (19,189) (11,114) (532) (30,835)
Net book value RESE
At 31 December 2071 R-ZT——4F
+=—A=+—H 529 2,763 1,298 4,590
At 31 December 2010 R-E—TF
+=-—A=+—H 2,229 2,633 614 5,476
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REMBBRME

16 Investment properties 16 EWMER
The Group Z%H
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
At the beginning of the year RF A 58,500 65,600
Additions 0 - 127
Fair value loss RAEERE (12,420) (7,227)
At the end of the year RER 46,080 58,500
The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows: AEEREMERERSITHOT :
The Group Z5%H
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
In Hong Kong, held on short lease ERE RO HEERS 43,400 56,500
In Hong Kong, held on medium-term lease ERS RPBHEERE 2,680 2,000
46,080 58,500

The properties were revalued on the basis of their open market value by an
independent professional firm of valuers, Knight Frank Petty Limited.

MERBLHEZREMTHRIAHITARARIR
HAMmEER-
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FEMBRRME
17 Intangible assets 17 EEEEE
The Group % H
Other
Secured Client trademarks and
Trademark contracts relationships Sub-total trade names Total
REftERR
i1 BRaen EFRE it [ib£10 it
(note a) (note a) (note a) (note b)
E)] (Mizta) (Fizra) (MsEDp)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BF
At 1 January 2010 and RZE-ZFE-A—-ARk
at 31 December 2010 —T-TFE+-A=t-H 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 3,000 163,039
Expired EJE) - - - - (3,000) (3,000)
Additions for the year KEERE - - - - 1,600 1,600
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_A=1—H 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 161,639
Accumulated amortisation REMN
At 1 January 2010 R-ET—SF—-A—A - (8,128) (10,528) (18,656) (2,700) (21,356)
Amortisation for the year REFHRE - (6,096) (7,896) (13,992) (300) (14292)
At 31 December 2010 RZT-ZF+ZA=1+—H - (14,224) (18,424) (32,648) (3,000) (35,648)
Expired BEM - - - - 3,000 3,000
Amortisation for the year REEHH - (6,096) (7,896) (13,992) - (13,992)
As at 31 December 2011 RZE—FF+ZA=1—H - (20,320) (26,320) (46,640) - (46,640)
Net book value REPE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——&5TZA=1—H 58,469 10,177 44,753 113,399 1,600 114,999
At 31 December 2010 WZE—TEFZA=+—H 58,469 16,273 52,649 127,391 - 127,391
Notes: B -
(@ Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, (@ WEFEEEMEAZENEE BIE[E SEHK

secured contracts and client relationships. The trademark has an indefinite useful life
as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected to
generate economic benefits to the Group.

As at 31 December 2011, the management of the Group determined there is no
impairment of the trademark. The basis on how the recoverable amount of “Property
and facility management” segment, to which the trademark is related, is determined,
and the key assumptions used are the same as those used in the impairment
assessment of the goodwill allocated to the “Property and facility management”
segment (Note 18).

The estimated useful lives of secured contracts and client relationships of 5 and 9
years respectively are based on the terms of existing contracts and historical data.

(b)  The use of trademarks and trade names is under the Trade Mark Licence Deed for
the purpose of continuity of the brand name — “Hsin Chong Aster” in the electrical
and mechanical industry in Hong Kong, Macau and the Chinese Mainland for a fixed
period of 5 years and was expired.

During the year, the Group acquired the use of trademark of “Hsin Chong Aster” at a
cost of HK$1,600,000 with an infinite life. The trademark has an indefinite useful life
as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected to
generate economic benefits to the Group.

The amortisation for the year is included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

EPRF - BIRLLE R TE N EAFE RN IR
AEEFTE SN REIL R TR ER -

REZE——F+-A=+—H AEEERERTHE
WEKBHNE - ETENEEH [MEEREEER] D
A2 AR EI SR - FTRIBM EERIRAN TR RE &
RREDEE [MEEREER ] 5 B0 EETRER
HEATERAE R (HEE18) -

RSAHRBEFARZEAAIERFHRBRERFAH
2R RELBED BT REE RAF -

ERBREEFEAZBRTZRERERERM B/ 2
RTIRAFEATHAREL BAIRPEAM 2 HET
RENFECAHEDME] 2 RIERE ZHREE
STERAERFHNERER-

FR - AEBLAEE1,600,0007T A ABEUS (#1851t
E B RE ZaRR A EE A AE - iR
WRBHEEAFERFES I HNEEEANEEMES
HOAE B iR s I8 A T 78 R A EARR -

RE 2 BHWET AR A NS R G SRR
To
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REMBBRME

18 Goodwiill 18 B8

The Group F5&H
HK$'000
BB T T

At 1 January 2010 and At 31 December 2010 RZE-—ZF-A-AK_T-ZTF+_A=+—H
(note (i) (BI3EG) 18,753
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WeiEH B A7) (Mi3E36) 23,249
At 31 December 2011 W_E——F+_A=+—H 42,002

Notes:

(i) Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination. Goodwill arising from Synergis Holdings Limited, allocated to
the “Property and facility management” segment, amounting to HK$92,618,000
(2010: HK$92,618,000), was previously reduced through recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$73,865,000 (2010: HK$73,865,000).

At 31 December 2011, the management of the Group determined that there is
no impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of the “Property and facility
management” segment has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation is derived from cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year period. A discount rate
of 9.60% is adopted to reflect specific risk relating to the “Property and facility
management” segment. All sets of cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated with zero growth rate. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the budget period which have been
determined based on past performance and management's expectations for the
market development.

FESEETERRERSHPREHE 2R S EL B -
Synergis Holdings Limited (12 EEEBEBRAR) EA
ZEE BEOREMERRRERE] HE SEAASK
92,618,0007T ( —F—Z4: #1592,618,0007T) - MESC AT
BB BHERRE R BA173,865,000T (T —ZF: &
#%73,865,0007T) T LA T 7

RIB——F+-_A=+—R AEEERERTHE
WiEHBRE [PERREER ] Rz AT RE ST
BERFHEREEET - ERBENEREREMILAE
WE=FH MBREENRSRBAE - WIRM9.60%
ZHRE ARMS R [MERREER | B2 FER
B FB=ZFHN LR RIGRTIEREEL - EE
REEMBNEZMER BEFHAOHTR K ERKLL
ks EERAEREY AR BRERDREEE
REREEEHDSEROHLETE
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BEUBRBRKE
19 Subsidiaries 19 MELAT
The Company &2 7]
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRRA - A AR 2,278,063 210,468
Less: impairment in value B ORE (154,389) (118,048)
2,123,674 92,420
Loans to subsidiaries BRTHEBA T
— non-current —JEmED 463,000 206,000
— current — & 93,000 170,400
556,000 376,400
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NI 669,306 403,510
Less: provision A : A (48,571) (49,661)
620,735 353,849
Loan due to a subsidiary EEE—FHRBAR ZER (50,000) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries [ EEENEIE S (69,979) -

Loans to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are unsecured and bear
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum (2010: HIBOR plus 2% per annum).
The loans amounting to HK$463,000,000 (2010: HK$206,000,000) are
not repayable within one year and the loans of HK$93,000,000 (2010:
HK$170,400,000) are repayable on demand with no fixed terms of
repayment. The carrying amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Loan due to a subsidiary as at 31 December 2011 is unsecured and bears
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing, have
no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of balances with subsidiaries approximate their fair
values.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

R-ZE——F+_A=+—HREHETFTHERR &
B WIRF BB BRITREFREIMN2%
T -TF: FEUBRBRITRERSE M%)
ER B BEREEB 463,000,000 ( ZE—FF: #
#206,000,0007T ) EF R —FAEIE  MERFEEE
93,000,0007T ( == —Z4F: #¥170,400,0007T) 5
BESER WEETERE - ERARAENSE
BERL-
W_ZE——F+-_A=+—H0 EEE-—HEHBEA
A2 B AEIRT RIZE BEUEBRITREZEREM
2%=TEF S -

FEY, FERTFf B A R KIA T IR R 8 R EREE
ERE WABME BB

MERRFIEZ REERERNAERL-

TEMBAR 2 ERFEFIRH 45 -
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mEMBRRME
20 Associated companies 20 BELAT
The Group &£
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Share of net assets FEIEE EFE - 21

RERE WEEE R RIRE AEE21,0000 (ZE—F
F B #£448,0007T ) ©

During the year, dividends received from associated companies amounted to
HK$21,000 (2010: HK$448,000).

AEBREBERRCEE ABEREERAERR

The Group’s share of assets and liabilities and results of associated

companies is summarised below: NS
The Group &5 E

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRETT BT

Assets BE - 559
Liabilities =N = (538)

Net assets BEFE - 21
Revenue Wz - 547
Loss before tax BB BT B 18 - (65)
Tax credit IBET A - 14
Loss for the year REEEE = (51)

Details of the principal associated company are as follows:

TEBMERRZERFTINAT

Place of Effective
incorporation and percentage Issued and
Company operation of interest held paid up capital Principal activities
FRiSEBR BT
2E T B 3L R 43 i B L E=1=3- 14 RBMERE ITEEH
Infinity Goal Limited Hong Kong 30% HK$10,000 In liquidation (2010: Real estate
Hi 7 110,0007T development and leasing of a

building’s roof)
BRP(ZE-TF:
EEERIREEE)
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BEUBRBRKE
21 Jointly controlled entities 21 XFERBERE
Group &5 E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥ETT BT
Share of net liabilities EhEaEFE (28,052) (46,711)
Net amounts due from jointly controlled JE s 2k B4 ) B B BE
entities 99,350 268,263
71,298 221,552

The Group's share of assets and liabilities and results of jointly controlled

AEBEREXFAZHERZEE BRERRERR

entities is summarised below: ®REWMT:
Group F5£HE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets MENEE 499,472 355,617
Non-current liabilities FEREFEE (368,602) (295,329)
Current liabilities nEEE (158,922) (106,999)
Net liabilities ABEFE (28,052) (46,711)
Income — contracting revenue WA —& B Uas 496,924 409,790
Expenses X (463,049) (389,593)
Profit for the year NS 5 A 33,875 20,197

Net amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and not repayable within one year.

During the year, dividends of HK$17,500,000 was received from jointly
controlled entities (2010: nil).

A RZEH ERFRVEER 2EREF—F

MEE

FAGE B MR B R B S 2 A% B A8 517,500,000
TL(ZZE—FF )



Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreements, the profit sharing for each year
of all jointly controlled entities listed in above shall be distributed to the joint venturers in

proportion to their respective interests.

BEAECERBEZGT LAFMARREHERSFET 2

DEBKRE S IERHITE 2 SR HI SRS
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RAMBMRMT
21 Jointly controlled entities (continued) 21 HEEHBER®
Details of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities are as AEEEGEEZEHERB 2 ERFBOT:
follows:
Place of incorporation Effective percentage of
Name and operation Principal activity interest held
BRERESZ
£ ST RN 3L R #E U it B EEXRH BRL
2011 2010
Hsin Chong — Yau Lee Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Building construction 50% 50%
ME-—ANEELE operating in Hong Kong BFEE
EHBLS 7 IEEEE
ZEERE
Hsin Chong Construction Company Unincorporated joint venture Dissolved (2010: N/A 60%
Limited & Taylor Woodrow operating in Hong Kong Construction REH
International Limited Joint Venture for & &&= 2 FEEAE management)
Kowloon Station ZaEhE B (2 —F
FREER)
Leighton — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 50% 50%
RBUE-MEAELE operating in Hong Kong TARTER
EREBKE 7 IEEEE
ZERERE
Maeda — Hitachi — Yokogawa — Hsin Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20%
Chong Joint Venture operating in Hong Kong TARTHE
31 — B 7 — 1 — 31 S B ERBAE 2B EE
ZEERE
MBH Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20%
MBHE & (b3 operating in Hong Kong TARTE
EEBEE 2 FEEE
ZEERE
Yau Lee — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Building construction 40% 40%
B EHE operating in Hong Kong EFEEs
EEBLE 2 IEBAE
ZEERE
CRCC-HC-CR15G Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 30% 30%
hEE-FE-PEISRBERR operating in Hong Kong TARIR
EHBLS 7 IFEEE
ZEERE
GAS Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Electrical and 30% N/A
EEEHE QT operating in Hong Kong Mechanical TiEA
E?fﬁ%&“%Z?FE?iZ HETE
BERE
Hsin Chong — Maeda JV Unincorporated joint venture Building construction 60% N/A
operating in Hong Kong B i A
EEBEE ZIFBEE L
BEDE
Laing O Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul . Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 22.5% N/A
Joint Venture operating in Hong Kong +ARTIE TiEA
ERBREZIEBEE
BERE
Prolific Wealth Limited British Virgin Islands Property development N/A 33.33%
RBELHS and investment AEHR
MEERERE
Note: B 5 -
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22 Available-for-sale financial asset

23

Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following:

22 AHHEZHMBERE

AHHE M BEEBRRENTEERR

The Group &5 E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Equity securities BFEF
Unlisted, at fair value LM BANE 2,991 2,991

The fair value of unlisted securities is determined based on cashflows
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and the risk
premium specific to the unlisted securities (2011: 5.31%; 2010: 5.25%).

ELMHEHZ AAERBIBR S REBIEMEFEUKL
SEETMESFBEZEREE (ZF——%:531%
ZE T :525% BRI E

Properties under development 23 HEPYER
The Group &£
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Acquisition of land parcels in Tieling AT B £ 2 141 1R 2,479,645 -
Exchange difference EH Z5E 25,378 -
Additions during the year FHRNRE 17,140 -
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 2,522,163 -
Properties under development comprise: BRAOAYEBTE:
The Group &5 E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Land use rights + 3 5B A 2,465,903 -
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure 323 AN & & AR 2 50,085 -
Interest expense capitalised BRI ERE 6,175 -
2,522,163 -

Al of the properties under development, located in the PRC, are expected to
be realised after one year.

The properties under development include properties held for sale and
investment properties. Management has determined that the fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably determinable at this
stage of construction. The investment properties under construction will be
measured at cost until either the fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

PREBRAMEDUNTE  BMSR—FRER -

BRTOEEEREHENERKENE -TEE
e NRENEREER ERTREVENALE
BENRETE ERTREVEREKATE BE
HEAAERAIEETIRZETETKE (URFEE

RIE) o
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24 Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

24 FRERAREBPIE

The Group Z%H
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Gross amounts due from customers for EREFzITREFIEER (M)
_contractwork(mote) ek 692,29 | 509338
Raw materials, atcost  REegEA 1 1271
Stocks of car park properties, at cost BUYMEFE  BREAR 27,558 34,944
Less: impairment in value B ORE (9,558) (18,210)
Stocks of car park properties, BUYEFE RO SREE
at net realisable value e "””””‘@,70997 ;"77"771@237477
712,281 527,363
Note: MizE -
Cost plus attributable profit S DN FEA i MR AT 7B RS 1R
less foreseeable losses 6,095,921 2,742,194
Less: progress payments received and A B R FE U TR BR R
receivable (5,511,245) (2,387,036)
Contracting work-in-progress FE T 584,676 355,158
Representing: Rk
Gross amounts due from customers for GFEREZPTEET
contract work included in stocks and BIERKEFZ TIRRIBEHE
contracting work-in-progress 692,290 509,358
Gross amounts due to customers for ERERRRETEAET
contract work included in payables and accruals BIEENEPZ TRERIEEE (107,614) (154,200)
584,676 355,158
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BEUBRBRKE
25 Receivables and prepayments 25 BEWREFRRAFME
The Group &M The Company &2 5
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BEET T BT T ok
Trade receivables E SRR
— third parties —$=5 805,323 320,839 = -
— jointly controlled entity —HEZEHER - 848 = -
— provision for impairment —REEE (423) (1,375) = -
Retention receivables RESEUERFK
— third parties —$= 304,253 211,471 = -
— jointly controlled entity —HEZEHER - 5,684 = -
— provision for impairment — BB E (125) (125) = -
1,109,028 537,342 - -
Other receivables H b IR R
— subsidiaries —KIE AR - - 6,350 1,480
— third parties —%=5 53,265 44516 - -
— associated companies . W] - 859 - -
— jointly controlled entities —HEEHEE 6,841 11,141 165 215
— provision for impairment — B EE (3,024) (2,990) = -
Deposits and prepayments R kENE
— subsidiaries AN - - 1,831 1,844
— third parties —%=7 42,160 21,686 3,682 1,478
1,208,270 612,554 12,028 5,017

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's receivables and

REBERARBREIRARRBNEREEL TIIE

prepayments are denominated in the following currencies: R
The Group &5 The Company &2 5

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar o 904,298 506,479 12,028 5,017
Renminbi ARKE 256,579 97,577 - -
Macau pataca SR 46,730 4,416 = -
Other HAth 663 4,082 - -
1,208,270 612,554 12,028 5,017
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25 BRIERRTEMNE (&)
(a) EBREESEWKES
() EBIHRRESEWRESIZIEEYERD

25 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables
(i) The aging analysis of trade and retention receivables by due days

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

is as follows: T :
The Group &5 E

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not yet due K EIEH 873,475 409,878
1 to 30 days —XEZ+X 157,820 60,640
31 to 90 days =t+t—XKENTXK 43,234 7,174
91 to 180 days nt+—XE2—BNA+X 11,040 20,121
Over 180 days —BNTRAE 23,459 39,529
1,109,028 537,342

As at 31 December 2011, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business, property
rental and property and facility management services are
negotiated with and entered into under normal commercial
terms with its trade customers. The credit period for the trade
receivables for contracting business generally ranges from 30
to 60 days (2010: 30 to 60 days). The credit period of the trade
receivables for property and facility management generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2010: 30 to 60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2011, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$172,898,000
(2010: HK$62,233,000) are expected to be recovered or settled in
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade and retention receivables that are
less than 180 days past due are not considered impaired.
As at 31 December 2011, trade and retention receivables of
HK$23,459,000 (2010: HK$39,529,000), net of provision for
impairment, were past due over 180 days but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default and there is no objective
evidence that the receivables are not fully collectible.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

RZB——F+-A=+—H" HAREH
) JE UK R R 3 R P B B RO R 2 "D
% BORBEMBERE TNEETZER -

AEEREANEL MEHERMER
RIEE IR 2 EE R TIRR— MR %
GREEPAE®ENER - BEANEBDN
BHRBERZEER BN F=1TZF
RNTR(ZB-FF ZFEXTR) ¥
ERREEENE SREERZEED—
BAF=+ZRTR(ZB-FF: =+
ERNTR)

BIEAHNER 2 RE S BUERFIZ R ER
ARG EE - KK ARNRESATEE
HR AR EEEW - R - ——F+ 8
—t+—H BEFREEANIERFZR
& B UR BR TR 478 %5 172,898,0007T ( —F
—Z4E: BH62,233,0007T) ¢ TSR
£ HARE RIS ET AT — A A& B s s
fFe

HRAEEEF AT HE 5 KR E
SRBERLBEERD ZAR -

RIEERRFE 2 = Btk KAk R m
TE BB RRESEBEREFUSE DR 180K
THEAKERIE- R -_Z—F+_-A
=+—H BSRRESEMNRBERE
2 EWBR BB #6523,459,0000T (— 2 —F
F 1 7 1#39,529,0007T ) 4L E %61 B FR #8180
X BT EELRE LERESRZHE
ES B R E SR B R INE
EEEBRBE TN ZSREBRETEE2HK
@ o
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25 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued)
(vl Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

RENBERRHE

25 BEFRRTAEME (&

(a) BHREERERERS ()
) BHSRRESEEERRZREREEEN

retention receivables are as follows: N
The Group &5 E

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At the beginning of the year REA) 1,500 548
Provision for impairment RE R - 952
Amounts recovered W o1 5k 18 (952) -
At the end of the year RER 548 1,500

The provision for impairment represents trade and retention
receivables aged over 180 days in both years.

(b) Provision for impairment of other receivables
Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables are as

E R EIEME S E AR EBI180RZ
B 5 MREE BRI

(b) R 1 FE I R =k Z sk {5 42 O
Hib USSR R 2 BERBEE T

follows:
The Group &% E

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

At the beginning of the year REF] 2,990 2,904
Provision for impairment BIER 1,124 201
Amount written off as uncollectible i 5E S AT U Bl 2 FRIA (1,047) (82)
Amounts recovered qEE e (43) (33)
At the end of the year RER 3,024 2,990

As at 31 December 2011, the Group does not hold any collateral
(2010: Nil).

RZE——F+ZA=+—H FrEBWER
HREMERR (ZE—ZF &)
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26 Bank balances and cash

26 RITEFERRA®

The Group &5 HE The Company &2 7
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Unrestricted deposits, cash and bank 5 [R % 2 1758 -
balances e MIRTTHEF 892,939 647,018 1,477 2,617
Restricted bank deposits (note i) ZIR 62 WITIFHK
(PH&ED) 4,006 291 - -
896,945 647,309 1,477 2,617
Cash at bank and in hand IRITEF RS 213,448 147,354 681 1,160
Short term bank deposits (note ii) R HRR 7T R (B REii) 636,301 499,664 796 1,457
849,749 647,018 1,477 2,617
Time deposit over three months B =18 A 897 B 3K
(note iii) (B i ) 43,190 - - -
892,939 647,018 1,477 2,617

Deposits, cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

TR B RBITEFATIIEERER

currencies:
The Group &£ The Company &2 5

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar Bk 562,221 458,852 1,331 2,132
United States dollar ETT 51,551 1,924 146 395
Renminbi AR 259,291 132,282 - -
Macau pataca R 15,150 35,689 - -
Singapore dollar ¥ T 6,464 14,848 - 17
Other Hh 2,268 3,714 - 73
896,945 647,309 1,477 2,617

Notes: B 5

(i) As at 31 December 2011, restricted bank deposits represent:

R-B——F+-A=+—H ZRERITFFIE:

- a deposit given to a bank for providing a guarantee to the Government of
Macau SAR in obtaining a labour agency licence in Macau by a subsidiary.

- ARMBITRERBGEHEREME—HEL
BERPIESRENBATERRMERTET

2R
- a deposit given to a bank for any contingent payment for staff welfare on a — SR EREEEEE TENZ SAKIEMmAIBITE
PRC construction project. FrER
(i) The short term bank deposits of the Group and the Company have original maturities iy ANEBRARATZEHRITERSVNIPHEA=HAK
of three months or less. AT

(i) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 3.3% per annum iy ANEBEOTFEERIEERENEII%TE - FEHA180
and have a maturity period of 180 days. Xo
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FEMBRRME
27 Deferred tax 27 RIERIA
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability BB EAMEFERABEEREERERES
method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% for both years. BE16.5%EREEE -
The movement of the deferred tax is as follows: RIER B ZBT
The Group F£E
Accelerated tax  Property under Intangible Fair Convertible
depreciation development assets value gains bonds Tax losses Total
MERFRE BRTYE BERE AR ERE RBES ik ] @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BEETT
At 1 January 2010 RZE-Z5-A-H 2,608 - 23330 34 - (654) 25318
Charged to other comprehensive  7EE A 2 Mz AR
income - - - 23,310 - - 23,310
(Credited)icharged to consolidated S AMERA (A) /Hk
income statement (1,431) - (2,309) - - 652 (3,088)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZTHE+ZA=1+-H 1177 - 21,021 23,344 - 2) 45,540
Charged to other comprehensive  7EE A 2 Meas AR
income - - - 15,792 - - 15,792
Charged to equity RERAMR - - - - 44,846 - 44,846
(Credited)icharged to consolidated ~ 7E4R A MR A (FHA) /Hk
income statement (1,350) 602 (2,309 12 (602) 2 (3,545)
At 31 December 2011 R=E——%+=-A=1+-H (173) 602 18,712 39,248 44,244 - 102,633

ARRZELEHR AR ERRAIBREES R LR
TN o

BEEATENASRANAEELARARARGE
- MAEEHR RS R R — W B RE - RIlAT A5 BV AT IR
BESENYVARGBEREHE EF AEERHE
T BERaEERRRNRIIK:

The deferred tax liability of the Company represents the convertible bonds,
which is shown above.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in
the consolidated balance sheet:

The Group &5 The Company &2 5
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BRTT BT T
Deferred tax assets FEETIBE E (192) (389) = -
Deferred tax liabilities RIER BB 102,825 45,929 44,244 -
102,633 45,540 44,244 -

MAEEIHBERCHBEERR UWAHABRE
FISEBREBBARRERTEFER 2EHEA
Re-AEBEARBRELERBEE FREHRES
#155,665,0007T ( — & —Z 4 : #235,328,000
To) BRI AE DR R RERTIRA - BEUSE
42,389,000 2 BEBR —E——F 2 T —"FN
B (ZE—FF : 187,928,000t T ——
FEZT—AFAEM) - EARTIBLE B MR -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$155,665,000 (2010:
HK$235,328,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$42,389,000 are expiring from 2012
through 2016 (2010: HK$87,928,000 expiring from 2011 through 2015).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.
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28 Bank loans 28 MITEM
The Group &£ The Company &2 5
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Bank loans, wholly payable within BRAFRNEHEE .
five years |ITEK
— secured —BHEA 184,000 90,000 = -
- unsecured — SR 646,647 340,000 496,647 340,000
830,647 430,000 496,647 340,000
The repayment schedule of IRITER 2 BRETIR
bank loans is as follows: NN

Short term revolving bank loans  SEREERRGESR | 533000 | _ « 40000 | 199000 | _ 40000 _

Portion of bank loans due for AR—FNEEZIRIT

_fepaymentwithinoneyear  Fa#H | s - 92353 | s 2353

Portion of bank loans due for BEEREREER

repayment after one year which —FRERZIRITE
contain a repayment on demand AED
clause
() in the second year () REZFIH 37,450 19,743 37,450 19,743
(i) in the third to fifth years, iy ME=FRF
____incusve L I 240454 |  _ 277,904 FR 0 240454 | 277,904 _
S (PSP 277,904 | ___ 297647 | 277.904 | 297,647
830,647 430,000 496,647 340,000

Notes k=3

(@  The bank loans of the Group and the Company were denominated in Hong Kong @ AEERARRZBITERABE RBLAREMETSF
dollars and carried weighted average interest rates of 2.1% and 1.8% (2010: 2.9% MEDBNAE21%M1.8% (—E—FF:29%M1.7%) °
and 1.7%) per annum respectively.

(b)  The bank loans are secured by way of a first floating charge over the assets of (b) SRITEFUAARRBIMBRARIZEEIEE —ZHEE (=
subsidiaries of the Company (2010: a first floating charge over the assets of the Z—ZF PUARRRRARA—RMBARIZEEESE
Company and a subsidiary of the Company). —FEEA) o

(©  The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value. (0 HRITEFZEAEBEEEQNAEBEMERT



2011 if MELEEEMERAT 131

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMWE
29 Payables and accruals 29 EMERRENER
The Group &M The Company &2 5
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BB T T BETT BT
Trade payables — third parties ESRENER-F=7 1,191,223 750,674 - -
Retention payables — third parties RE S ER R
e =il 234,258 134,626 - -
1,425,481 885,300 - -
Other payables, deposits and HAi BRI 12 ®
accruals RIESTER
—third parties —g= 293,778 287,518 19,454 10,058
— accruals for tax liabilities — BLUEE R i 4
on acquisition of land parcels i8> EET IR
in Tieling afs 358,950 - = -
— payables for acquisition of a — BB AT 2 e
subsidiary (note i) RHRRFR (HH5Ei) 17,375 - 14,500 -
— subsidiaries — A - - 20 17
Interest rate swap contract AR EE 4
(note i) (B &Eii) - 956 - 956
Foreign currency forward contracts HMNEE IS )
(note iii) (B &Eiii) = 2 = -
2,095,584 1,173,776 33,974 11,031

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s payables and accruals
are denominated in the following currencies:

AR E RA DT BB B2 B E AT
B S AT

The Group & 5HE The Company &2 7
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T B¥ETT BT
Hong Kong dollar B 1,359,425 1,013,638 33,974 11,031
Renminbi AR 661,798 69,169 - -
Macau pataca SR 74,055 87,954 = -
Other Ef 306 3,015 - -
2,095,584 1,173,776 33,974 11,031
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29 Payables and accruals (continued)
The aging analysis of trade and retention payables by due days is as follows:

30

29 EFRERRENER @)
25 HRESEMNEXIZIMA BRSO T

The Group &5

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Not yet due FE|HR 1,346,488 823,023
1 to 30 days —RKE=1+XK 31,580 30,640
31 to 90 days =+t—RKENTXK 6,250 8,060
91 to 180 days Nt+—XE—BN+TX 11,013 3,917
Over 180 days =PA N 30,150 19,660
1,425,481 885,300

Notes: B 5 :

(iii)

The payables for acquisition of a subsidiary include consideration amounting to
HK$14,500,000 and an amount due to a director of HK$2,825,000. The amount due
to director is unsecured, non-interest bearing, has no fixed repayment term and is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

There was no outstanding interest rate swap contract as at 31 December 2011.
The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contract at 31
December 2010 was HK$90,000,000.

At 31 December 2010, the fixed interest rate was 1.8% per annum, and the floating
rate was HIBOR. Gains and losses were recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on
interest rate swap contracts as of 31 December 2010.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts
at 31 December 2010 were HK$446,000.

These foreign currency forward contracts did not qualify for hedge accounting and
were accounted for as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests
Amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair value, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

30

(ii)

(iii)

U B — R BT B8 12 ) 2 JE A< 5008 B 45 X B 5 ¥ 14,500,000
TE R N — R E EFRIE S 52,825,0007T  ERT — R EH
REAERR 2B MEETERY WABEAEM-

RoZE——F+-A=+—8 BEREE 2T x5
AR E—FE+_A=+—H KREEZ N L
A KR TE A & A7 190,000,0007T ©

REZE-ZF+—A=1—H EEBFMNER1.8% ¥
BRI REBRITAERS -RT—TF+A=+—
B BB RN R A OE RSN E P RETER-
S

TE-TEF A=+ B REEZINERBAYD
B E A& A 446,0007T ©

ZENERREOURTAE PG ZER 2WIIA
REAREF RN RBRZHEAE

Py~ (fF) JFiEBRIERRIR
FEMy/ (1) FER MRS FORTY IR IR - 2 B R M

= ym

JER=

HH - HEEmEREAERLT WE BB

REAL
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Senior loan note

On 18 November 2011, a senior loan note of HK$500,000,000 was issued
by the Company in settlement of part of the consideration of acquisition of
land parcels in Tieling, the PRC. The senior loan note is interest free for an
initial nine months and bears interest at 4% per annum thereafter, and will
mature on 17 November 2013.

Pursuant to the terms of senior loan note, it will be early redeemed in part or
in whole by the Company at any time upon the occurrence of the following:

(i) in respect of the Company, if the Company raises new funds in the
equity or long term debt capital markets and funds are raised in any
single transaction; and

(i) in respect of any subsidiary of the Company (the “Relevant
Subsidiary”), if funds raised in any transaction under which any
Relevant Subsidiary receives cash pursuant to any issuance of shares
in the share capital of such Relevant Subsidiary or any equity-linked
or hybrid security to the public pursuant to any capital markets
transaction

The principal amount outstanding of the senior loan note will be reduced by
the amount of any early redemption. No amount redeemed or repaid may
be reborrowed.

Convertible bonds

On 18 November 2011, the Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds
with a principal amount of HK$759,210,000 in settlement of the Tieling
Acquisition'. The convertible bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and will be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount on 17 November
2018 (“Maturity Date").

The convertible bonds entitles the holders to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and their expiry on the Maturity Date at a conversion price
of HK$1.53 per share. The holder of the convertible bonds has the right
to require the Company to redeem all or some of the bonds on the fifth
anniversary of the date of their issue .

The convertible bonds or any part(s) thereof may be transferred at any time
with prior notice served to the Company, provided such transfer shall also be
in compliance with the conditions under the convertible bonds and, save for
the consent of the Stock Exchange, none of the convertible bonds may be
transferred to a connected person of the Company.

31

32

REMBRRME

BEERRE
R-ZT——F+—A+N\B ARAETEE
500,000,0007T Z B L EREIE - A S UE
HEMRODBHRE- BAERZEREYNEA
BB EREEFNRI%:TE - THER T —=F
+—A+tBH 8-

BREBEEREBRZGR RELETIEMH R AR
ARERREFEOMH X2 FELERTE:

() BMARARME WARARBRRAERELE
ATBESHES URRNEMNE-RZES

(i) FARBEMMELF ([BEMBARI)Mm
5 REEIARSTESES  MRLARNE
RAIAEMEAT SR Z ML A A REITEM
BRI R D - SEIREHRPORS

BEEFZBNAEEASRE SEREFREED
PEAH -HECENACEESHRAIENRE

AR ES
R-ZZT—F+—A+N\B  ARBBTALELES
#759,210,0007T 2 T B R MR &5 - LMEA L

HBEYBER 2RE - ATRREFAEE /BN I
BR_F—-N\F+—A++tB ([2/HA])IZ100%
AL FEREM -

ABEEFETRAARS RABRRESFETA
HIZZHB QL BRI RESREH1 53T %
RARAZ BB - FATRRESFHEABRERE
REINETHMBEF W RIRFE RBEOME KD
B

AR ES S EER D AR ARRRE L ERBE
HIRBER T AEE A BB RANT A TRRES
ZIGME - BERSERSEE R RS & RIAT R AHE 5
PAIEETARRIBEA L
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32

Convertible bonds (continued)

The holder of convertible bonds will have the right to convert the convertible
bonds into the shares of the Company subject to, among other things, any
conversion of the convertible bonds (a) shall not trigger a mandatory offer
obligation under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code on the part of the holder of
the convertible bonds exercising the conversion right and its party(ies) acting
in concert as defined under the Takeovers Code; and (b) will not cause the
public float of the Company unable to meet the requirement under the
Listing Rules. In addition, no conversion of the convertible bonds shall be
made by the holder of the convertible bonds until after (1) completion of the
land parcels acquisition relating to Gongging Cheng Acquisition' or (2) the
Company having notified the holder of the convertible bonds in writing that
the Gongging Cheng Acquisition’ will not proceed to completion.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading “convertible
bonds equity reserve”. The imputed financial cost of the convertible bonds
is calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective
interest rate of 6.5% per annum. The carrying amount of the convertible
bonds approximates to its fair value as at 31 December 2011.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible bonds for the
year is set out below:

32 AR RS (#)

ARBRES A A ERR TR ESF SRR AR
AR - i (EAR B ) () SR AT R A I () T &
SIBITERBEEZ I MEESHAEARE —BITH
AL (EZE RS ST AI) IRIBURE <7 R B 2616 £ 58
BB ERERT RO TEEBARRR I RRFF
BEREN G EMRAZHTE - S RO)FERUE
R AE WM EIR W L Q)AL A A AR
BEFFAARLERAN R RABTRKBEET
TR AR E SR A AT A R AT & 55 -

TR ES DIER EREETERE R0 2
BIUR [ TR 8 % st ) 2 s - TR IR 5
2 BB RS A o % A R B 8 P R 4 )
H65%H -R-F—F+=A=1—0 TRE
% 2 REERLAREINE -

REZAMERES 2 BES EEBHFIN N T

The Group &5 E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Nominal value at date of issue RETHHCZEE 759,210 -
Less: equity component R EL Y 245,342 -
Less: special reserve A FERI 26,453 -
Carrying amount at date of issue RETHHZREE 487,415 -
Add: Interest charge (note 7) e FFEREY (WEE7) 3,648 -
Carrying amount at the end of the year REERZEEE 491,063 -

! The details of very substantial acquisitions were published in the circular dated 30
September 2011.

! FEREANEZFHBETNER_ZE—FAA=THZ
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33 Share capital and share options 33 BRFEREERE
(a) Share capital (@) BR¥*x
2011 2010
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Ein& B BRETT &5 & B BT
Authorised, ordinary shares of 5 i% ¥ if A% #%0.1
HK$0.1 each: T EERS:
At the beginning of the year RF ] 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Increase of authorised ordinary & JVA & & @A
shares 4,000,000 400,000 - -
At the end of the year RER 5,000,000 500,000 1,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEZ
fully paid: e
At the beginning of the year REL] 673,174 67,317 671,174 67,117
Issue of shares for the acquired ~ AWIEREEZR 2
land parcels in Tieling' IR ,2 BT AR D 143,000 14,300 - -
Placing of new shares? fic & 3 AR 125,850 12,585 - -
Shares issued pursuant to share  1RIERMAEBIZETT
option schemes? Z & n? 4,326 433 2,000 200
At the end of the year RER 946,350 94,635 673,174 67,317
1 On 18 November 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of ! KARRZE——F+—ATN\BETREES
143,000,000 shares of HK$1.53 each to Neo Summit Limited for acquiring $£143,000,000% & J% EE & #51.537T 2 ix 15 FNeo
land parcels in Tieling (note 35). These shares rank pari passu in all respects Summit Limited (¥FTIEFRAF]) - LAIERL 8 28
with other shares in issue. 23R (FEE35) « ZERMIFR S HEEEME
BITRHZHE RFHAL
2 On 30 December 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of 2 AARRZE——F+_A=ZTHBETREES
125,850,000 shares of HK$1.1 each to the placees. Subsequent to the year $£125,850,0000% & B BB K 1. 170 2 I F AR
end, the net proceed was used to repay the senior loan note. These shares A FERRE FISFIEFEEARNERREER
rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue. FR - ZERNER S ITHEEMEFITRNESR
B & fr -
3 During the year, these shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise 3 ZERFARBARANR_ZZNFHEA=-TZ
of options granted under the share option scheme by the Company adopted B 2 RARREET B 2 SRR AT M 31T
on 22 May 2008. R B3 2 fgfn o
(b) Share options (b) ERRME
2008 Option Scheme —EENFRRETE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
“2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

ARAR-ZBENFAA T - BRH—IER
PRt E ([ — T \FREEE]) - RiE—
T\ FRBENE ARRESATERY
BEEAGERAL (ERER -TT/\FRK
BB  BRE (EFEE)ARRIK
HMBARZE[EES SITES FFNTES
FIBI FEMITE SRR LR
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33 Share capital and share options (continued) 33 BRFEREEE
(b) Share options (continued) (b) EZRR#E (&)
2008 Option Scheme (continued) “EENERRETE (H)
Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the RZZTZNERBEAE T 2 RREFAE
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year &) RNEY RE R ZARITE R K& B
and their related average exercise prices are as follows: B2 TR ESENT
Average Number of
exercise price share options
FEITER R E
(HK$ per share) ‘000
(BT F %
As at 1 January 2010 RZE—ZFF—HA—H 1.76 48,950
Exercised [RESRES 0.60 (2,000)
Lapsed B 2.13 (5,833)
As at 31 December 2010 and RZE—FFF+-_A=+—HK
1 January 2011 —=——%—H—A 1.76 4,117
Granted B 1.41 6,750
Exercised 2Tl 0.92 (4,326)
Lapsed Bk 2.13 (2,667)
As at 31 December 2011 R-_E——F+-_A=+—H 1.77 40,874
Out of 40,874,000 outstanding options (2010: 41,117,000), 40,874,000 K17 2 R HE (Z T —FF:
31,541,000 options (2010: 28,617,000) were exercisable with the 41,117,000) & # 531,541,00015 R (==
average exercise price of HK$1.92 (2010: HK$1.89). — T4 :28,617,000) BRI {TE Y  FHITE
BREREE12T(ZZ—ZF:/8%1.89
TT) °
For the share options exercised during the year, the related weighted BLERATEL 2 R = - TER 2 18R NtE
average share price at time of exercise was HK$1.68 (2010: HK$1.06). SRR BB 68T (—ZE—F4F B H1.06
T e
Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise MARITPRIREY BB R RITEEN T
price:
Average
Expiry date EE LS| exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEITEE REEESE (T&)
(HK$ per share)
(BRRERTT) 2011 2010
22 May 2018 —E-NFRA=-+=H 2.13 25,200 27,867
9 December 2018 —Z-)\F+ZANA 0.60 - 1,000
3 December 2019 “ZE-NAF+A=H 1.02 8,924 12,250
25 April 2021 —E-—FMNA=-+HEHAH 1.70 2,000 -
31 August 2021 2 —F)\A=+—H 1.29 4,750 -
The fair values of the share options granted under the 2008 Option RIE-ZZE N\FRETEMRERREZ R
Scheme were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. RENEA-EAPETERAET - AER
The fair values of the share options, and significant inputs into the iz AARBERZERZ EE &G ASIERER

model and assumptions were as follows: IS



33 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)

2011 8 MELERBEERAR 137

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEVBBERHE
33 BRERZKE &)
(b) BB (E
—ESE\ERRESE ()

Date of issue of share options FITRARME 2 A Hf 26 April 2011 1 September 2011
—2—% —E——F
mB=+xH hAB—H
Number of share options R R 2,000,000 4,750,000
Exercise price (HK$) IEE (BB T) 1.70 1.29
Share price on grant date (HK$) RIRE BB ZRRE GBE ) 1.70 1.29
Average fair value BHRBEZFHANE (BET)
per share option (HK$) 0.578 0.544
Expected volatility TERT R & 53.98% 55.53%
Expected life of the options (years) TEERR I 2 BB () 10 10
Risk-free rate [ 6 2.65% 1.788%
Synergis Option Scheme S EEEERESR

Synergis adopted a share option scheme on 19 September 2003 (the
"“Synergis Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions

REMEEER -_ZEZ=FAATNEBBZ
BRRER HEEER_ZZE=FNLAT+N

of Synergis passed on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis M —ERERESE ([FETERRES

Option Scheme, the directors of Synergis, at their absolute discretion,
may grant share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules
of the Synergis Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any
employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent

non-executive director of Synergis or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the share options under the Synergis Option Scheme
during the year and share options outstanding as at the beginning and
end of the year and their related average exercise prices are as follows:

g)) RIS EERRET S EEEES
EREBMBETRAAEBAL(ERRFEE
ERERESS 2RI ERE(ERaE)H
EERSEMBARZEMES AITES:
FHTEERBIUFFRTESR L ERE-

FR-RBFEEEBBET S TREEZE
8 ERNFHNRERZARITEBREREEZ
WERBFHIITEBIL T :

Average Number of
exercise price share options

FHITER R E

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(FRABET) F &%
As at 1 January 2010 R_E—FF—-H—H 0.82 13,850
Granted B 0.996 750
Lapsed B R 0.86 (1,950)
As at 31 December 2010 and RZE—ZEF+A=+—8HK

1 January 2011 —Z2——F—H—H 0.82 12,650

Granted [mEs3us! 0.83 5,550
Lapsed BRRK 0.83 (2,100)
As at 31 December 2011 R-_E——F+-_A=+—H 0.83 16,100

Out of 16,100,000 outstanding options (2010: 12,650,000),
4,820,000 options (2010: 2,810,000) were exercisable with the

average exercise price of HK$0.82 (2010: HK$0.82).

716,100,000 R1TE 2 BERAE (—Z—ZF

12,650,000) & 5 5 4,820,0001D RS HE (=T —
L F:2,810,000) FETF - FHITFEERBE
0.82JL (—ZT—ZT 4 B#0.827T) °
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33 BRERZKE (&)
ON-1:2 1€

33 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

(c)

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

WARTTEB IR 2 BB RATHEENT

Average
Expiry date E|HAA exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEHTERE MR ESE (TB’)
(HK$ per share)
(BRRERTT) 2011 2010
24 September 2013 —E—=FNAZ=+IEAH 0.82 1,800 2,100
31 August 2015 —hRFENA=+—H 0.76 1,500 -
24 September 2015 —HFNLAZ=+MmA 0.83 9,050 10,550
6 June 2017 —tFANAH 0.86 3,750 -
The fair values of the share options granted under the Synergis Option RIEMETRERETS TREZEREAR
Scheme were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. BENR_IBEXAEETERET BREZA

The fair values of the share options, and significant inputs into the
model and assumptions were as follows:

REAZRARAZEZHERBRRDOT

Date of issue of share options TRz B 7 June 2011 1 September 2011
—2—XAtH —2—KhA—H
Number of share options RSB 4,050,000 1,500,000
Exercise price (HK$) IEE (BT 0.86 0.76
Share price on grant date (HK$) REE B H 2 I’RE BT 0.86 0.76
Average fair value
per share option (HK$) BHBEREZFHARE (BEIT) 0.212 0.201
Expected volatility TERT K 18 46.30% 52.92%
Expected life of the options (years) TEERRE MR AE 2 B () 6 4
Risk-free rate A [ i ) 2R 1.63% 0.53%
The expected volatility was based on the historical volatilities of the TEETRRDIBEFEEERENBEHHE (8

share prices of Synergis over the period that is equal to the expected
life before the grant date.

2002 Share Scheme
The 2002 Share Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 23 August 2002. Pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme,

ERBIER H B AT AR A R 2 #f)
N2 R IEESE

(0 Z—EE_FREHY
TR CERBEABDARRABRRR -TE
“ENAZTZARK - RE_ZT_FRE

the directors may make offers to full-time employees and executive e EEAMAEE ([AEE]ERAXZE
directors of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing the ERZET _FREFE ZHBRND R KA
2002 Share Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under ZET - FREFENRAE T 2R £

the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme) who have worked for a period
of not less than six months to subscribe for shares in the capital of
the Company. The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from 23 August 2002, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share
Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no share was issued and
allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme.

PAPRANERAZEZREERATERRER
BB ARBARRRAF 2B - —FT—
FREFEAKR _FTZT_F/\A -t =G
TFERERREFAR ERE-FT_FR
BBAT I Z R B F LA IERIBR S o

BE-Z——F+-A=+t—RALEFERN #
BRIE—_ZT _FRBA BT REERD -
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REMBRRMWE
34 Reserves of the Company 34 FF)EMw
Capital Convertible
redemption  Share options Special  bonds equity Retained
Share Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
THRES
KRR BRIREHEE  DRERRE W BI G R R REEH #a
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Not\e i) (No(e ii)
(P D)
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-25—-A—H 181,178 4,420 24,157 - - 129,634 339,389
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 129,543 129,543
Issue of share capital upon share options TERRENETZ
exercised Hﬁ iy 1,000 - - - - - 1,000
Equity settled share-based transactions MM”E%%ZM&
- - 4,462 - - - 4,462
Transfer upon share options lapsing “”H%E%Kﬁ@% - - (3,064) - - 3,064 -
Share options forfeited BUGRRE - - (520) - - - (520)
Transfer upon share options exercised ETE AR A 339 - (339) - - - -
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - (57,050) (57,050)
1339 - 539 - - (53,986) (52,108)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-FF+=A
=T— 182,517 4,420 24,696 - - 205,191 416,824
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 299,435 299,435
Issue of shares BITRA ) 125,850 - - - - - 125,850
Transaction cost of issuance of shares BORAZRBHEA (4332) - - - - - (4332)
Issue of share capital upon share options Elfﬂiwﬁﬂgﬁ?‘ﬁz
exercised 5,027 - (1,467) - - - 3,560
Equity settled share-based transactions L/(Hﬂ"ﬁ%%mﬁé
BERH - - 2,868 - - - 2,868
Transfer upon share options lapsing A RRER TR - - (2,042) - - 2,042 -
Issue of shares and recognition of special E’*mﬁﬂﬁl%ﬁk%ﬁiﬁﬁ&
reserve and equity component of TRAR
convertible bonds upon completion of ﬁﬁwi’—ﬁﬁﬁxfs%z
land parcels acquisition in Tieling Rl E R ER
) ) 204,490 - - 332,046 245,382 - 781,878
Deferred tax liability on recognition of RUMBEEEES
equity component of convertible note HiA 2 BIEHE
&l - - - - (44,846) - (44,846)
Dividends paid BARE - - - - - (44,037) (44,037)
331,035 - (641) 332,046 200,496 257,440 1,120,376
At 31 December 2011 RZB——%+ZA
=1t—A 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 462,631 1,537,200
Representing: R&:
Reserves [#E 182,517 4420 24,696 - - 184,899 396,532
Final dividend proposed in respect of the ~ #ZE-F—TF+=A
year ended 31 December 2010 =+-HALFEZ
BERERE - - - - - 20,292 20,292
At 31 December 2010 RZB-Z£+ZA
= 182,517 4,420 24,696 - - 205,191 416,824
Representing: H&:
Reserves ] 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 438,972 1,513,541
Final dividend proposed in respect of the ~~ #ZE-F——4#+=4
year ended 31 December 2011 =+—-HLFEZ
RORRGRE - - - - - 23,659 23,659
At 31 December 2011 RZB——%1ZA
_‘I‘ B 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 462,631 1,537,200
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GAMBERNE
35 Acquisition of assets — land parcels in Tieling 35 WIS E - Es iR
On 18 November 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital RZE——F+— A+ N8 XEERNeo Summit
of Rosy China Investments Limited and Sorano Investments Limited, which Limited (¥TIEHBR A E]) YW iERosy China Investments
hold the land use rights of certain land parcels in Tieling, the PRC (the LimitedEZSorano Investments Limited .z 2 #F 2 3 1T%
“Tieling Acquisition”), from Neo Summit Limited, which is indirectly and Ko-ZMEARRFEPREESEE Ty T @A
partially owned by a director of the Company, at a total consideration of 7 ([#5E0BE=18]) - Neo Summit Limited (¥7I&45
HK$1,828,000,000, which was satisfied by the way of: AR BARAREEMER B RO ER BRER
781%1,828,000,0007T B LA T AT A SZ A -
(i)  HK$350,000,000 by cash consideration; ()  7B¥350,000,0007C AR S RE S
(i)  HK$500,000,000 by issue of senior loan note; (i)  7E¥500,000,000 LB BETELERZES
i
(i) HK$218,790,000 by allotment and issue of 143 million shares at the (i) 7E#218,790,0007Ti5 B AR AR TE TSRS
issue price of HK$1.53 per share by the Company; and &1 5370 ie 2% K2 %% 177143,000,0000% f& 1 37 1+
&
(iv)  The remaining HK$759,210,000 by issue of convertible bonds by the (iv) EREEBHE759,210,0007TiE B AR 7] 81T A HARK
Company. BEHET
Neo Summit Limited became a shareholder of the Company following the RER BRI 51 * Neo Summit Limited (#TIEB R A
completion of the transaction. The purchase constitutes an asset acquisition BB ARRARIZIRE - BRANEEK —BEEKE
and a related party transaction. Details of the Tieling Acquisition are LTS  EEEEWEEIEZ FIEH0T
summarised below:
Carrying
amount
before Adjustments
combination on acquisition Fair value
aftEiz Btz
IREE RE NRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT BETT
Land use rights + 3 B A4 574,896 1,904,749 2,479,645
Other net assets acquired: BB E A EFE
Property, plant and equipment s MBS KR 569 - 569
Accounts and other receivables BR B M H fh FE U BR 3R 172 - 172
Bank balances and cash wITHETFRES 84,626 - 84,626
Accounts and other payables 8RB RE M ERBRER (76,105) (355,314) (431,419)

584,158 1,549,435 2,133,593
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35 Acquisition of assets — land parcels in Tieling (continued)

36

35 WIRWE - ESZ s (o)

Nominal Fair
Value Value
IREE NRE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRTT BETT

Satisfied by: AR B 24+

Cash consideration RENE 350,000 350,000

Senior loan note BREEREE 500,000 500,000

Convertible bonds AR ES 759,210 732,757

Issuance of shares 21T M 218,790 218,790

1,828,000 1,801,547

Special reserve, being fair value FRlECWEEETE

difference between net assets HENREZANBEERE

acquired and consideration paid 332,046

2,133,593

Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of B EFUREE#i a1k 2

land parcels in Tieling: WE M FEE

Cash consideration paid ENBEeRE 350,000

Bank balances and cash acquired BUEERITHETFERE (84,626)

265,374

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 25 November 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired the entire issued share capital of PS Hong Kong Limited (now
known as Hsin Chong Property Development Limited) (“HCPD"), which
was wholly and beneficially owned by a director of the Company before
the acquisition, at a consideration of HK$19,500,000. HCPD engages in
providing real estate related investment advisory services. The purchase
method is adopted for this acquisition, resulting in goodwill arising from the

acquisition of HK$23,249,000.

36

S —REMEE AR
NZZT——F+—A=-+HA ARB2EHBRT
I8 PS Hong Kong Limited (25 #8Hsin Chong Property
Development Limited¥T & EZERBRAF]) ([
BHEZER]) 22HDEITRG ZARRKES
BRHARRAEEERERRE REABE
19,500,0007T - # EMEH R T EZ W EF HERBR
BRI RS - B S BRGNS  EBURES
THE 4 P9 B8 1523,249,0007T ©



142  Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) 36 WiE—MMBAT (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at U B AT T s R B E R RIEBEZ AR
the date of acquisition and the effect of the acquisition are summarised as BERKBSEBE ZEMET:
follows:
HK$'000
BRTT
Consideration transferred: EHEERRE
Cash consideration RBeRE 5,000
Payable as of year end RERER 14,500
19,500
Net liabilities acquired: EEaEFREE
Property, plant and equipment Y Hes KRR 308
Accounts and other receivables 8RB R H fth FE U BR R 6,991
Bank balances and cash WITHEFERES 1,426
Accounts and other payables 8RB R EMERRER (3.441)
Tax payable FERTRIE (33)
Bank loans RITER (9,000)
(3,.749)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: EYEmEE 2 mE:
Consideration transferred EEERE 19,500
Add: net liabilities acquired mEREEERE 3,749
23,249
Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of a subsidiary: HUE—EMRB AR R RL F5E:
Cash consideration paid EfRBReRE 5,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BUEERITETFRES (1,426)
3,574
The gross contractual amount for accounts and other receivables acquired is BB E R R R H A EUGRIE 2 & M 25N £
as disclosed above and no amount is expected to be uncollectible. SCHE ER - T8 AN A ERIE S AT e o
The goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to HCPD's workforce, WEEEMES B ERARTEHEZENSD
and the synergies expected to arise after the acquisition. 71 R M BB & TR ET EE A A 1o (R AR FE o
The acquired business contributed no revenues and recorded a loss of AREEEE-_T——F+=-A=1+—HIHH"
HK$2.0 million for the period from acquisition up to 31 December 2011. If Fri i 7 W E A R B R WS BB
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2011, the contributed revenues 2,000,0007C - W EEFEIBEN —_E——F—HA—H%
and recorded loss would have been HK$7.3 million and HK$4.1 million & B B R ERE 1B #8 9 Bl A& 1 7,300,0000T

respectively. K 7&H4,100,0007T °
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Disposal of a subsidiary 37

On 21 September 2010, the Group disposed of Supreme Property
Management Co. Limited for a consideration of MOP499,000 equivalent to
HK$484,000.

REMBRRME

HH 1 2 )

N-BE-ZFHLA-+—B AEBEEHRDE
BEIEAR AR KB ARPIEE499,0007T (HHE RH
#484,0007T) °

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment LERE IS E e 1
Accounts receivables HoAth FE U AR R 438
Bank balances and cash RITBEFRBES 131
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (136)
484
Analysis of net cash inflow in respect of disposal of a RHE—FNBARZRESRAFEIM
subsidiary:
Cash consideration RERE 484
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHERTEFRES (131)
Net cash inflow in respect of disposal of a subsidiary MEE—FNBAR RS MAFRE 353
Financial guarantees 38 MHikF
The Group &M The Company &2 5
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T B¥TT BT T
Guarantees given to financial A THRARERES
institutions for facilities granted to REMAR T I 5
ZPER
— subsidiaries — B QA - - 2,675,042 1,510,763
— jointly controlled entities —HEEHEE 264,340 259,726 264,340 259,726
264,340 259,726 2,939,382 1,770,489
Contingent liabilities 39 RAR
At 31 December 2011, the Group is subject to various claims on liquidated REZZB—FF+ZA=+—H FAEER—BEEA
damages on certain construction contracts during the normal course of BRERZESRATEREANZ THERERE -E
business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has applied ERE AEBEREPRFARMEECEFESE
extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any resulting A FrELA 2 B BT B ARER 2 BIHGHRREK T
liability would not materially affect the financial position of the Group. MERFE-
Major non-cash transactions 40 EXERERH

Prolific Wealth Limited (“Prolific Wealth”) was formed for property
development and investment with a investor as a jointly controlled entity in
April 2010. In July 2010, a sale and purchase agreement was entered for
acquiring a property in Beijing and a deposit of HK$100,000,000 was paid
to the seller. The deposit was contributed by the Group and was included
in the net amount due from jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
2010. In April 2011, the investor of Prolific Wealth agreed to transfer all
equity interests to the Group and Prolific Wealth became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. In response to the change of shareholding, the
Group’s net amount due from jointly controlled entities was then reclassified
to deposit paid for acquisition of a property.

Prolific Wealth Limited ( [ Prolific Wealth | ) /& 7x £ [ B2
REHEH T —TFE AR LRI EE K
Y EMAETYERRERE - R_E—TFLAH"
BHEBEBARIE RN EMILEE W I E
ME X &4 7 #100,000,0007T ° 5% E 18 & A
E@ESfM W ARE—FTE+-_F=+—HBZ
JEWEEIE S BB FEN - RS ——FNA -
Prolific WealthZ & & & R B85 B AT A IE T AL E
T Prolific WealthiX & AN E B 2 EHEAHE AR - B
PREAEHIR S NEE 2 EURERIE S EIEFA
B OEBODENSEAREMEZE MR-
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40 Major non-cash transactions (continued)
In August 2011, Prolific Wealth and the seller agreed to terminate the sale
and purchase agreement with a consideration of HK$140,000,000. The
excess over the deposit paid, amounting to HK$40,000,000 was recognised
as revenue (refer to Note 5).

Out of the HK$140,000,000, HK$28,000,000 was settled by cash before
31 December 2011.

41 Related party transactions

Before 18 November 2011, the directors regarded Upper Luck Holdings
Limited (“Upper Luck”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, as its ultimate holding company and Carrick Worldwide ("Carrick
Worldwide") a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the
immediate holding company. Subsequent to the acquisition of land parcels in
Tieling (Note 35) and the issuance of new shares as part of consideration to
Neo Summit Limited, Upper Luck and Carrick Worldwide hold less than 50%
of the issued share capital of the Company and therefore ceased to be the
ultimate holding company and immediate holding company, respectively, of
the Company.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@ In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary

40 EXFEREETH (&)
R-ZE——F)\ A  Prolific WealthE2 & F R Z 4% F B
Fipis o RIEBAB140,000,0007C c RBBHEET
% B Z 875 %540,000,0007T B HER AU (B2
£5) °

A& #5140,000,000 KRB - E A& #528,000,000
TOR-—E——F+-A=+—HUBEI -

41 RELATXS
RZE——F+—HA+/\AF EF K Upper Luck
Holdings Limited ([Upper Luck |) (REBRLES
AR 2 AR B AR SRR AR Ri§Carrick
Worldwide Limited ([ Carrick Worldwide |) (A %EE
BABRESFMEIZ AR BAREEEIER AR H
Ue g Ei sttt (F3E35) REITHD F Neo Summit
Limited (¥ B R A &) 1EAIBMDREE - Upper
Luck } Carrick Worldwide3s 5 28 A &) D 1A50% 2 B, 3
TR AR BTN BARRR Z REERA R
N E=R el UNCIR

HEBERRZRZMT

@ MREEVBBRRARBEEATEMIN REF
NAEBERBEERAREREEBERZIEAR

of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary FWEWNT -
course of business between the Group and its related parties during
the year.
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Revenues &
Billing on contract to a jointly FEE T —HREZEHEEEHOIENR
controlled entity (note i) 18 (P &Ei) 2,317 110,758
Secondment fees and service center e HEESELE 2 IE B EARS
charges received from jointly WA R B0 B R (B 5Eii)
controlled entities (note ii) 1,475 3,412
Expenses FX
Membership and golfing expenses Eff—MEEARzEERERE
paid to a related company (note i) ke &R (W) 1,192 -
Notes: B 37 -

(i) A subsidiary provided electrical and mechanical installation services to a jointly
controlled entity on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

(i) Secondment fees received from jointly controlled entities represent staff
secondment services provided by the Group to the joint venture projects.
The relevant services were reimbursed at an agreed cost based on time and
expenses allocated to the joint venture projects. Service centre charges received
from a jointly controlled entity represent administrative services provided by the
Group on a fixed monthly sum negotiated at arm'’s length.

@iy~ Membership and golfing expenses paid to a related company was concluded
on terms and prices agreed by both parties

() —MBARRERKELRTRRE T —HRIEH
B - ARGRRERDEETHE

iy WEHAEHEEREREARSEARSTEER
BELREAR RHESERRYE - ARRBIRZE
BECEBREMBOBZERRAXZERET
PRAMTIE - B — BRI ERZ RETOERR
AEE R Z ARG ERRHETHERRY AR
RS Tod X IRBIRTSL - LABIE A B E -

(i) BN-—FMEEARZEERSBRERGEM IR
2 TYIRE T E 2GR KB AT L °
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41 Related party transactions (continued) 41 RELARRS ()
(b)  Key management compensation b)) FEBEAEZHE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries and other benefits S N2 B fAE 48,361 42,316
Bonus TEAL 20,710 10,601
Contributions to retirement scheme BARETE Z R 1,558 1,279
Share-based compensation LARRAD B 2T 2 w8 2,958 4,086
73,587 58,282

42 Capital Commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the capital commitments in
respect of office equipment as follows:

42 BEKIE

RHEER AEEZRAEREERNAZRFINT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Authorised but not contracted for EREERTY 1,340 2,617
Contracted but not provided for BEETAVE AR 1,311 -
2,651 2,617
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43 Commitments under operating leases 43 EEHYIKIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REFE R REBBETATEGE 2 2 EHOFRR
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REZF 7 &ERERBRBEAT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Land and buildings T RIEF
— not later than one year —F—FNR 8,286 3,249
— later than one year but not later than —FBFEFRFRA
five years 12,656 805
C e e 4054
Office equipment WA
— not later than one year —E—FNA 188 364
— later than one year but not later than —FFEFRFA
five years 380 728
RPN LSS0 SRS 1092
21,510 5,146
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REER ANEERB ARG 2 ZEMRLY (—HE
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically EHA—ZT=F )NANKEWK  FEEEFHIELZELN
run for a period of one to three years, as follows: T
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Land and buildings T RIEF
- not later than one year —%—FN 22,026 15,187
— later than one year but not later than five —FFEFRFR
years 26,900 22,564
48,926 37,751
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REMBRRME

4 GaBRaRERME
BBATHAEEE 2B ERA (Rt RAFEY

44 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow/(outflow) from

operations is shown as below: BRIIRAAT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit before taxation PR 7% A& A 212,086 180,548
Amortisation of intangible assets ML EESE 13,992 14,292
Cost adjustment/reversal of impairment EHERAANFT A ZDEFEKAR

loss of stock of properties credited to cost of — FH% /I B &5 18 =

sales (15,089) (18,560)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥J% « #2232 T E 34,958 25,758
Fair value loss on an investment property in ERABZIREMEARERE

Hong Kong 12,420 7,227
Fair value loss on foreign currency forward INERHIE N A REEE

contracts - 3)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMERF (5,906) (7,215)
Net finance costs BhE R A F R 4,035 5,005
Net provision for impairment of receivables FE U AR ROR (B RS 8 F 58 129 1,174
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, EEMEE - e REREEE CaF)

plant and equipment HER 183 (114)
Provision for annual leave FREH 3,130 4,125
Provision for long service payment KRB & B HE 1,929 691
Share-based compensation AR B 20 2 7 (8 3,746 5,154
Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities &1k 3 [F] %2 Il & 5% 2 Bt & A 5], 355 F)

and associated companies HEE (33,875) (20,146)
Waiver of amounts due to non-controlling A R SRR I R IR

interests (5,141) -
Write back of impairment on unsold stocks of >k H & ¥ % 17 & Rl (& 3]

properties (5,599) (711)
Operating profit before working capital EEESFHA ZEERT

changes 220,998 197,225
Increase in properties under development RPN (36,343) -
Increase in stocks and contracting FE R EEP TR

work-in-progress (179,319) (318,045)
Increase in receivables and prepayments FEU AR R R B 23 N (488,086) (139,010)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from FEM IR AR A SR TR D (3En)

a non-controlling interest 259 (259)
Increase in payables and accruals FEATBR AR FE ST B A3 AN 481,916 132,536
(Increase)/decrease in restricted deposits SIRBIFR (), R (3,715) 1,884
Exchange differences E N =58 19,914 (2,208)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 2R RN Gt F58 15,624 (127,877)
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45 Principal subsidiaries

45 FEMBELT

Place of .
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries  paid up capital Principal activities
L7 B/ &R/ EE e *SERBERERESY ERETRBRRSF TERE
b SN HELRE
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong - 100% \HK$85,000,002 Property investment
) 585,000,002 MERE
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered contractor services
 Company Limited ! BM#25000T  EEERE
AERE (4P HRAT
Everich Construction (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000 Provision of renovation and
BREE (R BRAF i JBFIH5,0007C fiting-out woks
REFFRENEB IR
Glenwell Orient Limited Hong Kong - 70% HK$100  Investment holding
EERABRAA 0 BRI BERK
Guangzhou Fengyu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* People's Republic of China - 0% HK$80,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &3) \ REARENE 80000000 FHEER
EMEREESR AT (FF1R3)
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and
_(Macau) Limited A BPYE25,0007T cvil engineering
TERERLIAIR (BM)BBRAF BFREERTAIRE
Hsin Chong - Hsin Chong Aster Joint Venture Hong Kong - 100% - Building construction and
ME-mentEye 5% mechanical, electrical and
building services
BERERBEIRR
EFRE
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
HEGHEETRERRLF 5% JBH5,000,0007C building services
ETRREFH
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000  Building construction and
MERER (TN ERAR Bk (Note 4) civil engineering
HK$20,002,000 BEFEERTALE
76%10,000,0007T
o (Fse)
75120,002,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000 Investment holding
EBRERES BEIs0000m  WEAEK
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$20,000,000  Building construction and
HEEERARAR B (Note 4) civil engineering
HK$2,000 EBFRERLATIZ
%%20,000,0097_5
(FizEa)
12,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* People's Republic of China - 100% US$8,100,000  Building construction and
(Notes 1 &2) REAREME %48,100,0007C civil engineering
MEEEREBRAR (M 1R2) BFEERLIATRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Demolition work and addition
HELER (IR)ARAA Bk 7B H£5,000,0007C and alteration

FRIRENERIGETE
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45 FEREBLF (&)

REMBRRME

Place of , .
incorporation / The Group S eﬁectlve
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
48 R/ EEE SRERBEREREAL EETRMERF TEEE
b NG| MELR
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
HEEE (M) BRAA B BT services
BREEBRRE
Hsin Chong Construction Management Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Construction management
HEBEERERAR 5% BRI services
BEEERE
Hsin Chong Construction Management Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
_ Senvices Limited B 751,000,007 services
HEEBERREERAT BREERRE
Hsin Chong E & M Engineering (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
MERTIR (TM)ARRR b 712,000,0007C building services
KETERETRH
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
HEIR(RM)BRAA R HBFI25,0007 services
BREEBRRE
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation and
HMEERRM (B8)BRAA B 78 11,000,0007C addition and alteration
EREE BIENRR
YETR
Hsin Chong (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore - 100% $$300,000  Construction and provision of
EiipilE g construction related services
30000070 BiEREREERERE 2 R
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited People’s Republic of China - 100% US$36,499,975  Real estate development
(Note 2) \ HEARLNE E$3649975T EHEER
EEEREEERAF (M)
Liaoning Tonji Property Investment Limited People’s Republic of China - 100% US$33,499,994  Real estate development
(Note 2) \ PEARKEANE REBAVIUT  FHEER
BEREEZERAT (F3R2)
Perfect Mark Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$227,355,000  Investment holding
(now known as Hsin Chong Property RERAES ££27355000r  REEK
Holdings Limited)
(REFEHELRERAF)
Prolific Wealth Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$3  Property development and
EBRAES 831 investment.
MEEREKE
PS Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong - 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
(now known as Hsin Chong Property B ££2,502,1917T and asset management
Development Limited) consyltangy services
(RBHEHERRERAR) REREREAEERERRYE
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% Uss$1 Investment holding
HERUHE 8T REER
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
E B0 FEHERR
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% Uss$1 Investment holding
RERUHE Xer  REER
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45 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 45 EEMBELAT ()
Place of .
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries  paid up capital Principal activities
NG| R/ Eei e FREARBEREREAN EERTRARERE TERE
SN HELR
SecurExpert Solutions Services Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$2  Provision of security and
(previously known as “Hsin Sheng Securityand &8 BT consultancy services
 Consultancy Services Limited”) RURZ RERRY
%ﬁﬁ%i%ﬂiﬁi‘%ﬁ[ﬁﬂﬁ]
(A 3 RL REREREERAE])
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$2 Provision of laundry services
AXRERBERAT B BT REEKERS
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$200,000  Provision of cleaning services
HRERBERAT Bk BE200000m  REERZRS
Optimum Engineering Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$2  Provision of repair and
EREIRERAR BE BT maintenance services
RELBERRERS
S-Club Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$1  Sales of products, provision of
Bk BEIT copying services, property
holding and provision of
membership programmes
HEER REEHIRS
BANERREEEER
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$2 Provision of property services
HRRBERAR Bk BT REMERD
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1 Investment holding
EBERUHE X2t REZR
Synergis Holdings Limited Bermuda/ Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$33,200,000  Investment holding
MEEREBERAA ARE/EBE A%332000000  REARR
Synergis Management Services Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$206,837  Provision of property
HEEERBERAA B B 1206,8377C management services and
investment holding
REUMEEE RS LRERR
Synergis Facility Management Limited Hong Kong - 50.9% HK$200,000  Provision of facility
MERBERERAA Bk 78 1200,0007C management services
RESHEERS
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of ERIRZAEENB AR EERA  NEEEE
the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give KEEFEXZERAMFE -EENRE RBRHES
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in AEMHBARMNFE BEEERTE-
particulars of excessive length.
Notes: Pt EE -
1 Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 1 HHRERNEGTMEBEX
2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 2 INEBEDE
3 Equity joint venture 3 BEME
4 Non-voting deferred shares 4 EREREBIER D

*  for identification purposes only £ (%5
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.'Eiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁi

Nine months
ended
31 December Year ended
2008 31 March
BE-ZZN\F =
+=A =A
Year ended 31 December =t+—Hit =+—H
HE+-A=1+—HILEE NEA tFE
2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BETT BETT BT BT
Operating Results BERE
Revenue Wz
- Group -£H 5,884,204 3,847,823 2,900,304 1,836,740 2,494,727
— Share of jointly controlled entities - EEERERES 496,924 409,790 582,160 212,331 274,980
6,381,128 4,257,613 3,482,464 2,049,071 2,769,707
Profit before taxation BRAEATEF 212,086 180,548 135,556 19,998 135,985
Taxation I (22,458) (23,145) (16,502) (14,180) (14,946)
Profit after taxation CY it Sl 189,628 157,403 119,054 5818 21,039
Non-controlling interests kR (17,209) (21,057) (9,947) 924 2,883
Profit attributable to equity holders of ADAERRBEA
the Company e F 172,419 136,346 109,107 6,742 123,922
Assets and Liabilities HERER
Total assets BEE 6,005,307 2,522,595 1,912,544 1,766,226 1,533,832
Total liabilities BefE (4,053,112) (1,708,179) (1,298,118) (1,234,085) (873,820)
1,952,195 814,416 614,426 532,141 660,012




152

Major Projects

FETRETHAE

Major Projects In-Progress

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2011

RRETRZEETE
Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
IBRT FREMEES RIAH RH®RIAH ER/REEE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
BrEs
The Intergrated Contract for construction of 40% November 2009 October 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Public Rental Housing Development at Kai Tak Site 18 ZZZNF+—A ZE-=F1A EAFEZEG
RSB AREBEREERE 2 RAMIAR
Contract 3 works for the Redevelopment of 100% November 2010 February 2013 Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited
Hong Kong Sports Institute at 25 Yuen Wo Road, Shatin* ZT-ZTF+—A —T—=F=R BEEREERBRAT
PERRE-_TRRASRAZRERTIRE
F-HANTIRE:
Superstructure works for academic and 100% December 2010 September 2012 City University of Hong Kong
administration building for City University of Hong Kong* —T-TF+=A —Z-ZFNA BAWTAE
EBPMABHERITRAR FEFET R
Baptist University Road Campus Development for 100% November 2010 June 2012 Hong Kong Baptist University
Hong Kong Baptist University* ZT-ZF+—A —E-ZFRA BBRERE
AERGRBREGRBERERRE*
Proposed Residential Development at Tsing Lung Road 100% December 2010 August 2012 Evermatch (Hong Kong) Limited
Area 58, Siu Lam, Tuen Mun ZE-ZF+ZA —E-—FN\A KE (BB)BERATF
HRYMEEE T \RBREREETETHRIER
Construction of Development at Ex-Shatin Married Quarters 100% August 2010 March 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
FYHCEABEEREERTE —ZT-ZF)\A —T-=%5=8 BEEEZE®
Commercial Building Development 100% January 2011 June 2012 Boom View Holdings Limited
at 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong —E——%—-f —E-—FXA
ERHEFERTHFETERER
Construction of Shatin Area 4C 100% July 2010 April 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
DEBACRHEETZ —Z-TFLR —T-=%M0A EEEEZES
Proposed Residental Development at 5A, 5B, 6, 6A, 7 and 100% February 2010 January 2012" Cateavon Limited
7A Ying Fai Terrance and 9A-9H Seymour Road, - ZE—F-A"
Hong Kong
BV HIBE5A, 5B, 6, 6A, 7TRTAFE EIEIAOHE 2
RREEERIER
Construction of 2x300-Place Student Hostels for 100% April 2011 July 2012 The Chinese University of Hong Kong
The Chinese University of Hong Kong —Z——FWA —E--FtA BN
BBRXKRBEEER2C00EBAEETER
Proposed Residential Development 100% August 2011 December 2013 Keen Well Holdings Limited
at No. 1 Sai Wan Terrace, S.I.L. 761, Hong Kong —E——N\A ZE-—=51+ZA BREEARARA

BEREHENNBRIIRAEE R EETERER
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FTETREH

Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
IBAE FREMEES FIBR AT EA EF /REEE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION (continued)
ByEE ()
Building Construction Contract for 100% February 2011 January 2013 Huawei Investment & Holding Co., Ltd.
Huawei Hang Zhou Production Plant (Phase Il) —T——%ZA —ZE—=%—H8 ERINEERER AT
EAMMNEERRE (F-H)MEFRETE
Project Symmetry — New Data Center at Shatin 100% December 2011 November 2013 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
— Main Contract for the Substructure and ZE——F+ZA ZE—=F1—A8 Corporation Limited
Superstructure Works BB LBELRITERAR
AFEEXRE
Proposed Research and Academic Building for 100% February 2012 May 2014 The Hong Kong University of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology ek : Sy —E-MFERA Science and Technology
FERBARERFEA BRI BEREAZ
Main Contract Works for Wonder 8 Data Centre 60% October 2011 January 2013 NTT WT Hong Kong Limited
at Tsueng Kwan O Industrial Estate —E——%1H —E—=F—A8
HERTRENTTZET O 2 @ABTE
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TXRIE
Express Rail Link Contract No. 826 30% March 2010 May 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
— Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels —ZT-ZF=A —Z—RFHA BAEBBERARF
BRE DRSS LR 7826
- EMEREXREER
Express Rail Link Contract No. 802 — Nam Cheong Property 100% February 2010 September 2012 MTR Corporation Limited
Foundation Removal/Reprovisioning —Z-ZF A —E-ZFNA BREREARAR
BRERRERRIESNIRERS02 - FEMEMEBR
EEIER
Provision of Interception Facilities of Jordan Valley Box 100% December 2010 May 2014 Drainage Services Department
Culvert, Kowloon City ZT-ZF+ZA —ZZ—MFRA EHE
FLERERAMAE KRS KEBIRTIE
Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 8108, 22.5% January 2011 May 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
West Kowloon Terminus Station South —Z——%—H —Z—RFHA ERERARAR
BEERERREES 48108
PR (F) g TR
Site Formation and Slope Stabilization Works for The 100% May 2010 April 2012 Moon Ocean Limited
Proposed Residential Development at Lot 1¢, Lot 2, Lot 3, —ZT-TFRHA —ZE—-—FMA

Lot 4 and Lot 5 (Parcel 5a, 5b & ¢) Next to Avenida Wai
Long, Cotai, Macau SAR

SRFARR AT B RES MR 102 3 - AR5 (4R k5a  SbRc)
WERBETEEREE BT EIRNEZEETE
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Major Projects In- Progress (continued)

BRETRZEETE ¢

Group's Commencement Anticipated

Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

IBAE FHREMEES FRIBX FRRARTI AN EF REREE

CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS (continued)

tRIE(H)

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, 100% April 2011 January 2015 Water Supplies Department
Stage 4 Phase 1 — Mains in Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, —Z——FWA E—hF—A KBEE
North District and Tai Po

B RAEEKE TI2E4R R B -4 P9 okl
tERAHRAKE TR

ELS, Pile Caps and Floor Slabs at Basement 2 Level 100% September 2011 June 2012 Top Gallant Limited
at TPTL No. 200, Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po, New Territories —Z——FNA —T——FXA FRERRA

ARAANEAAARETIR200FREFTTERIERA
EREARARE As  EEREBRIE

ELS, Pile Caps and Floor Slabs at Basement 2 Level 100% September 2011 June 2012 King Regent Limited
at TPTL No. 201, Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po, New Territories —E——%F1A —®RA BEFRNA

MARBEAARETHER0INHETERREER 2
ZREARARL &G EREKEHRIE

South Island Line (East) Contract No. 908 100% March 2012 August 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
—Wong Chuk Hang Depot Superstructure ——F=H —Z—-RFN\A BEEEARAR

BESE (RR) ZEE R E08H —E M Em

INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS

ERRERSHER

Superstructure Contract for Proposed Food Factory Building 100% March 2011 April 2012 Luckyview Enterprises Limited
including Basement at No. 19 Dai Fu Street, —Z——%=A —T-ZFMHA FRAEARAA
Tai Po Industrial Estate

KEIENAEEORERERM IBARM TEZ
LERETE

The Refurbishment of Sincere Insurance Building 100% May 2011 Mar 2013 Citiluck Development Limited
at 8 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong —Z——FHA —T-=ZF=AH KIEF B A PR A A

SERB RS SRR A E R T2

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICE

BEHAEE

Venetian Cotai Parcels 5/6 100% October 2005 February 2013 Venetian Orient Limited

BT AR R X ZZTRFTA —T—=F=R RABRIABRAR
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Major Projects

TEITEEH

Client/Ultimate Employer
EF /REEE

ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL
®EIR

Design & Construction of New Civil Aviation Department
Headquarters on Airport Island
- Supply & Installation of Air Conditioning System
AT MBER A5 2 3R A B 4 7D
—EREGHELRREIR

Main Contract of Superstructure Works for Academic and
Administration Building City University of Hong Kong
— Electrical and Mechanical Installation®

ERWMABHERTHRAR LERETR
—HEE

Hong Kong Baptist University Road Campus Development at

Baptist University Road, Kowloon Tong

— MVAC, Electrical & Fire Services Installation®
ERREREZERBEREERER

(LRNEEERZEAR2E)

—BEEH ERNENRRLE

100%

100%

100%

* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies

BHBYEDHTEEARA

# Subcontract being awarded by group companies
SEARBARTZOHAEH

" Awaiting PC Certificate
e TA

May 2009
“EINFLA

December 2010
—T-ZF+ZA

November 2010
—E-TF+—A

June 2012
—E-ZFXA

September 2012
—T-ZFhA

June 2012
—E-FXA

Architectural Services Department

BEE

City University of Hong Kong
ERUMAR

Hong Kong Baptist University
EEREAD
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Major Properties

ERME

Approximate Percentage of

Description Uses gross area Status Lease term Group's interest
FEMEAR{E

MEHER AE i SE YL R FH ESaSL

Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2011

R-E—F+-A=+—HAZ8R BA HEMX

No. 3 Lockhart Road, Office 77,000 ™ Rental Short 100%
Wan Chai, Hong Kong Sk ME SRt

BB R B35

Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000 Head Office Medium 100%
107-109 Wai Yip Street, 2 4 HER
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FEH D

BB NEBIEEFEE10721095%

Carparks in Lung Mun Qasis Carpark 134 carparks For Sale Medium 100%
43 Lung Mun Road, B 134ME = {7 HE H Hj
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong

REFIE 2 B
& 7B R S PIBEPT B8 4355

Loading Bay on 1st Floor, Carpark 1 carpark Rental Medium 50.9%
Fortune Commercial Building, =ty kBt Zish=1 H HR

No. 362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB AL DR 36258

EEFEAEIELHE
Sun Hing Garden, No. 2 On Po Lane, Carpark 8 carparks Rental Medium 50.9%
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong BAL 8{EE i, Gish=1 Fh AR

BRI LR ETE

Properties under Development as at 31 December 2011

RIE—F+ZAZ+—HZREPYX

17 parcels of nearby land, Residential/ 1,804,000 @ Construction Medium and 100%
south of Ganjiang Road, Commercial Design in Progress long
west of National Highway 102, FE BIEREHETTH AR HA I R AR
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village,
Fanhe Town,

Tieling County, Liaoning Province,

People’s Republic of China
R T A 5 LT

R K ¥ AT 102838

VAPE R8T B8 LA RS BT 3M 1708 £ 3
M Gorss floor area of square feet #2iEmEE & (FHR)
@ Gorss site area of square metres 42t A2 & (75 3K)



Corporate Information

KFAEH

Directors

=

Audit Committee
EREEY

Remuneration Committee

FHERE

Nomination Committee

REZRA®

Company Secretary

NCET

Legal Advisors

EREME

Auditor
B BED

Financial Calendar

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin**(Chairman)

R (/)

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai*
(Executive Deputy Chairman)

TRE* (BHEETE)

Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho*
(Managing Director)

RER (EFLLHE)

Catherine CHU*

K&

Barry John BUTTIFANT*

FRMN*

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung*

ANEF S

Abraham SHEK Lai-him*

AEHR

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing*

HE R

# Independent Non-executive Director
o BUHHITEE

b Non-executive Director

o HHITEE

* Executive Committee Member

* HITEREHER

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing (Chairman)

BHE(FE)
Jeffre%/ LAM Kin-fung

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
KRR

Abraham SHEK Lai-him (Chairman)
AEFHR (Z/E)

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

FHRE

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

PNiExzd

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (Chairman)
MWiEsE ()

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

THE

Abraham SHEK Lai-him

AiEHR

TSANG Oi-yin
R E

Hong Kong &%

F. Zimmern & Co.

BEXERMAT
Bermuda B R
Conyers Dill & Pearman

PricewaterhouseCoopers

EERUEE R EIA

Announcement of interim results

Payment date for interim dividend
Announcement of final results

Ex-dividend date for proposed final dividend
Annual General Meeting for 2012
Payment date for proposed final dividend

31 August 2011
7 October 2011
23 March 2012
31 May 2012
29 May 2012
25 June 2012

Principal Bankers

FEERBIT

Reference Banks
and Financial
Institutions

FERBITRMBRE

Registered Office
MR R

Principal Place
of Business

FEMERE

Principal Share
Registrars and
Transfer Office

FERMBRELE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrars
and Transfer Office

FERMNBRELSE

Stock Code
B i £ 5%

Board Lot

BHESENM

Share Price

Bz {8

Website
Huk

Email Address
ERhLE

MBAR

PR ES
AR SR E
DB FER
FRARHR S 2 BFER
—E - FERREFRE
FURRHIR SR E A

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
EELEEGRITERAA
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
REBRITAERRA

Chong Hing Bank lelted
BIBERTTAR A

Hang Seng Bank lelted
BAERTTAR AR

East West Bank
EXIRTT

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
AFRITAR QA

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2579 8238

BB NEEE

1B Z47107-1095%

MEP L

EEE 1 (852) 2579 8238

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HMO08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BERRE %Apaﬁﬁﬁ Al

E‘% LT

SR ABH183%

/:.\ DEP/DWE

712-17 1657 45

00404

2,000 shares

2,000%

Year High HK$2.08
2EHKE PE152.087T
Year Low HK$0.78
2EREK YE#0.787T
http:/Amww.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk

—=——FN\A=+—A"

—T——F+A+tH
—T-—F=A=+=H
—E—=-—FAA=+—H
—T——FAA=+hAH
—E——FXA=+HAH
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